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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

OR

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 for theTransition Period from to .

Commission file number 000-24821

eBay Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 77-0430924
(Stateor other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incor poration or organization) I dentification Number)
2145 Hamilton Avenue 95125
San Josg, California
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(408)376-7400
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934: Common Stock

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1)filed all reports required to be filed by Section13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12months (or for such shorter period that theregistrant was required to file such reports), and (2)has been subject to
such filing requirements for the past 90days.Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item405 of RegulationS-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statementsincorporated by reference in Partll| of this
Form10-K or any amendment to this Form10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rulel2b-2).Yes No

Asof June28, 2002, the last business day of theregistrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, there were 281,627,707 shares of
the registrant’s common stock, $0.001 par value, outstanding, which istheonly class of common or voting stock of theregistrant issued as of
that date. The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates, computed by referenceto theclosing price for the common
stock asquoted by the Nasdag National Stock Market as of that date, was approximately $10,505,600,000. Shares of common stock held by
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each executive officer and director and by each person who owns 5% or more of the outstanding common stock have been excluded in that such
persons may be deemed to be affiliates. This determination of affiliate statusis not necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

Asof Marchl, 2003, there were 314,555,966 shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Certain exhibits filed with theregistrant’ s prior annual reports to security holders, registration statements and current reports are incorporated
by reference into I1tem15(a)(3) of this report.
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PART |
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

ThisAnnual Report on Form10-K contains forward-looking statements based on our current expectations about our company and our
industry. You can identify these forward-looking statementswhen you see us using words such as“ may,” “will,” “should,” * expect,”
“anticipate,” “ believe,” “ estimate,” “intend,” “ plan” and other similar expressions. You can also identify forward-looking statements by
discussions of strategy, plans or intentions. These forward-looking statementsinvolve risksand uncertainties. Our actual results could differ
materially fromthose anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of the factors described in the* Risk Factors That May Affect
Results of Operations and Financial Condition” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and elsewhere in this report. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements for any reason, even if
new information becomes available or other events occur in the future.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

eBay Inc. was formed as a sole proprietorship in September 1995, and was incorporated in Californiain May 1996. In April 1998, we
reincorporated in Delaware and in September 1998 wecompleted the initial public offering of our common stock. Our principal executive
offices arelocated at 2145 Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, Cdifornia, 95125, and our telephone number is (408)376-7400. When we refer to
“we,” “our” or “eBay” inthis Annua Report on Form10-K, we mean the current Delaware corporation (eBay Inc.) and its California
predecessor, as well asall of our consolidated subsidiaries. When we refer to “eBay.com,” we mean the online marketplace located at
www.ebay.com . When we refer to “PayPal,” or “PayPal.com,” we mean the global payments platform located at www.paypal.com .

Our Mission
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Our mission isto build the world’ smost efficient and abundant marketplace in which anyone, anywhere, can buy or sell practically anything.
We pioneered online trading by developing aWeb-based marketplace in which a community of buyers and sellersare brought together in an

entertaining, intuitive, easy-to-use environment to browse, buy and sell an enormousvariety of items. Through our PayPal service, we enable
any business or consumer with email to send and receive online payments securely, conveniently and cost-effectively.

Our Marketplace
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Our marketplace exists asan online trading platform that enables a global community of buyers and sellers to interact and trade with one
another. Our roleisto create, maintain, and expand the technological functionality, safety, ease-of-use, and reliability of thetrading platform
whileat the sametime, supporting the growth and success of our community of users.

Our Platform

Our trading platform isafully automated, topically arranged, intuitive and easy-to-use online servicethat is available, 24 hours-a-day, seven
days-a-week (subject to aweekly scheduled two-hour maintenance period), enabling sellersto list items for sale in either auction or fixed-price
formats, buyers to bid for and/or purchase items of interest, and all eBay users to browse through listed items from any place in theworld at any
time. The platformincludes software toolsand services available either for no charge or for afee, that allow buyers and sellers to more easily
trade withone another. Our software tools such as: eBay Anywhere, which provides wireless connectivity to eBay; Seller’s Assistant, Turbo
Lister, and Selling Manager, which automate the selling process; the Freight Resource Center, which allows usersto calculate shipping costs;
and PayPal, whichfacilitates online exchangeof funds, are all designed to makeour trading
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process easier and more efficient. Whether provided by us or our commercial partners, servicessuch as our trust and safety programs, user
verification, buyer protection and assurance programs, vehicle inspections, escrow, authentication and appraisal are al intended to create a
safer trading environment.

Our Community

Our community of usersisthe largest and one of themost loyal online trading communities on the Web. We have aggregated asignificant
number of buyers, sellers and items listed for sale, which in turn has resulted in an extremely vibrant trading environment. Our sellers enjoy
generally high conversion rates and buyers enjoy an extensive selection of broadly priced goods and services. Key components of our
community philosophy are maintaining an honest and open marketplace and treating individual users with respect. We seek to maintain the
satisfaction and loyalty of our frequent buyers and sellersby offering a variety of community and support featuressuch as announcement and
bulletin boards, customer support boards and personal pages as well as other topical or category-specific information exchanges. By ensuring
that all users are subject to the same rules and fees, we have created a level playing field enabling individualsand businesses of al typesand
sizes to access broad marketsand compete equally.

Our Value Proposition
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Our marketplace makesinefficient markets more efficient.
Traditional offlinemarketplaces can be inefficient because:
*They are fragmented and regional in nature making it difficult and expensive for buyers and sellers to meet, exchange information and
compl ete transactions;
*They offer alimited variety and breadth of goods;

*They often have high transaction costs due to intermediaries; and

*They are information inefficient, as buyers and sellers lack a reliable and convenient means of setting prices.

We make these inefficient marketplaces more efficient because:

*Our global community of users can easily and inexpensively communicate, exchange information and complete transactions;
*Our marketplace includestens of millions of items creating a very wide variety and selection of goods;
*We bring buyers and sellers together for afee much lower than those of traditional intermediaries; and

«Our marketplace provides for efficient information exchange.

Inparticular, large markets with broad buyer and seller bases, wideproduct ranges, and moderate shipping costs have been successful on eBay.
Our marketplace is most effective, relative to available alternatives, at addressing markets of new and scarce goods, end-of-life products, and
used and vintageitems.

Our Strategy
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Weintend to achieveour mission of becoming theworld’'s most efficient and abundant marketplace by creating marketplace conditions that
enable our users’ success. By continuing to foster the vibrancy of the world’ slargest network of buyers and sellers and by making the online
trading experiencefaster, easier and safer, webetter enable the success of our user community.

3
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Growth of eBay User Activity

Our success hasbeen largely dependent upon the success of our community of individua users. This successisreflected in the growth of
confirmed, registered users fromtwo million at December31, 1998 to 62million at December31, 2002. At December31, 2002, we had nearly
28million active users, based on activity over atrailing 12-month period, compared to nearly 18million at December31, 2001. We define an
active user as any user who bid on, purchased, or listed an item during the prior 12months. We attract buyers and sellers to our community by
offering:

Buyers

» Selection

» Convenience
e Entertainment
e Vadue

Sellers

e Access to broad markets
» Low distribution costs
» Ability to maximize prices and increase sales

A Faster, Easier and Safer Trading Experience
Payment Services

Providing more efficient and more effective methods of payment is essential to creating a faster, easier and safer online trading experience.
Traditional payment methods such as checks, money orders, and credit cardsvia merchant accounts all present various obstacles to the online
trading experience, including lengthy processing time, inconvenience, and high costs.

Through our acquisition of PayPal, Inc. on October3, 2002, we intend to accelerate the velocity of trade on eBay by eliminating the various
obstacles presented by traditional payment methods. PayPal enables any business or consumer with email access in 38 countries to send and
receive online payments securely, conveniently and cost-effectively. PayPal’ s network builds on the existing financia infrastructure of bank
accounts and credit cardsto create an international payment system. PayPal delivers a product well suited for small businesses, online
merchants, individualsand others.

Our goal for PayPal isto become the Web's most convenient, secure, and cost-effective payment solution. PayPal currently offersits
account-based systemin English to usersin 38 countries including the United States. For the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002
through December31, 2002, PayPal’ s payment volume sent to business accounts, which werefer to as Total Payment Volume, or TPV, totaled
$2.1billion. PayPal’s TPV consists mainly of paymentsto small businesses. Currently, the majority of these paymentsrelate to sales of goods
and servicesthrough onlinetrading platforms, primarily on eBay. Asof December31, 2002, PayPal had 23million accounts. During the
post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002, usersof eightmillion of these accounts sent or received a payment
that resulted in afee. Asof December31, 2001, PayPal had nearly 13million total accounts, of which eight million sent or received a payment
that resulted in afeeduring theyear ended December31, 2001.

PayPal hasachieved its rapid growth through a combination of wide adoption on eBay.com and our website in the United Kingdom, user
convenience, competitive pricing and robust customer safeguards. During the year ended December31, 2002, PayPal’ stotal number of accounts
grew by 10.5million, an average of 29,000 per day. For the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002, PayPal
processed an average of 440,000 payments per day, totaling $24.0million in daily volume. The average payment amount sent during this period
was $55.

Geographic Expansion

The continued geographic expansion of theeBay marketplace iscritical to creating afaster, easier and safer online trading experience. In 2002,
eBay, together withcertain minority-owned companies, unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, increased its geographic reach to 27
countries including websites
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inthe People's Republic of Chinaand Taiwan. Asof December31, 2002, through our wholly owned and mgjority-owned subsidiaries and
affiliates, we reached the following countries:

e Audrdia

» Ausdtria

* Belgium

» Canada

e France

*  Germany

e Irdand

o ltay

» the Netherlands
* New Zedand

* Singapore

» South Korea

e Spain

» Sweden

» Switzerland

e Taiwan

» United Kingdom
* United States

Asof December31, 2002, through investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates, we reached thefollowing countries:

* Argentina

» Brazil

e Chile

* Columbia

» Ecuador

* Mexico

» People sRepublicof China
e Uruguay

* Venezuea

The globalization of the eBay marketplace provides buyersaccess to an even greater supply of items and provides sellers an even broader
audience of potential customers.

Category Growth

Category growth both in number and size withinthe eBay marketplace is akey elementin creating a faster, easier, and safer onlinetrading
experience. In 2002, we made significant investments to grow existing categories and to expand the number of categories in the eBay
marketplace. By focusing devel opment and marketing efforts around re-organized major categories, we achieved greater than 10% growthin al
of our major categories and increased the number of categories under which eBay users can list goods for sale from 10, when eBay was first
introduced, to more than 22,000 asof December31, 2002.

Asof December3l, 2002, listings on eBay were organized under the following categories:

Major Categories

* Antiques
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e Art

* Books

* Business Industrial
e Cars Other Vehicles

*Cars
*Motorcycles

*Parts

» Clothing and Accessories

* Coins
* Collectibles
* Dolls Bears

 Electronics and Computers

*Computers Office
*Consumer Electronics
*Networking
*PDASs
*Photo
*VVideo Games
* Hom
e
*Baby
*Home Dcor
sLawn Garden
*Kitchen
*Pet Supplies
*Tools
. Jewe_lry Watches
* Movies DVDs
* Music

e Musicd Instruments

e Pottery Glass
* Red Edate

e Sports
Fan Shop

*Memorabilia

*Sporting Goods

EGAF

— Faalfdalia

2003.
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Stamps
Tickets

Toys Hobbies
Crafts

Diecast

Travel
Everything Else
Gifts

Health Beauty
More

Soecialty Stes

eBay Motors
eBay Stores
Half.comby eBay
PayPdl
Sothebys.com

L ! —
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Each mgjor category has numerous subcategories, with themost popular items sold on eBay being those that are relatively standardized, well
represented witha photo, small and easily shipped and relatively inexpensive.

TheeBay Online Trading Experience
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The eBay online trading experience begins withavisit to the eBay home page at www.ebay.com or any of eBay’ sinternational sites. eBay’s
home page containsalisting of major categories, featured items and theme-oriented promotions. Users can search for items to browse and buy,
goto aspecific item category, go to a speciaty site such as eBay Motors, eBay Stores, or Half.com or beginlisting anitem for sale.

Registration

Any visitor to eBay.com and our international websitescan browse through the eBay serviceand view theitems listed for sale. To bid on, list
or purchase an item, buyers and sellers must first register with eBay by completing a short online form and confirmation process.

Buying on eBay

Users can search for specific itemsby browsing through alist of items withina category or subcategory and then “click through” to a detailed
description for a particular item. Users can also search specific categories, interest pages or the entire database of listings using keywords to
describe their areas of interest. Our search enginegenerates lists of relevant items with links to detailed descriptions. Each itemisassigned a
unique identifier so that users can easily search for and track specific items. Users also can search for a particular bidder or seller by nameto
review hisor her listings and feedback history and search for products by specific region or other attributes. Once a user has found an item and
registered on eBay.com, the user may enter a bid for the maximum amount he or sheiswilling to pay at that time, or for those listings that offer
the Buy-It-Now feature, purchase theitem by accepting the Buy-It-Now price established by the seller. Inthe event of competitive bids, the
eBay service automatically increases bidding in increments based upon the current high bid, up to the bidder’s maximum price.

We encourage direct interaction between buyers and sellers. Potential buyers wishing additional information about a listed item can contact the
seller through email. We believe that this interaction between potential buyers and sellers enhances the trading experience oneBay and isan
important element of our service. Once each bid is made, we send anemail confirmation to thebidder and an outbid notice to the next highest
bidder and automatically update theitem’ sauction status. During the course of the transaction, we notify bidders immediately via email if they
are outbid. Buyers are not charged for making bids or purchases through eBay. In addition, buyers can specify items of interest on a service
caled “Favorite Searches’ (previoudly called “Personal Shopper”) and receive automated email messages when these particular itemsare
available for sale on eBay.com.

Sdling on eBay

Users can sell items on eBay.com by registering and selling items on their own, or with thehelp of a Trading Assistant.
Registering and Sdlling Items

Registered sellers can list a product for sale by completing a short online formor using “ Seller’s Assistant,” “Turbo Lister” or third-party tools
that facilitate thelisting of multiple items. The seller selects a minimum price for opening bids for the item and chooses whether the sale will
last three, five, seven or 10days. Additionally, a seller may select areserve pricefor an item, whichisthe minimum price at whichthe seller is

willingto sell theitem and istypically higher than the minimum price set for the opening bid. The reserve price is not disclosed to bidders.
Sellers withappropriate feedback ratings may also choose to
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use the Buy-1t-Now feature at thetime of listing, which allows sellers to name a price at whichthey would be willingto sell theitem to any
buyer. Listingsthat offer the Buy-It-Now feature are conducted in thenormal auction-style format, but will also feature a Buy-It-Now icon and
price. Until the first bid is placed, or in thecase of areserve auction, until thereserve priceis met, buyers have the option to buy the item
instantly at the specified price without waiting for the auction to end. A seller can elect to sell itemsin individual item listings or, if he or she
has multipleidentical items, can elect to hold a“Dutch Auction.” For example, an individual wishing to sell 10 identical watches could hold 10
individual auctionsor hold aDutch Auction in whichthe 10 highest bidders would each receive awatch at the price bid by the tenth highest
bidder. To be eligibleto hold a Dutch auction, a seller must have a sufficiently high feedback rating and must have been aregistered seller for
at least 60days. A seller may also specify that an auctionwill be a private auction. With this format, bidders' email addresses arenot disclosed
on the item screen or bidding history screen.

Sellersgenerally pay anominal listing fee to list items for sale. By paying incremental placement fees, sellers can have itemsfeatured in
various ways. For example, a seller can highlight his or her item for sale by utilizing a bold font for the item heading, have his or her auction
displayed as a“Featured Auction,” which alowsthe seller’ sitem to be rotated on the eBay home page, or utilize the Buy-I1t-Now feature, which
enables a seller to close an auction instantly once a specified priceis reached.

When an auction ends, the eBay system validates whether a bid has exceeded the minimum price, and thereserve priceif one hasbeen set. If
the auction was successful or if the buyer elected the Buy-It-Now feature, we automatically notify the buyer and seller via email, and the buyer
and sdller can then compl ete thetransaction independent of us. At thetime of the email notification, we generally charge the seller afina value
fee. eBay does not take possession of either the item being sold or the buyer’s payment for the item. Rather, the buyer and seller must
independently arrange for the shipment of and payment for theitem, with the buyer typically paying for shipping.

Under the termsof our user agreement, if a seller receives one or more bids above the stated minimum or reserve price, whichever is higher,
the seller is obligated to complete a transaction. We have no power to force the seller or buyer to complete the transaction, other than to
suspend them from using the eBay servicein thefuture. In the event the buyer and seller areunable to complete thetransaction andthe seller
notifies us, we have the right to credit the seller the amount of thefinal value fee.

Invoicesfor listing, feature and final value fees are sent viaemail to sellers on aregular (at least monthly) basis. We require al new sellers to
have a credit card account onfile. Sellers who pay ushby credit card are charged shortly after the invoice is sent. A summary of our eBay.com
fee structure, as of March15, 2003, is provided below. All pricing is subject to change.

Listing Fees
Minimum Bid, Opening
Valueor Reserve Price ListingFee
$0.01- $9.99 $0.30
$10.00- $24.99 $0.55
$25.00- $49.99 $1.10
$50.00- $199.99 $2.20
$200.00 and up $3.30
Specia Categories Listing Fee
Passenger Vehicles or $40.00
Other Vehicles
Motorcycles $25.00
Readl Estate $50.00-$300.00
Reserve Price Reserve Price Fee*
$0.01- $24.99 $0.50
$25.00- $99.99 $1.00
$100.00 and up 1% of reserve price (up to a maximum fee of $100.00)
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Reserve price feeisfully refundable if item sells
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Feature Fees
Seller Feature Description FeatureFee
Home Page Item islisted in a Special Featured section and is also rotated on the eBay home page. $99.95
Featured
Featured Plus! Item appears in the category’ s Featured Item section and in bidder’ s search results. $19.95
Highlight Item listing is emphasized with a colored band. $5.00
Bold Item titleis listed in bold. $1.00
Buy-I1t-Now Allowstheseller to close an auction instantly for a specified price. $0.05
Final Value Fees
Sale Price Final Vaue Fee
Upto $25 5.25% of sale price
$25.01 to $1,000 Above plus 2.75% of amount over $25
Over $1,000 Above plus 1.5% of theamount over $1,000
Special Categories Final Vaue Fee
Passenger Vehicles or Other Vehicles $40.00
Motorcycles $25.00
Trading Assistants

The eBay Trading Assistantsprogram is a network of experienced eBay sellers who haveindicated their willingnessto assist othersin thesale
of itemsfor afee. Interested sellers can search the Trading Assistant Directory to find someone to sell items on their behalf. The Trading
Assistants and their clients negotiate theterms and conditions of these services.

Payments
Following a completed transaction, eBay buyers and sellers can exchange funds by the payment method of their choice, typically electronically
through our PayPal global payments platform and also via check or money order. PayPal enables any business or consumer with email to send

and receive online payments securely, conveniently and cost-effectively. PayPal’ s email-driven system builds on the legacy financial
infrastructure of bank accounts and credit cards to create an online payment network availableto usersin 38 countries.

How PayPal Works
Joining the Network

To send or receive a payment, a user first must open a PayPal account. A new user typically opens anaccount to send money for an eBay
purchase or a purchase on another website, for servicesrendered, or for apayment to an individual in lieu of cash. Allowingnew usersto join
the network at the time of making or receiving payments encourages PayPal’ s natural, user-driven growth. PayPal’ s account sign-up process
asks each new user to register with PayPal his or her name, street address and email address, which serves as the unique account identifier.
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Making Payments

Senders make payments at the PayPal website, at an item listing on eBay or another online marketplace where the seller hasintegrated PayPal’s
Instant Purchase Feature, or at the sites of merchants that have integrated PayPal’ s Web Accept feature. To make a payment at PayPal’'s
website, a sender logsin to hisor her account and enters the recipient’s email address and the amount of the payment. To make a payment
through Instant Purchase or Web Accept, a sender selects an item for purchase, confirmsthe payment information and enters his or her email
address and password to authorize the payment. In both scenarios, PayPal debits the money fromthe sender’s PayPal balance, credit card or
bank account and instantly credits it to the recipient’ s PayPal balance in the case of aneCheck payment, thefunds are credited to therecipient’s
PayPal balance after two to three business days. In turn, therecipient can make paymentsto othersor withdraw his or her funds at any time via
check, electronic fundstransfer, or viathe PayPal debit card. PayPal earns revenues whenan account receives a payment.

Funding Payments

Senders fund paymentsin three ways:

«fromthe sender’s existing PayPal balance;
«fromthe sender’ s bank account, using the Automated Clearing House, or ACH, network; or

«fromthe sender’s credit card.

Weincur funding costs on paymentsat varyinglevels based on the nature of the payment. To those users who choose to maintain PayPal
balances, we offer a money market rate of return on balances placed in PayPa’s Money Market Fund. The PayPal Money Market Fund, which
isinvested in a portfolio managed by Barclays Global Fund Advisors, bore a current compound annua yield of 1.44% asof December31, 2002.

We use theterms “balance” and “PayPal balance” to refer to funds that PayPal customers choose either to invest in the PayPal Money Market
Fund (offered only to U.S. customers) or to authorize PayPal to place in FDIC-insured pooled bank accounts as agent of PayPal’s customers.
These funds belong to our customersand hence are not reflected in our statement of financial position. Fundsbelonging to our customersthat
are not invested in FDIC-insured accounts, such as fundsin transit to or fromthe customer’ s bank, are shown as aliability on our balance shest.

Verification of PayPal’s Account Holders

Inorder for senders to fund payments fromtheir bank accounts, they first must become verified PayPal users through our Random Deposit
technique. Under this technique, we make two deposits ranging from 1 to 99 centsto the user’ s bank account. To verify ownership of the
account, the user then enters the two amounts as a four-digit code at the PayPal website. Inaddition to allowing funding via bank accounts,
verification also removes some spending limits on users' accounts and gives them reputational advantages whentransacting with other members
of thePayPal community.

Withdrawing Money

Each U.S.-based account holder may withdraw money from his or her PayPal account via an ACH transfer to his or her bank account or by a
mailed check from PayPal. ACH withdrawals may take threeto five business daysto arrivein theaccount holder’s bank account, depending on
the bank. Mailed checks may take one to two weeksto arrive and PayPal charges $1.50 per check. Qualifying PayPal business users also can
receive a PayPal ATM/debit card, which provides instant liquidity to their respective PayPal account balances. ATM/debit card holders can
withdraw cash, for a$1.00 feeper transaction, from any ATM connected to the Cirrus or Maestro networksand can makepurchases at any
merchant accepting MasterCard.
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Other Services
Customer Support

We devote significant resources to providing personalized, accurate and timely support services to our community of users. Buyers and sellers
can contact usthrough a variety of means, including email, text chat and an expanding phone capability. We are focusing our resources on
expanding our accessibility and capacity, increasing our category specific support, extending our online self-help features, and improving our
systems and processesto enable usto provide themost efficient and effective support possible.

Value-Added Services

We provide avariety of “pre-trade’ and “ post-trade” services to enhance the user experience and make trading faster, easier, and safer.
“Pre-trade” services simplify thelisting process and include photo hosting, authentication and seller productivity software. “ Post-trade” services
make transactions easier and morecomfortable to complete, and include payment processing, insurance, vehicle inspections, escrow, shipping
and postage. We currently provide these services directly or through contractual arrangements with third parties.

Trust and Safety Programs

We have developed a number of programs to make eBay users more comfortable dealing withunknown trading partners and completing
commerce transactions on the Internet.

Feedback Forum

eBay’ s Feedback Forum encourages every user to provide comments and feedback on other eBay users with whom he or sheinteracts and
enables every user to view other users' profiles that include feedback ratingsand incorporate user experiences. Every registered eBay user has a
feedback profile containing compliments, criticisms and other comments by users who have conducted business or interacted with the person.
The Feedback Forum requiresfeedback to be related to specific transactions and provides an easy tool for users to match transaction numbers
with theuser namesof their trading partners. Thisinformation is recorded in a feedback profile that includes a feedback rating for the person
and comments from other eBay userswho have interacted with that person over the past seven days, the past month, the past six months and
beyond. Users who develop positive reputations will have a color-coded star symbols displayed next to their user namesto indicate the number
of positive feedback ratings they have received. Before bidding onitems listed for sale, eBay users are encouraged to review a seller’ s feedback
profile to check hisor her reputation within the eBay community.

The termsof our user agreement prohibit actionsthat would undermine theintegrity of the Feedback Forum, such as a person’s leaving positive
feedback about himself or herself through multiple accounts or leaving multiple negative feedback for others through multiple accounts. The
Feedback Forum hasseveral automated features designed to detect and prevent someforms of abuse. For example, feedback posting fromthe
same account, positive or negative, cannot affect a user’ s net feedback rating (i.e., thenumber of positive postings, lessthe number of negative
postings) by more than one point, no matter how many comments an individual makes. Also, a user can only leave feedback for completed
transactions. Users who receive a sufficiently negative net feedback rating have their registrations suspended and are unable to bid on or list
items for sale. We believe our Feedback Forum is extremely useful in overcominginitial user hesitancy when trading over the Internet, as it
reduces the anonymity and uncertainty of dealingwith an unknown trading partner.

SafeHarbor TMProgram
Inaddition to the Feedback Forum, weoffer the SafeHarbor TMprogram, which provides guidelinesfor trading, provides information to resolve
user disputes and responds to reports of misusesof the eBay service. eBay’s SafeHarbor TMVstaff investigates users' complaints of possible

misuse of theeBay service and
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takes appropriate action, includingissuing warningsto users or suspending usersfrom bidding on or listing itemsfor sale. Some of the
complaints the SafeHarbor TMstaff investigates include various formsof bid manipulation, malicious posting of negative feedback and posting
of illegal items for sale. The SafeHarbor TMygroup is organized into three areas: Investigations, Fraud Prevention and Community Watch. The
Investigations team investigates reported trading infractions and misuseof the eBay service. The Fraud Prevention department provides
information to assist userswith disputes over the quality of the goods sold or potentially fraudulent transactions and, upon receipt of an
officialy filed, written claim of fraud from a user, will generally suspend the offending user fromthe eBay serviceor take other action as
appropriate. The Community Watch department investigates the listing of illegal, infringingor inappropriate items on the eBay.com site and our
international websitesand violations of certain of our policies. Upon receipt of avalid written claim of intellectual property infringement by the
owner of the intellectua property, we will remove the offending item. Users who repeatedly infringeintellectual property rights are suspended.
In addition, wehave increased the number of people reviewing potentially illegal items. Our trust and safety initiatives, including user identity
verification, insurance, integrated escrow and authentication, are key elements of our programs designed to make eBay a safe place to trade.

My eBay

We offer My eBay, which permits usersto receive areport of their recent eBay activity, including bidding, selling, account balances, favorite
categories and recent feedback. Users with their own Web pages also may post linksfrom their Web pagesto eBay and list the items they are
selling on eBay. We aso offer About Me, which provides users the opportunity to create their own personal home page free of charge on eBay
using step-by-step instructions. The About Mehome page can include personal information, items listed for sale, eBay feedback ratings, images
and links to other favorite sites.

eBay Foundation

InJune 1998, we donated 643,500 shares of our common stock to the Community Foundation Silicon Valley, a tax-exempt donor-advised
public charity, and established afund known as the “eBay Foundation.” Sinceits inception, the eBay Foundation has made millions of dollars in
grants to dozens of programs and initiatives focused on education and expanded access to technology. We also seek user suggestions for
worthwhile charities through our website, where charity auctions and other unique promotions are held to support such causes.

Technology
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Our eBay Platform

The eBay platformis composed of a scalable transaction processing system, consumer user interface, and externally accessible Application
Programming Interface, API, for third-party integrations. The scalable system is primarily based oninternally developed proprietary software,
but aso includes selected vendor components. The eBay platform supports the full selling and buying processes, including initia registration
for the service, placing bids and managing outbids, listing items for sale, and auction close. The platform aso manages various notifications for
sellers and buyers, including daily status updates, bid and outbid notices, registration confirmations, account change notices, billing notices, and
end-of-auction notices. The platform maintains user registration information, billing accounts, current item listings and historical listings. All
information isregularly archived for record-keeping and analysis purposes. The platform regularly updates a comprehensive search enginewith
the titlesand descriptions of items, as well as pricing and bidding updates for active items. The platform also updates the seller’s billing account
every time an item islisted, afeature is selected, or an auction closes with a bid in excess of the seller-specified minimum bid. The platform
sends electronicinvoices to all sellersonaregular (at least monthly) basis. In addition to these features, theeBay service also supports a
community bulletin board and chat areas where users and eBay customer support personnel can interact. Our overall systemvolume is
significant, with
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peak usage of 580million pageviews per day, 60million item searches per day, and 4.5 gigabits per second of datatraffic.

Our platform is designed around industry standard architectures to reduce downtimein the event of outages or catastrophic occurrences. The
eBay service provides 24 hours-a-day, seven days-a-week availability, subject to a weekly scheduled two hour maintenance period.
Substantialy all of our system hardwareis hosted at Cable Wireless and Qwest facilities in the San Jose, California, areaand Sprint
Communications facilities in Sacramento, California, each of which provides redundant communications lines and emergency power backup.
These systems and operations are vulnerable to damage or interruption from earthquakes, floods, fires, power loss, telecommunication failures
and similar events. They are also subject to break-ins, sabotage and intentional acts of vandalism, and also to potential disruption if the
operators of these facilitieshavefinancia difficulties.

We do not maintain fully redundant systems or alternative providers of hosting services, and we do not carry business interruption insurance
sufficient to compensate usfor losses that may occur. Despite any precautions we may take, the occurrence of anatural disaster, or any decision
by Cable Wireless, Sprint or Qwest to close afacility we areusing for financial reasonswithout providing us adequate notice or other
unanticipated problems could result in lengthy interruptionsin our services. In addition, thefailure by Cable Wireless, Qwest or Sprint to
provide our required data communications capacity could result in interruptionsin our service. Any damageto or failure of our systems could
result ininterruptionsin our service. Interruptions in our service will reduce our net revenues and profits, and our future net revenues and
profits will be harmed if our users believe that our systemis unreliable.

Our platform consists of Sun database serversrunning Oracle relational database management applicationswith a mix of Sun and Hitachi
storage devices along with a suite of Pentium-based Internet servers running the Windows NT and Linux operating systems. We use F5
Networks, Inc.’sload balancing systems and our own redundant servers along with select softwarefrom Veritas Inc. to provide for fault
tolerance, and weuse IBM’s WebSphere application server for certain platform functions. These third-party technology licenses may not
continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms. The loss of these technologies could require usto obtain substitute
technologies of lower quality or performance standards or at greater cost.

We have experienced occasional systeminterruptions, which webelieve will continue to occur from time to time. These outages have stemmed
from avariety of causes, including third-party hardware and software problems, human error, intentional external attacks (denia of service
attempts), and eBay proprietary softwareissues. The volume of traffic on our websites and the number of itemsbeing listed by users has been
increasing continually, requiring usto expand and upgrade our technology, transaction processing systems, APl capacity, security
infrastructure, and network infrastructure and to add new engineering and operations personnel. The process of upgrading and expansion is part
of theregular maintenance and site revisions. We may be unable to accurately project the rate or timing of increases, if any, inthe use of the
eBay service or expand and upgrade our systems and infrastructure to accommodate these increases in atimely manner. Any failure to expand
or upgrade our systems at least as fast as the growth in demand for capacity could cause the websiteand API functionsto become unstable and
possibly cease to operate for periods of time. Unscheduled downtime would harm our business.

Weuse internally developed systemsto operate our service and for transaction processing, including billing and collections processing. We
have announced our intentionto enhance our billing systemwith products from CSG Systems. We must continually improve our systemsto
accommodate theincreasing levelsof use of our websites. In addition, we may add new features and functionality to our servicesthat would
result in theneed to develop or license additional technologies. The cost of our development efforts, including therequired capitalization of
certain site-related software and development costs, totaled $65.3million in the year ended December31, 2000, $82.0million in 2001, and
$120.1million in 2002, and are reflected in our Consolidated Financia Statements under the heading “Product Development.” Our inability to
add additional software and hardware or to upgrade our technology, transaction processing systems, security infrastructure, or network
infrastructure to accommodate increased traffic or transaction
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volume could have adverse consequences. These consequences may include unanticipated systemdisruptions, slower response times,
degradation in levelsof customer support, impaired quality of users’ experience on our services, impaired quality of servicesfor third-party
application developers using our API, and delays in reporting accurate financial information. Our failureto provide new features or
functionality also could result in these consequences. We may be unable to upgrade and expand our systems in atimely and effective manner or
to integrate smoothly any newly developed or purchased technologies with our existing systems. These difficulties could harm or limit our
ability to expand our business.

Our competitive space is characterized by rapidly changingtechnology, evolving industry standards, frequent new service and product
announcements, introductions and enhancements and changing customer demands. Accordingly, our future successwill depend on our ability to
adapt to rapidly changing technologies, adapt our services to evolving industry standards and to improve the performance, features and
reliability of our servicesin response to competitive servicesand product offerings and evolving demands of the Internet. Our failure to adapt to
these changes would harm our business. Inaddition, the widespread adoption of new Internet, networking or telecommunications technologies
or other technological changes could require substantial expendituresto modify or adapt our services or infrastructure. To address theneed for
rapid change as well as stability, we have undertaken a project to enhance and evolve our current architecture. The new architecture isintended
to facilitate continued stability, improved scalability and improved efficiency. As of the fourth quarter of 2002, the new architectureis serving
70% of overall traffic onthe eBay websites. This project is ongoing, with phased rollouts through 2004. We plan to time these rolloutsin a
manner that minimizes the impact to our user community.

Our PayPal Platform

Our PayPal technology assures user access to the PayPal website, both to acquire new customers and to allow existing ones to conduct
financial transactions. We focus much of PayPal’s development efforts on creating specialized softwarethat enhances its|nternet-based
customer functionality. One of PayPal’s key challenges remainsbuilding and maintaining a scalable and reliable system, capable of handling
traffic and transactions for a growing customer base. The major components of our PayPal network reside at our PayPal facilities in Mountain
View, Cdlifornia, at an Equinix data center in San Jose, California, at a Cable Wireless data center in SantaClara, California, and at our PayPal
operations and customer support facility in Omaha, Nebraska.

Because of the financia nature of the PayPal product, we seek to offer ahighlevel of data security in order to build customer confidence and
to protect our customers' private information. We have designed our PayPal security infrastructure to protect data from unauthorized access,
both physically and over the Internet. PayPal’ s most sensitive data and hardware reside at its Equinix data center and Cable Wireless data
centers. These data centers have redundant connections to the Internet, as well as fault-tolerant power and fire suppression systems. Because of
PayPal’ s special security needs, we house our PayPal equipment in physically secure areas and we tightly control physical accessto our
systems. PayPal’ s systems and operations are located in the same geographic area and are vulnerable to damage or interruption from
earthquakes, floods, fires, power loss, telecommunication failures and similar events. They arealso subject to break-ins, sabotage and
intentional acts of vandalism, and to potential disruption if the operators of these facilitieshave financia difficulties. PayPal does not maintain
fully redundant systems or alternative providers of hosting services, and does not carry business interruption insurance sufficient to compensate
it for losses that may occur. Any damageto or failure of PayPal’s systemscould result ininterruptionsin its service, which could reduce our net
revenues and profits, and our future net revenues and profitswill be harmed if PayPal’s users believe that its systemisunreliable.

Multiplelayers of network security and network intrusion detection devices further enhance the security of our PayPal systems. We segment
various components of the systemlogically and physically from each other on our PayPal networks. Components of the system communicate
with each other viaSecure Sockets Layer, or SSL, an industry standard communications security protocol, and require mutual authentication.
Access to a system component requires at least two authorized staff members
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simultaneoudly to enter secret passphrases. This procedure is designed to protect us from the unauthorized use of PayPal’ sinfrastructure
components. Finally, we store all PayPal data we deem private or sensitive only in encrypted formin our PayPal database. PayPal decrypts data
only onan as-needed basis, usinga specially designated component of our PayPal system that requires authentication before fulfilling a
decryption request.

Competition
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We encounter vigorous competition in our business from numerous sources. Our users can buy and sell similar itemsthrough a variety of
competing channels, including online and offline retailers, distributors, liquidators, import and export companies, auctioneers, catalog and
mail-order companies, virtually all online and offlinecommerce participants (consumer-to-consumer, business-to-consumer and
business-to-business) and online and offline shopping channels and networks. For our PayPal service, our users may choose to pay through a
variety of competing channels, including other online payment services, payment methods (e.g. cash, money order), and traditional online or
offline merchant accounts. Asour product offering continuesto broaden into new categories of items, we expect our competition to continueto
broaden to include other online and offline channels for those new offerings. We also compete on the basis of price, product selection, and
services, which arederived fromour abundant and diverse user community and the quality of the eBay user experience. To compete effectively,
we may need to expend significant resources in technology and marketing. These efforts may be expensive and could reduce our margins and
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, operating results, cash flowsand reduce the value of our stock. We believe
that we will be able to maintain profitability by preserving and expanding the abundance and diversity of our user community and enhancing
our user experience, but there can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to manage our operating expenses to mitigate a declinein net
income. For moreinformation regarding these risks, see“Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Operations and Financial Condition — Our
industry isintensely competitive.”

Seasonality
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Our results of operations historically have been seasonal in nature because many of our users reduce their activities on our websites during the
holidays, such as during the Thanksgiving (inthe U.S.) and Christmas periods, and with the onset of good weather during the summer months.
We have historically experienced our strongest quartersof online growth in our first and fourth fiscal quarters. PayPal has shown similar
seasonality, except that its strongest quarter of online growth has historically been thefourth quarter.

Intellectual Property
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Weregard the protection of our trademarks, copyrights, patents, domain names, trade dress and trade secrets ascritical to our success. We
have entered into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our employees and contractors, and nondisclosure agreements with
parties with whom we conduct businessin order to limit access to and disclosure of our proprietary information.

We aggressively protect our intellectual property rights by relying on a combination of trademark, copyright, patent, trade dress and trade
secret lawsand through the domain name dispute resolution system. Asaresult, we actively pursue the registration of our trademarks,
copyrights, patents and domain namesin theU.S. and major countries internationally. Furthermore, we must aso protect our trademarks,
patents and domain names in an increasing number of jurisdictions, a processthat is expensive, may requirelitigation, and may not be
successful in every location. We have registered or applied for our “eBay” trademark in the U.S. and over 50 non-U.S. jurisdictions and havein
place an active program to continue securing the “eBay” and “PayPal” domain names in major non-U.S. jurisdictions. We havefiled to protect
our rightsto the “eBay” and “PayPal” namesin certain new top level domains suchas “.biz” “.info” and ".us’ that have recently become
operational. Our inability to secure our trademarks or domain names could adversely affect us in any jurisdiction in which we are not able to
register.

14

swneest ox B asim 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

Third parties have fromtime to time claimed, and others may claim in thefuture, that we haveinfringed their past, current or future intellectual
property rights. We are involved in several such legal proceedings. Please see the information under “ Risk Factors That May Affect Results of
Operations and Financia Condition — We are subject to intellectual property and other litigation” and “— We may be unable to protect or
enforce our own intellectua property rights adequately” and “Item3: Legal Proceedings.”

Employees
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Asof December3l, 2002, eBay Inc. and itsconsolidated subsidiaries employed approximately 4,000 persons, of whom approximately 3,100
were in the United States. Our future successis substantially dependent on the performance of our executive and senior management and key
technical personnel, and our continuing ability to find and retain highly qualified technical and managerial personnel.

Segments
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Segment selectionis based upon our internal organization structure, the manner in which our operations are managed, the measurement of the
performance of our operations evaluated by managementin the chief operating decision-maker capacity, the availability of separate financial
information and overall materiality considerations.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the growth of our international operations and our acquisition of PayPal prompted us to changethe basisfor
measuring our financial performance and evaluating resource allocations, andtherefore our reportable segments. We changed our business
segments from Online and Offline services to U.S,, International, and Paymentsoperations. This new segment structure reflects the new
composition of our business. Additionally, we changed theinternal measurement basis of segment performance from operating income before
certain itemsto adirect contribution measure of profitability.

Direct contribution consists of net revenues less direct costs. Direct costs include specific costs of net revenues, sales and marketing expenses,
and general and administrative expenses over which segment managers have direct discretionary control such as advertising and marketing
programs, customer support expenses, bank charges, provisions for doubtful accounts, authorized credits and transaction losses. Expenses over
which segment managersdo not have discretionary control, such assite operations costs, product development expenses, and general and
administrative costs, are monitored by management through shared cost centers and are not evaluated in the measurement of segment
performance.

The U.S. segment comprises U.S. online trading platforms other than PayPal and Billpoint, Inc. The International segment comprises our
international online trading platforms. The Payments segment comprises our global payments platform consisting of our PayPal and Billpoint
subsidiaries. The Payments amounts reflect Billpoint’s historical operations and PayPal’ s operations for the post-acquisition period from
October4, 2002 through December31, 2002. We have previously announced that we intend to discontinue Billpoint’s operations in thefirst half
of 2003. Billpaint’s operations will continue to be reflected in the Payments segment results until the wind-down of Billpoint operationsis
compl eted.

For geographic reporting purposes, net revenues and long-lived assets of the Payments segment are allocated between the U.S. and
International regions based upon the country in which the revenue was generated or in which theasset islocated. See “Note 4 — Segment
Information” of the notesto our Consolidated Financial Statements, which isincorporated by reference herein.

Available Information
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Our Internet addressis www.ebay.com . Our investor relations website islocated at www.shareholder.convebay . We make available free of
charge on this website under “SEC Filings’ our Annua Reports on Form10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form10-Q, Current Reports on Form8-K
and
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amendmentsto those reports assoon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or furnish such materias to the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

ITEM 22 PROPERTIE
S

OnMarchl, 2000, we entered into a five-year lease for general officefacilities located in San Jose, California. Thisfive-year leaseis
commonly referred to as a synthetic lease because it representsa form of off-balance sheet financing under which an unrelated third-party funds
100% of the costs of theacquisition of the property and leases the asset to us as lessee. Under our lease structure, upon termination or
expiration, at our option, we must either purchase the property from thelessor for a predetermined amount or sell thereal property to athird
party. Our San Jose |ease consists of approximately 460,000 square feet of office space. Asof December31, 2002, we occupied approximately
314,000 square feet of this total office space and subleased additional space in the facility to third parties.

Paymentsunder our lease are based on the $126.4million cost of the property funded by thethird party and are adjusted as the London
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, fluctuates. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the lease terminates on Marchl, 2005, unless extended
to Septemberl, 2006. At any time prior to thefinal 12months of the lease term, we may, at our option, purchase the property for approximately
$126.4million. If we elect not to purchase the property, we will undertake to sell the facility to one or morethird parties and have guaranteed to
the lessor aresidua value equal to approximately 88% of the $126.4million cost of the property. Our maximum exposureto lossis theentire
amount of $126.4million if we default on any of certain lease obligations and financial covenants. If thispayment were made, we would then
receivetitle to theproperty. At December3l, 2002, we had not made a decision with respect to which option we will pursue at the end of the
lease term. Management believes that the contingent liability relating to theresidual value guarantee will not have a material adverse effect on
our financia condition, resultsof operations or cash flows. See “Note 9 — Operating L ease Arrangements’ and “Note 6 — Derivative
Instruments” of the notesto our Consolidated Financial Statements, which are incorporated by reference herein.

InJanuary 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued FASB Interpretation No.46, or FIN 46, “ Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities.” Thisinterpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” addresses
consolidation by business enterprisesof certain variableinterest entities where thereisa controlling financial interestin avariableinterest entity
or where thevariable interest entity does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial
support fromother parties. Thisinterpretation applies immediately to variable interest entities created after January31, 2003 and appliesin the
first year or interim period beginning after Junel5, 2003 to variable interest entitiesin which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it
acquired before Februaryl, 2003. We expect that the adoption of FIN 46 will require usto include our San Josefacilities lease and potentially
certain investmentsin our Consolidated Financial Statements effective July1, 2003. In connection with our San Jose facilities lease
arrangement, our balance sheet following the July1, 2003 adoption of FIN 46 will reflect changesto record assets of $126.4million, liabilities of
$122.5million and non-controlling interests of $3.9million. In addition, our post-adoption income statement will reflect the reclassification of
rent expense paymentsfrom operating expenses to interest expense aswell as therecognition of depreciation expense, within operating
expenses, for our use of the buildings. We estimate that the income statement impact of consolidating our San Jose facilities lease will consist of
a charge against earnings, net of taxes, of $5.6million upon the adoption of FIN 46 on Julyl, 2003. This charge will reflect the accumulated
depreciation charges that would have been recorded in previous periods had consolidation of the San Josefacilities been required. Additionaly,
we have not decided whether we will keep the existing financing arrangement or purchase the San Jose facilities. Whether or not we keep the
existing financing arrangement, we anticipate recording additional annual operating expenses of $1.7million, net of taxes, for therecognition of
depreciation expense on the buildings. In the event we purchase the San Josefacilities, wewill aso pay $126.4million, eliminate financing
payments and settle our two interest rate swaps we used to establish a fixed rate of interest for $95million of our financing arrangement. During
the year ended December31, 2002, our financing
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paymentsrelated to the San Jose facilities totaled $7.9million. At December31, 2002, settlement of our two interest rate swapswould have
resulted in aloss of $10.9million.

Our U.S. segment occupies approximately 434,000 squarefeet of commercial office space in the United States. We occupy 314,000 square
feet of commercia office space in San Jose, California under theterms of our synthetic lease for our corporate headquarters. We own and
occupy approximately 72,000 square feet of commercial office space in Salt Lake City, Utah for our domestic customer support center. We

lease and occupy anadditional 48,000 square feet of commercial office space in various domestic locationsfor the operations of certain U.S.
subsidiaries.

Our International segment |eases approximately 210,000 square feet of commercial office space in 12 countries for our international
operations, including the operations of our South Korean majority-owned subsidiary.

Our Payments segment |eases approximately 126,000 square feet of commercia office space in the United States and the United Kingdom. In
addition, our Paymentssegment owns approximately 22 acres of land near Omaha, Nebraska, on which a 115,000 sguare foot facility isunder
construction. Upon completion, thisfacility will housethe primary customer service operations center for our Payments segment.

In 2002, we sold commercial real estate propertiesin California and Indianatotaling approximately 551,000 square feet, primarily in
connection with the salesof our Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries. Asof December31, 2002, we continued to be the mgjority interest holder
in approximately 156,000 square feet of commercial rea estate in California.

InFebruary 2003, we entered into an operating sublease for approximately 110,000 square feet of commercial office space (offset by a
sublease back to the primelessee of approximately 37,000 square feet of that space) in Vancouver, British Columbia to house a customer
support center. For further discussion of the Vancouver lease, see “Notel7— Subsequent Events— Unaudited” to our Consolidated Financial
Statements, which isincorporated by reference herein.

Weare currently considering various alternatives related to our long-term facilities needs. Whilewe believe our existing facilities are adequate
to meet our immediate needs, it may become necessary to lease or acquire additional or aternative space to accomodate our future growth.

ITEM 3: LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS

On April25, 2001, our European subsidiaries, eBay GmbH and eBay International AG, were sued by MontresRolex S.A. and certain Rolex
affiliates, or Rolex, in theregional court of Cologne, Germany. The suit subsequently was transferred to the regional court in Dusseldorf,
Germany. Rolex alleged that our subsidiaries were infringing Rolex’ strademarks asa result of users selling counterfeit Rolex watchesthrough
our German website. The suit also alleges unfair competition. Rolex sought an order forbidding the sale of Rolex watches on the website aswell
as damages. In December 2002, atrial was held in the matter and the court ruled in favor of eBay on al causes of action. Rolex has appealed
the ruling, but the appeal hasnot yet been briefed or heard.

On September26, 2001, a complaint was filed by MercExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsidiary and ReturnBuy, Inc. in the Eastern
District of Virginia (No.2:01-CV-736) aleging infringement of three patents (relating to online auction technology, multiple database searching
and electronic consignment systems) and seeking a permanent injunction and damages (including treble damages for willful infringement). We
answered the complaint, denying theallegations. In April 2002, we filed four motions for summary judgment relating to thethree patents in suit.
The court denied three of those motions and deferred ruling on thefourth motion. A “Markman” hearing washeld in July 2002 to define certain
disputed terms in the patents, and in October 2002 the court issued its claim construction findings. In October 2002, the court gave usleave to
amend our answer to include a claim that MercExchange committed fraud on the patent office during the prosecution of one of the patents. On
the samedate, the court granted in part our pending summary judgment motion, effectively invalidating the

17

meres o SO irssss 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

patent related to online auction technology and rendering it unenforceable. In November 2002, we filed two additional summary judgment
motions regarding the patents. One motion was denied as moot; the other was denied because the court found there were triable issues of fact.
In February 2003, we filed an additional summary judgment motion, which is still pending. Only two patents remain in the case at this time.
Trial isscheduled for April22, 2003. We believe we have meritorious defenses and will defend ourselves vigorously. However, even if
successful, our defenseagainst this action will be costly and could divert our management’ stime. If the plaintiff were to prevail on any of its
claims, we might be forced to pay significant damages and licensing fees, modify our business practices or even be enjoined from conducting a
significant part of our U.S. business. Any such results could materially harm our business. We are unable to determine what potential losses we
may incur if thislawsuit were to have anunfavorable outcome.

On September6, 2002, a complaint was filed by First USA Bank, N.A. against PayPal in the District of Delaware (N0.02-CV-1462) alleging
infringement of two patents relating to assigning an alias to a credit card so as to eliminate the need for the physical presence of the card ina
transaction and seeking a permanent injunction and damages. PayPal believes it has meritorious defenses and intends to defend itself
vigorously. However, even if successful, our defense against this action will be costly and could divert management’ stime. If the plaintiff were
to prevail onits claims, PayPal might be forced to pay significant damages and licensing fees or modify its business practices. Any such result
could materially harm our business. We are unable to determine what potential losses we may incur if this suit were to have anunfavorable
outcome,

On August16, 2002, Charles E. Hill Associates, Inc., or Hill, filed alawsuit inthe U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas (No.
2:02-CV-186) aleging that we and 17 other companies, primarily large retailers, infringed three patents owned by Hill generaly relating to
electronic catalog systems and methods for transmitting and updating data at a remote computer. The suit seeks aninjunction against continuing
infringement, unspecified damages, including treble damages for willful infringement, and interest, costs, expenses and fees. In January 2003,
the court granted the collective defendants' motion to transfer the case fromthe court where it wasfiled in Marshall, Texasto the Federal
District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. We believe that we have meritorious defenses and intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

On February20, 2002, PayPal wassued in California state court in a purported class action aleging that its restriction of customer accounts and
failureto promptly unrestrict legitimate accounts violates state consumer protection law and is an unfair business practice and a breach of
PayPal’s User Agreement. This action wasrefiled with a different named plaintiff on June6, 2002, and a related action wasfiled inthe U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of California on the same day. On March12, 2002, PayPal was sued in theU.S. Digtrict Court for the
Northern District of Californiain a purported class action alleging that its restrictions of customer accounts and failureto promptly unrestrict
legitimate accounts violates federal and state consumer protection and unfair business practice law. The court has denied PayPal’s motionto
compel individual arbitration asrequired by the PayPal User Agreement and has invalidated that provision of the User Agreement. The two
federal court actions have been consolidated into asingle case. PayPal is defending itself vigorously, but if it is unable to prevail in these
lawsuits, it may have to change itsanti-fraud operations in a manner that will harm its business and pay substantial damages. Evenif its defense
is successful, thelitigation could damage PayPal’ s reputation, could require significant management time, will be costly and could require
changesto its customer service and operations that could increase its costs and decrease the effectiveness of its anti-fraud program.

Threepurported class action complaints werefiled following announcement of the PayPal merger in July 2002 in the court of Chancery in the
State of Delaware in and for New Castle County by alleged stockholdersof PayPal. Two additional purported class action complaints were filed
inthe Superior Court of the State of California, County of Santa Clara, by aleged PayPal stockholders. These complaints name as defendants
PayPal and each member of itsboard of directors as well as eBay. The complaints are purported class actions that allege, among other things,
that eBay controlled PayPal prior to the execution of their merger agreement, the defendants breached fiduciary dutiesthey assertedly owed to

PayPal’s
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stockholders in connection with PayPal entering into the merger agreement and the exchange ratioin the merger wasunfair andinadequate. The
plaintiffs seek, among other things, an award of unspecified compensatory damages. We believe that each of the lawsuits is without merit and
intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

Other third parties have from time to time claimed, and others may claimin the future that we have infringed their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We have in the past been forced to litigate such claims. We may become more vulnerableto such claimsas laws
such asthe Digital Millennium Copyright Act and Communications Decency Act areinterpreted by the courts and as weexpand into
jurisdictions wherethe underlying laws with respect to the potential liability of online intermediaries like ourselves is lessfavorable. We expect
that we will increasingly be subject to copyright and trademark infringement claims as the geographical reach of our services expands. We aso
expect that we will increasingly be subject to patent infringement claims as our services expand. In particular, we expect that patent
infringement claims involving various aspects of our Payments business will continue to be made. We have been notified of several potential
disputes and are subject to a suit by Tumbleweed Communications Corporation that is currently ongoing. These claims, whether meritorious or
not, could be time-consuming, result in costly litigation, cause service upgrade delays, require expensive changes in our methods of doing
business or could require usto enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements, if available. Asaresult, these claims could harm our business.

ITEM 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERSTO AVOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Therewere no submissionsof matters to a vote of security holders during thefourth quarter ended December31, 2002.
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PART Il
ITEMS: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'SCOMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS

Price Range of Common Stock

prrt v S8 bman 2003, EDGAR Online, Inc.




eBay’s common stock has been traded on The Nasdag Stock MarketSM under the symbol “EBAY” since September24, 1998. The following
table setsforth the intra-day high and low per share bid prices of eBay’s common stock for the periods indicated, as reported by The Nasdaq
Stock Market SM

High Low

Y ear Ended December31, 2001

First Quarter $ 5513 $ 2844

Second Quarter 71.30 29.25

Third Quarter 70.20 40.48

Fourth Quarter 72.74 44.00
Y ear Ended December31, 2002

First Quarter 69.50 48.85

Second Quarter 64.10 49.25

Third Quarter 62.47 51.05

Fourth Quarter 70.85 50.22

Asof February28, 2003, there were approximately 2,000 stockholders of record of eBay’s common stock, although eBay believesthat there is
asignificantly larger number of beneficial owners of our common stock.

Dividend Poalicy
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We have never paid cash dividends on our stock, and currently anticipate that we will continue to retain any future earnings to financethe
growth of our business.

Equity Compensation Plans
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For information on securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans, refer to “Equity Compensation Plan Information”
under Item 12, whichisincorporated by reference herein.
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ITEM 6:SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified by referenceto, the Consolidated
Financia Statements and Notes thereto and “Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations’
appearing elsawherein this Annual Report on Form10-K. The consolidated statement of income and the consolidated balance sheet data for the
yearsended December31, 1998, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002 are derived from, and are qualified by reference to, our audited Consolidated
Financia Statements.

On October3, 2002, we completed our acquisition of PayPal, Inc. in atax-free, stock-for-stock transaction. PayPal provides aglobal payments
platform and is headquartered in Mountain View, California. The PayPal financial statements areincluded in our Consolidated Financia
Statements for the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002.

Year Ended December 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statement of 1ncome Data:

Net revenues $ 86,129 $ 224724 $ 431424 $ 748,821 $ 1,214,100
Cost of net revenues 16,094 57,588 95,453 134,816 213,876
Gross profit 70,035 167,136 335,971 614,005 1,000,224
Operating expenses.
Salesand marketing 35,976 96,239 166,767 253,474 349,650
Product development 4,640 24,847 55,863 75,288 104,636
General and 15,849 43,919 73,027 105,784 171,785
administrative
Payroll taxes on stock — — 2,337 2,442 4,015
option gains
Amortization of 805 1,145 1,433 36,591 15,941
acquired intangible
assets
Merger related costs — 4,359 1,550 — —
Total operating 57,270 170,509 300,977 473,579 646,027
expenses
Income (loss)from 12,765 (3,373) 34,994 140,426 354,197
operations
Interest and other income 1,799 23,833 46,337 41,613 49,209
(expense), net
Interest expense (2,191) (2,319) (3,374) (2,851) (1,492)
Impairment of certain — — — (16,245 ) (3,781 )
equity investments
Income before income 12,373 18,141 77,957 162,943 398,133
taxes and minority interests
Provisionfor incometaxes (4,789 ) (8,472) (32,725 ) (80,009 ) (145,946 )
Minority interests in (311) (102) 3,062 7,514 (2,296 )
consolidated companies
Net income $ 7,273 $ 9,567 $ 48294 $ 90,448 $ 249,891
Net incomeper share:
Basic $ 0.07 $ 0.04 $ 0.19 $ 0.34 $ 0.87
Diluted $ 0.03 $ 0.04 $ 0.17 $ 0.32 $ 0.85
Weighted average shares:
Basic 104,128 217,674 251,776 268,971 287,496
Diluted 233,519 273,033 280,346 280,595 292,820
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Year Ended December 31,

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(in millions)

Supplemental Operating Data:

Number of registered users at end of period 2.2 10.0 225 424 61.7
Number of items listed 33.7 129.6 264.7 423.1 638.3
Gross merchandise sales $ 745 $ 2805 $ 5422 $ 9319 $ 14,868
PayPal accounts at end of period — — — — 233
PayPal number of payments(1) — — — — 39.2
PayPal total payment volume(1) — — — —  $ 2138

(1) Amountsshown arefor the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002.

December 31,
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

(in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3728 $ 221801 $ 201,873 $ 523969 $ 1,109,313
Short-term investments 40,401 181,086 354,166 199,450 89,690
Long-terminvestments — 373,988 218,197 286,998 470,227
Long-termrestricted cash and investments — — 126,390 129,614 134,644
Working capital 72,934 372,266 538,022 703,666 1,082,234
Total assets 149,536 969,825 1,182,403 1,678,529 4,124,444
Long-term debt 18,361 15,018 11,404 12,008 13,798
Total stockholders' equity 100,538 854,129 1,013,760 1,429,138 3,556,473

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

ThisAnnual Report on Form10-K contains forward-looking statements based on our current expectations about our company and our
industry. You can identify these forward-looking statementswhen you see us using words such as“ may,” “will,” “should,” “ expect,”
“anticipate,” “ believe,” “ estimate,” “intend,” “ plan” and other similar expressions. You can also identify forward-looking statements by
discussions of strategy, plans or intentions. These forward-looking statementsinvolve risksand uncertainties. Our actual results could differ
materially fromthose anticipated in these forward-looking statements as aresult of the factors described in the* Risk Factors That May Affect
Results of Operations and Financial Condition” section below and elsewhere in this report. We undertake no obligation to publicly update
any forward-looking statements for any reason, even if new information becomes available or other eventsoccur in the future.

" ow " ou "o

Overview
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About eBay

We pioneered online trading by devel oping a Web-based marketplace in whicha community of buyers and sellers are brought together in an
entertaining, intuitive, easy-to-use environment to browse, buy and sell an enormousvariety of items. Through our PayPal service, we enable
any business or consumer with email to send and receive online payments securely, conveniently and cost-effectively.
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Business Combinations

Historically, we have completed severa business combinations accounted for using the pooling-of-interests and purchase methods of
accounting. The historical financial information related to companies acquired in pooling-of-interests transactions wasretroactively restated at
the time of acquisition, whereas the results of companies acquired under the purchase method of accounting were consolidated with our results
on a prospective basisfrom the acquisition date. During the years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, the aggregate purchase price of
acquisitions accounted for under the purchase method totaled approximately $1.9hillion. This aggregate purchase price was alocated to
goodwill of $1.5hillion, identifiable intangible assets of $297million, net tangible assets of $189million, deferred tax liabilities of $43million,
minority interest of $34million and unearned compensation of $10million. See “Note3— Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible
Assets’ to our Consolidated Financial Statements, whichisincorporated by reference herein.

Resultsof Operations
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Thefollowing table setsforth, for the periods presented, certain data from our consolidated statement of income as a percentage of net
revenues. Theinformation contained in the table below should be read in conjunction with Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and
Estimates as well asthe Consolidated Financial Satements and Notes thereto included elsewherein this Annual Report on Form10-K.

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net revenues 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
Cost of net revenues 221 18.0 17.6
Gross profit 77.9 82.0 824

Operating expenses.

Sales and marketing 38.7 338 28.8

Product development 129 10.1 8.6

General and administrative 16.9 141 14.1

Payroll taxes on stock option gains 0.5 0.3 0.3

Amortization of acquired intangible assets 0.3 4.9 13

Merger related costs 04 — —

Total operating expenses 69.7 63.2 531

Income from operations 8.2 18.8 29.3
Interest and other income, net 10.7 5.6 4.1
Interest expense (0.8) 04) 0.1)
Impairment of certain equity investments — (2.2) (0.3)
Income before incometaxes and minority interests 18.1 21.8 32.8
Provision for income taxes (7.6) (10.7) (12.0)
Minority interests in consolidated companies 0.7 1.0 (0.2)
Net income 11.2 % 121 % 20.6 %
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Net Revenues

Percent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)

Transaction net revenues

us. $ 315193 51 % $ 474,970 51% $ 718,239
International 27,942 297 % 110,802 168 % 297,485
Payments 5,039 235 % 16,899 452 % 93,303
Total transaction net revenues 348,174 73 % 602,671 84 % 1,109,027

3rd party advertising net revenues
uU.s. 11,986 572 % 80,493 (32 )% 54,906
International 1,036 224 % 3,360 38 % 4,651
Payments — — — — 1,478
Total 3rd party advertising net 13,022 544 % 83,853 (27 )% 61,035

revenues

End-to-end services net revenues
uU.Ss. 30,756 (12 )% 27,132 (20 )% 21,647
Payments — — 749 (22 )% 587
Total end-to-end services net 30,756 (9)% 27,881 (20 )% 22,234

revenues

Offline net revenues 39,472 (13 )% 34,416 (37 )% 21,804
Total net revenues $ 431,424 74 % $ 748,821 62% $ 1,214,100
U.S. segment net revenues $ 397,407 55 % $ 617,011 R2% $ 816,596
International segment net revenues 28,978 294 % 114,162 165 % 302,136
Payments segment net revenues 5,039 250 % 17,648 440 % 95,368
$ 431,424 74 % $ 748821 62% $ 1,214,100

Net Revenues by Geography

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
U.S. net revenues $ 402,446 58 % $ 634,659 4% $ 897,701
International net revenues 28,978 294 % 114,162 177 % 316,399
Total net revenues $ 431,424 4% $ 748,821 62 % $ 1,214,100

Net revenues are allocated between U.S. and International geographies based upon the country in which theseller, advertiser or end-to-end
service provider islocated.
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Percent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in millions, except per cents)

Supplemental Operating Data:

Confirmed registered users at end of year 225 8 % 124 4% 61.7
Number of itemslisted 264.7 2 % 4231 g % 638.3
Gross merchandise sales $ 5422 g% $ 9,319 é % $ 14,868
PayPal accounts at end of period — —2 — —0 233
PayPal number of payments(1) — — — — 39.2
PayPal total payment volume(1) — — — — $ 2138

(1)  Amountsshown arefor the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002.

Our net revenues result from fees associated with our transaction, third-party advertising, end-to-end services, and offline services in our U.S,,
International and Payments segments. Transaction revenue is derived primarily from listing, feature and final value fees paid by sellers and fees
from payment processing services. Revenue from third-party advertising is derived principally from the sale of online banner and sponsorship
advertisements for cash and through barter arrangements. End-to-end services revenueis derived principally from contractual arrangements
with third parties that provide transaction servicesto eBay and PayPal users. Offline services revenue is derived from a variety of sources
including seller commissions, buyer premiums, bidder registration fees and auction-related servicesincluding appraisal and authentication.

The successive year-over-year growth in net revenues from 2000 through 2002, wasprimarily theresult of increased auction transaction
activity, reflected in the growth of the number of registered users, listings and gross merchandise sales. Our acquisition of iBazar S.A. and of a
majority interest in Internet Auction Co., Ltd. during 2001 contributed lessthan 3% of our net revenuesduring theyear ended December31,
2001. Acquisitions of PayPal, Inc., NeoCom Technology Co., Ltd. and the remaining 50% interest in our Australian subsidiary during 2002,
contributed approximately 6% of our net revenues during the year ended December31, 2002. Our revenue growth during these periods was aso
positively impacted by fee increases in the U.S. and various international locations.

Revenue fromU.S. and International Segments
Transaction Net Revenue

U.S. segment transaction net revenue increased 51% between 2000 and 2001 and 51% between 2001 and 2002. International segment
transaction net revenue increased 297% between 2000 and 2001 and 168% between 2001 and 2002. The successive year-over-year growth in
U.S. and International segment transaction net revenuesfrom 2000 to 2002 wasprimarily theresult of increased auction transaction activity,
reflected in the growth of the number of registered users, listings and gross merchandise sales. We experienced transaction net revenue growth
across all categories during 2001 and 2002 withmotors, computers, consumer electronics, collectibles, and books/music/movies making the
most significant impact. International segment transaction net revenue as a percentage of consolidated transaction net revenue was 8% in 2000,
18% in 2001 and 27% in 2002. This growth is primarily the result of strong performance in Germany, the United Kingdom, Canada and South
Korea. We expect international segment transaction net revenues will continueto grow in significanceto our business as we develop and deploy
our global marketplace. In addition, new regulations in the European Union relating to the collection of value-added taxes, or VAT, on digital
services will require usto collect and remit VAT on our own feesbeginning in July 2003. We intend to work with the relevant tax authoritiesto
clarify our obligations under these regulations andto change our software to permit the billing of these taxes. The increased coststo our
European users may reduce their activity on our websites and could adversely affect our international transaction net revenues.
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Third-party Advertising Net Revenue

U.S. third-party advertising net revenue increased as a percentage of total U.S. segment net revenuesfrom 3% in 2000 to 13% in 2001. The
increase during 2001 was primarily the result of our strategy to increase overall site monetization and the effortsof AOL Time Warner, Inc. or
AOL, our exclusive advertising salesrepresentative. During theyear ended December31, 2002, U.S. segment third-party advertising decreased
in both absolute dollars, from $80.5million in 2001 to $54.9million in 2002, and as a percentage of total U.S.segment net revenues, from 13%
in 2001 to 7% in 2002. Revenues from U.S.segment third-party advertising decreased during 2002 primarily as a result of a general
deterioration in theonline advertising market that adversely impacted our advertising salesthrough AOL. International segment third-party
advertising net revenue decreased as a percentage of total International net revenuesfrom 4% to 3% to 2% in 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively. Although the absolute dollar amount of International segment third-party advertising net revenuesincreased during each of these
periods, thedecreases in International segment third-party advertising as a percentage of total International segment net revenues were primarily
the result of transaction net revenuesgrowing faster than advertising net revenues. We continueto view our business as primarily transaction
driven and we expect third-party advertising net revenues in future periods to continueto decrease as apercentage of total net revenues andin
absolute dollars. Additionally, our advertising salesrepresentative agreement with AOL has not been extended or renewed and is scheduled to
terminate on March31, 2003, with AOL to continueits electronic delivery of our online advertisements for a specified wind-down period. After
March31, 2003, our third-party advertising revenueswill be dependent on the efforts of our existing internal sales staff.

End-to-End Services Net Revenue

U.S. segment end-to-end services net revenue decreased successively in absolute dollarsfrom $30.8million in 2000 to $27.1million in 2001 to
$21.6million in 2002 and as a percentage of total U.S.segment net revenuesfrom 8% in 2000 to 4% in 2001 to 3% in 2002. As end-to-end
services are contractual and are largely dependent upon contractual terms and our users' adoption of third-party products and services, we
expect end-to-end services revenue in future periods to fluctuate from period to period, however, in general, we expect these revenues to
decrease as a percentage of total net revenues and in absolute dollars.

Offline Net Revenue

Offline net revenue decreased as a percentage of total U.S.segment net revenues from 9% to 5% to 2% in 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
During theyear ended December31, 2001, offline net revenue decreased in both absolute dollars and asa percentage of total U.S.segment net
revenues compared to 2000, primarily as aresult of a general softening in the offline auction and high-end art markets. During the year ended
December31, 2002, offline net revenue decreased in both absolute dollars and asa percentage of total U.S.segment net revenues compared to
2001, primarily asaresult of our divestiture of both our Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries. Accordingly, we do not expect to earn offline net

revenue in the foreseeable future.
Net Revenues from Payments Segment

Net revenues from the Payments segment are generated from eBay’ s Billpoint operations for each of the years presented and PayPal’ s
operations for the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002. See “Note3— Business Combinations, Goodwill
and Intangible Assets’ to the consolidated notes to the financial statementsfor pro formaresults of operations.

Transaction Net Revenue

Paymentssegment transaction net revenueincreased 235% year-over-year between 2000 and 2001 and 452% between 2001 and 2002. The
year-over-year growthin 2001 was theresult of increased transaction volume processed by eBay’s Billpoint payment services. The growth in
2002 wasprimarily theresult of our
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acquisition of PayPal. For the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002, PayPal recorded transaction net
revenue of $72.6million. We expect to wind-down our Billpoint payment operations during the first half of 2003.

Third-party Advertising and End-to-End Services Net Revenues

Paymentssegment revenues from third-party advertising and end-to-end services decreased as a percentage of total Payments segment net
revenues from 4% in 2001 to 2% in 2002 as transaction net revenuesgrew faster than third-party advertising and end-to-end services net
revenues. We continueto view our business as primarily transaction driven, and we expect Payments segment third-party advertising and

end-to-end net revenues in future periods to continueto decrease asa percentage of total net revenuesand in absolute dollars.

Cost of Net Revenues

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(inthousands, except percent changes)
Cost of net revenues $ 95453 41 % $ 134,816 50 % $ 213,876
As a percentage of net revenues 22 % 18 % 18 %

Cost of net revenuesconsists primarily of costs associated with customer support, site operations, and payment processing. Significant cost
components include employee compensation and facilities costsfor customer support, site operations, Internet connectivity charges,
depreciation of site equipment, payment processing fees, amortization of reguired capitalization of major site and product development costs,
including the amortization of capitalized costsrelated to the development of our third generation “V3” site architecture, coststo provide
end-to-end services and promotions and corporate overhead allocations.

Cost of net revenuesincreased in absolute dollars but decreased asa percentage of net revenues from 2000 to 2001. Thisincrease in absolute
dollars was duealmost entirely to our online business aswe continued to develop and expand our customer support and site operations
infrastructure. The increases were primarily theresult of personnel costs, depreciation of the equipment required for site operations, software
licensing fees, Internet connectivity charges and theincreased costs associated withacquired businesses. The decrease in cost of net revenuesas
a percentage of net revenue resulted from cost management initiatives and lower technology costs in site operations and increases in higher
gross margin businesses such as autos, third-party advertising and end-to-end servicesand promotions. The combined effect of these activities
resulted in our cost of net revenues per listing decreasing from $0.36 in 2000 to $0.32 in 2001.

Cost of net revenuesincreased in absolute dollars but remained constant asa percentage of net revenues from 2001 to 2002. Thisincrease in
absolute dollars wasdue to increased payment processing costs resulting from our acquisition of PayPal and continued devel opment and
expansion of our customer support and site operations infrastructure. The increase in payment processing costs totaled $50.4million and
consists of bank charges, credit card interchange fees, and other processing charges. The increase in customer support and site operations costs
were primarily the result of increased depreciation of site operations software and equipment of $10.9million and personnel costs of
$7.7million. Cost of net revenues stayed constant asa percentage of net revenue from 2001 to 2002 and reflectscost efficienciesin both
customer support and site operations offset by the addition of PayPal’slower margin payments processing business. The combined effect of
these activitiesresulted in our cost of net revenues per listing increasing from $0.32 in 2001 to $0.34 in 2002. We expect the cost of net
revenues to increase in absolute dollars and increase as a percentage of net revenues in 2003 as a result of the addition of afull year of PayPal’s
lower margin payments processing business.

27

meres o SO irssss 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing
Per cent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)
Sales and marketing $ 166,767 52 % $ 253,474 38% $ 349,650
As a percentage of net revenues 39 % 34 % 29 %

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of employee compensation for our category development and marketing staff, advertising,
tradeshow and other promotional costs, certain trust and safety programs and corporate overhead allocations.

The growthin absolute dollars from 2000 to 2001 was primarily the result of growthin online and offline advertising, employee compensation
costs, costs associated with the use of outside services and consultants, additional costs associated with acquired businesses, and miscellaneous
user and promotional costs.

The growthin absolute dollars from 2001 to 2002 was primarily the result of increased advertising and marketing costs. Our advertising costs
increased by $54.7million and were directed towards a national television advertising campaign and several category focused print and on-line
advertising campaigns. Additionally, our referral feespaid to marketing partners increased by $12.6million during the year in connection with
the growth of specific categories, our expenses related to tradeshows and user programs increased by $5.4million and our professional services
fees increased by $5.1million. Our advertising effortstarget the acquisition of registered users and activation of existing users through
television, print media placements, promotional agreementswith Internet portals and other online service providers. Sales and marketing
expenses are expected to increase in absolute dollars, and to decrease as a percentage of net revenues in 2003. See “Notell— Commitments
and Contingencies— Advertising” to our Consolidated Financial Statements, whichisincorporated by reference herein.

Product Devel opment

Per cent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)
Product development $ 55,863 3B% $ 75288 9% $ 104,636
As a percentage of net revenues 13 % 10 % 9 %

Product development expenses consist primarily of employee compensation, paymentsto outside contractors, depreciation on equipment used
for development and corporate overhead allocations. Product development expenses do not reflect required capitalization of mgjor site and
product development efforts, including the development of our third generation “V 3" site architecture. These capitalized coststotaling
$9.4million in 2000, $6.7million in 2001, and $15.5million in 2002 are reflected asa cost of revenue when amortized. We anticipate that we
will continueto devote significant resources to product development in the future as we add new features and functionality to the eBay and
PayPal platforms.

The increase in absolute dollars from 2000 to 2001 was primarily theresult of increases in employee compensation costs, reflected by the
growthin our development staff, whichincreased from 203 at December31, 2000 to 320 at December31, 2001, and maintenance and
depreciation costsfor equipment used in product development. The increase in these costs resultsfrom the development of additional site
features and functionality such as eBay Stores, eBay Checkout, enhanced payment features and expanded search capabilities.

The increase in absolute dollarsfrom 2001 to 2002 was primarily as a result of an $18.9million increase in employee compensation costs,
reflected by the growth in our development staff, which increased from 320 at December31, 2001 to 635 at December31, 2002, anda
$7.3million increase in
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mai ntenance and depreciation costs for equipment used in research and development. The increase in these costs results from the development
of additiona site features and functionality such as enhanced search functionality, improved seller tools, expanded eBay Stores merchandising
capabilities, added fixed price functionality and improved site security. Product devel opment expenses are expected to increase in absolute
dollars in 2003, as we develop new site features and functionality and continueto improve and expand operations acrossall our segments. We
expect product development expenses as a percentage of net revenues in 2003 to remain generally consistent with 2002 levels.

General and Administrative

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(inthousands, except percent changes)
Genera and administrative $ 73027 45 % $ 105,784 62 % $ 171,785
As a percentage of net revenue 17 % 14 % 14 %

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee compensation, provision for doubtful accounts, provisions for transaction
losses associated with our Paymentssegment, insurance, fees for external professional advisorsand corporate overhead allocations.

Theincrease in absolute dollars from 2000 to 2001 was primarily theresult of increases in employee compensation costs, reflected by the
growthin our general and administrative staff, whichincreased from 302 at December31, 2000 to 415 at December31, 2001, provisions for
doubtful accounts, fees for professional servicesand facilities costs. The increase in these costs reflected our investment in the infrastructure
that is necessary to support the growth of our business.

The increase in absolute dollarsfrom 2001 to 2002 was primarily theresult of increases of $16.0millioninfees for professional services,
$12.2million in theprovision for doubtful accounts, $7.8millionin theprovision for transaction losses, and $6.5million in facilities costs. These
costsincreased to meet the demands of our expanding business, including operations in new countries and the integration of new businesses. To
support thisgrowth, we increased our general and administrative staff from 415 at December31, 2001 to 1,253 at December31, 2002, which
includes the addition of approximately 360 general and administrative employees resulting from our acquisition of PayPal. Of these incremental
PayPal employees, a substantial number support PayPal’ s various trust and safety programs. The headcount increase helped us strengthen the
existing teamsin corporate finance, corporate development, legal and accounting departments aswell as in our growing international
operations. We expect that general and administrative expenseswill increase in absolute dollars in 2003, as we continueto invest in the
infrastructure that is necessary to support our business. Additionally, we expect 2003 general and administrative expenseto increase as a
percentage of net revenues with the addition of afull year of PayPal’s operations.

Payroll Taxeson Sock Option Gains

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)
Payroll taxes on stock option gains $ 2,337 4% $ 2442 64 % $ 4,015
Asa percentage of net revenues 1% 0% 0%

We are subject to employer payroll taxeson employee gainsresulting from exercises of non-qualified stock options. These employer payroll
taxes are recorded as a charge to operations in the period in which such options are exercised and sold based on actual gainsrealized by
employees. Our quarterly results of operations and cash flows could vary significantly depending on the actua period that stock options are

exercised by employeesand, consequently, the amount of employer payroll taxes assessed. We expect exercises of employee stock option
grants will result inincreased payroll tax costsin 2003 partially asa
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result of gains fromthe exercise of PayPal options assumed in themerger. Ingeneral, weexpect payroll taxes on employee stock option gains
to increase during periods in which our stock priceis high relative to historic levels.

Amortization of Acquired Intangible Assets

2000

Amortization of acquired intangibleassets $ 1,433

As a percentage of net revenues

0%

Per cent Per cent

Change 2001 Change 2002
(inthousands, except percent changes)

2453 % $ 36,591 (56 )% $ 15941

5% 1%

Fromtimeto time we have purchased, and we expect to continue purchasing, assets or businessesto accelerate category and geographic
expansion, increase the features and functions available to our users and maintain aleading role in online trading. These purchase transactions
may result in the creation of acquired intangible assets and lead to a corresponding increase in the amortization expense in future periods.

Intangible assets are comprised of purchased customer lists, developed technologies, trade names, and other intangible assets. Intangible assets,
excluding goodwill, are being amortized using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging fromtwo to seven years. We believe
the straight-line method of amortization best represents the distribution of economic value of the identified intangible assets.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over thefair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. In accordance with SFAS No.142, goodwill isno longer subject to amortization. Rather, goodwill is subject to at least an

annual assessment for impairment, applying a fair-value based test.

Amortization of acquired intangible assets decreased during 2002, primarily from the elimination of goodwill amortization aspart of our
adoption of SFAS No0.142, “ Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’ on January1, 2002.

Identifiable intangible assets arising from our October3, 2002 acquisition of PayPal consist of PayPal’s customer list of $196.9million, itstrade
name of $63.6million and developed technologies of $16.5million. The acquired intangible assets of PayPal will be amortized over the
following estimated useful lives: customer list— seven years;, trade name— seven years; and developed technologies— three years. This
alocation will result in annual amortization of approximately $28.1million for the customer list, $9.1million for thetrade name and $5.5million
for the existing technologies. We expect thefull year of amortization from PayPal’s acquired intangible assetsto result in an increase of

amortization expensein 2003.

Merger-related Costs

Merger related costs
Asa percentage of net revenues

$ 1,550

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)

(100 )% $ 0 0% $0

0% 0% 0%

Merger-related costs were primarily attributed to direct costs associated with mergers accounted for under the pooling of interests method.
These amounts consist primarily of professiona services, contract andfacility termination expenses and various registration and filing fees.
Direct costs associated with mergers accounted for under the purchase method are capitalized in determining the purchase price.

Weincurred direct merger-related transaction costs in 2000 related to the merger with Half.com. Due to the elimination of the pooling of
interests method of accounting, merger-related costs related to acquisitions after July 2001 were capitalized asa component of purchase price.
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Non-Operating | tems

Interest and Other Income, Net

Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)
Interest and other income, net $ 46,337 (10)% $ 41,613 18% $ 49,209
As a percentage of net revenues 11 % 6 % 4%

Interest and other income, net consistsof interest earned on cash, cash equivalents, and investmentsas well as foreign exchange transaction
gainsand losses and other miscellaneous non-operating transactions.

Our interest and other income, net decreased during 2001 as a result of alower interest rate environment. Our weighted-average interest rate
was approximately 4.3% in 2000 and 3.6% in 2001. Although, we maintained higher cash, cash equivalent and investment balances during
2001 as aresult of increased operating and financing cash flows, the decrease in interest rates resulted in an overall declinein interest income.

Our interest and other income, net increased during 2002 primarily as aresult of gainsfrom the sale of our Butterfields subsidiary and certain
rea estate properties of $10.6million, a gain onthe sale of our Kruse subsidiaries of $6.5million and a gain on the sale of an equity investment
inaprivately held company of $3.2million. These gainswere offset by a decrease in interest and investment income of $4.1million resulting
from lower averageinterest rates, despite an increase in our cash, cash equivalents, and investmentsbalances in 2002 and from decreased
realized gains on the sale of investments, and a decrease in foreign exchange gains of $3.5million. Our weighted-average interest rate was
approximately 3.6% in 2001 and 2.8% in 2002. We expect that interest and other income, net will decrease in 2003, aswe do not expect
significant gains fromthe sale of assetsor subsidiaries in 2003.

Interest Expense
Percent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except per cent changes)
Interest expense $ 3374 (16)% $ 2851 (48 )% $ 1,492
As apercentage of net revenues 1% 0% 0%

Interest expense consists of interest charges on mortgage notes and capital leases. Interest expense decreased from 2000 to 2001, as aresult of
lower interest rates and a reduction in outstanding debt balances. Interest expense decreased from 2001 to 2002 asaresult of areduction inthe
outstanding mortgage notes balances in connection with the sale of several of the underlying properties.

InJanuary 2003, the FASB issued FIN No.46, “ Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisinterpretation of Accounting Research
Bulletin No.51, “Consolidated Financia Statements,” addresses consolidation by business enterprises of certain variableinterest entitieswhere
thereis acontrolling financial interestin avariableinterest entity or wherethe variable interest entity does not have sufficient equity atrisk to
finance its activitieswithout additional subordinated financial support fromother parties. Thisinterpretation applies immediately to variable
interest entities created after January31, 2003 and appliesin thefirst year or interim period beginning after Junel5, 2003 to variable interest
entities in which an enterprise holds a variableinterest that it acquired before February1, 2003. We expect that the adoption of FIN46 will
require usto include our San Jose facilities lease arrangement and potentially certain investmentsin our Consolidated Financia Statements
effective Julyl, 2003. In connection with our San Jose facilitieslease arrangement, our balance sheet following the July1, 2003 adoption of
FIN46 will reflect changes to record assets of $126.4million, liabilities of $122.5million and non-controlling interests of $3.9million. In
addition, our post-adoption income statement will reflect thereclassification of
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rent expense paymentsfrom operating expenses to interest expense aswell as therecognition of depreciation expense, within operating
expenses, for our use of the buildings. We estimate that the income statement impact of consolidating our San Jose facilities lease will consist of
a charge against earnings, net of taxes, of $5.7million upon the adoption of FIN46 on Julyl, 2003. This charge will reflect the accumulated
depreciation charges that would have been recorded in previous periods had consolidation of the San Josefacilities been required. Additionaly,
we have not decided whether we will keep the existing financing arrangement or purchase the San Jose facilities. Whether or not we keep the
existing financing arrangement, we anticipate recording additional annual operating expenses of $1.7million, net of taxes, for therecognition of
depreciation expense on the buildings. In the event we purchase the San Josefacilities, wewill aso pay $126.4million, eliminate financing
payments and settle our two interest rate swaps we used to establish a fixed rate of interest for $95million of our financing arrangement. During
the year ended December31, 2002, our financing payments related to the San Josefacilities totaled $7.9million. At December31, 2002,
settlement of our two interest rate swaps would have resulted in aloss of $10.9million.

Impairment of Certain Equity Investments

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
Impairment of certain equity investments $0 100 % $ 16,245 (77)% $ 3,781
Asa percentage of net revenues 0% 2% 0%

During the year ended December31, 2001, we recorded impairment charges totaling $16.2million relating primarily to the impairment in the
fair value of certain private equity investments. We recorded impairment charges for these investments based upon the deterioration of the
financial condition of certain investees and based upon financing obtained by certain other investees at a valuation below whichwe made our
investment.

During the year ended December31, 2002, we recorded impairment charges totaling $3.8million relating to theimpairment in thefair value of
certain equity investments. We recorded an approximately $640,000 impairment charge for an equity investment in a public company based
upon a significant declinein the market vaue of our investment during 2002, which we determined to be other than temporary. We recorded
$3.2million inimpairment charges for certain private eguity investmentsbased upon the deterioration of the financial condition of certain
investees and as aresult of financing obtained by certain other investeesat a valuation below which we made our investment.

We expect that thefair value of our equity investmentswill fluctuate from time to time and future impairment assessments may resultin
additional chargesto our operating results.

Provision for Income Taxes

Per cent Percent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
Provision for income taxes $ 32,725 144 % $ 80,009 82 % $ 145,946
As a percentage of net revenues 8% 11 % 12 %
Effective tax rate 40 % 47 % 37T %

The provision for income taxesdiffers from the amount computed by applying the statutory U.S. federal rate principally due to non-deductible
expensesrelated to acquisitions, state taxes, subsidiary losses for which we have not provided a benefit and other permanent differences that
increase the effective tax rate. These amounts are partially offset by decreases resulting from foreign incomewith lower effective tax rates and
tax-exempt interest income.
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Wereceive tax deductions fromthe gainsrealized by employees on the exercise of certain non-qualified stock options for which the benefit is
recognized as a component of stockholders' equity. We have provided a full valuation allowanceon the deferred tax assets relatingto these
stock option deductions due to the uncertainties associated with our future stock price and thetiming of employee stock option exercises. To the
extent that additional stock option deductions are not generated in future years, we will have the ability, subject to carryforward limitations, to
utilize up to $207.3million of additional deferred tax assetsto reduce future incometax liabilities. When recognized, the tax benefit of tax
deductions related to stock options are accounted for as a credit to additional paid-in capital rather than a reduction of theincome tax provision.

Minority Interests in Consolidated Companies

Per cent Per cent
2000 Change 2001 Change 2002
(in thousands, except percent changes)
Minority interests in consolidated companies $ 3,062 145% $ 7514 (131)% $ (2,296 )
Asa percentage of net revenue 1% 1% 0%

Minority interests in consolidated companies represents the minority investor’s percentage share of incomeor losses from subsidiaries in which
we hold a majority ownership interest and consolidate the subsidiaries’ resultsin our financial statements.

Third parties held minority interestsin Billpoint and eBay Japan in 2000; in Billpoint, Internet Auction, and eBay Japan in 2001; in Billpoint
for part of 2002 and Internet Auction for all of 2002. The decrease in minority interestsfrom 2001 to 2002 primarily resulted from Internet
Auction generating netincome for the first time in 2002. Additionally, our January 2002 acquisition of the remaining 35% minority interest in
Billpoint previoudly held by Wells Fargo Bank also contributed to the decrease. We expect that minority interests in consolidated companies
will continueto fluctuate in future periods. If Internet Auction, our magjority-owned South Korean subsidiary, continuesto be profitable, the
minority interests adjustment on the statement of income will continueto decrease our net income by the minority investor’s share of Internet
Auction’s net income.

Impact of Foreign Currency Trandation

The growthin our international operations has increased our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. We have foreign currency denominated
net revenues, costs and expenses. These income statement amounts aretranslated intoU.S. dollarsat the average exchange ratesin each
applicable period. To the extent the U.S. dollar weakens against foreign currencies, the trandation of these foreign currency denominated
transactions resultsin increased net revenues, operating expenses and net income. Similarly, our net revenues, operating expenses and net
income will decrease when the U.S. dollar strengthensagainst foreign currencies.

A significant portion of our international net revenues, operating expenses and net income are denominated in Euros. During the year ended
December31, 2002, the U.S. dollar weakened against the Euro and our weighted-average trand ation rate used to convert Euro denominated

transactions into U.S.dollar equivalents, decreased by approximately 6% compared to the weighted-average trandation rate for the year ended
December31, 2001. This weighted-averagetrandation rate change for the Euro resulted in increased net revenuesof approximately
$11.0million and increased operating expenses of approximately $5.0million during the year ended December31, 2002.

We expect our international operations will continue to grow in significance as we develop and deploy our global marketplace. As aresult,
foreign currency fluctuations in future periods could become more significant or even have a negative impact on our net revenues and net
income.
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Liquidity and Capital Resour ces
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Cash Flows

Sinceinception, we have financed operations primarily from net cash generated from operating activities. In addition, we have obtained
additional financing from the sale of preferred stock and warrants, proceeds from the exercise of those warrants, proceeds from the exercise of
stock optionsand proceeds fromour initial and follow-on public offerings. During 2002, we were primarily financed by our incomefrom
operations and from the proceeds of stock option exercises.

Net cash provided by operating activities was$100.1million in 2000, $252.1million in 2001, and $479.9million in 2002. Net cash provided by
operating activities resulted primarily from our net income, tax benefits on the exercise of stock options, non-cash charges for depreciation and
amortization and changesin assets and liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $206.1million in 2000, $29.8million in 2001, and $157.8million in 2002. The primary use for invested
cash in the periods presented was for purchases of property and equipment and acquisitions, net of proceeds from the sale of investments and
assets.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $86.0million in 2000, $101.5million in 2001, and $252.1million in 2002. Net cash provided by
financing activitieswas primarily due to the issuance of common stock associated with stock option exercises.

Commitments and Contingencies
Capital Expenditures

We expect capital expenditures to approximate $200million during 2003, without taking into account any acquisitions or costs associated with
the potential purchase of additional office facilities, and consists primarily of hardware and software for our platform architecture, site
operations and corporate information systems. In the event we purchase additional office facilities in 2003, our capital expenditures would be
substantially larger. Asof December3l, 2002, we have commitmentsto purchase atotal of $28.8millionin computer equipment, software and
related servicesfrom two vendors.

InJune 2002, we entered into an agreement to purchase computer equipment, softwareand related servicesto expand our data warehousing
capabilities. Under the agreement we are obligated to pay a minimum of $16.0million to a third-party vendor during a 30-month period ending
in December 2004. Minimum purchases under thecommitment total $7.2millionin 2002, $4.5millionin 2003, and $4.3millionin 2004. During
the year ended December31, 2002, we purchased $8.6million under this contract.

In December 2002, we entered into an agreement to purchase computer equipment, software and related servicesto further expand our
platform architecture, site operations and corporate information systems. Under the agreement, we are obligated to pay a minimum of
$20.0million to athird-party vendor during 2003. The commitment may include a maximum of $5.4million in services purchases, andthe
remainder must consist of equipment and software purchases. The agreement automatically renewsfor additional one-year periods through
2005, if we do not cancel the agreement at the conclusion of each year. In addition, thisvendor amended an existing promotions agreement and
has agreed to pay us $5.0million in quarterly payments for promotion of itsauctions on eBay.comin 2003 and to spend an additional $666,000
injoint promotions during the year. The promotions agreement, as amended, can be renewed with the mutual agreement of both parties for
additional one-year termsthrough 2005. Equipment, software and services purchases will be expensed or capitalized in accordance withour
capitalization policy. Promotions will be recognized astransaction revenueover the period of delivery.
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Leases

OnMarchl, 2000, we entered into a five-year lease for genera officefacilities located in San Jose, California. Thisfive-year leaseis
commonly referred to as a synthetic lease because it representsa form of off-balance sheet financing under which an unrelated third-party funds
100% of the costs of theacquisition of the property and leases the asset to us as lessee. Under our lease structure, upon termination or
expiration, at our option, we must either purchase the property from thelessor for a predetermined amount or sell therea property to athird
party. Our San Jose lease consists of approximately 460,000 square feet of office space. Asof December31, 2002, we occupied approximately
314,000 square feet of this total office space and subleased additional space in the facility to third parties.

Paymentsunder our lease are based on the $126.4million cost of the property funded by thethird party and are adjusted as the London
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, fluctuates. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the lease terminates on Marchl, 2005, unless extended
to Septemberl, 2006. At any time prior to thefinal 12monthsof the lease term, we may, at our option, purchase the property for approximately
$126.4million. If we elect not to purchase the property, we will undertake to sell the facility to one or morethird parties and have guaranteed to
the lessor aresidual value equal to approximately 88% of the $126.4million cost of the property. Our maximum exposureto loss is the entire
amount of $126.4million if we default on any of certain lease obligations and financial covenants. If thispayment were made, we would then
receivetitle to the property. At December31, 2002, we had not made a decision with respect to the option we will pursue at the end of thelease
term. Management believes that the contingent liability relating to the residual value guarantee will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Inaddition, we are required to maintain $126.4million of cash and investment securities as collateral for theterm of thelease and to maintain
certain financial covenants. The cash and investment securities are restricted as to their withdrawal fromathird-party trustee and are classified
as long-term restricted cash and investments on our balance sheet. In the event of a default under thelease, the collateral could be used to pay
the purchase price of the property and thelease would be terminated. At December31, 2002, we were in compliance with our financial
covenants under the lease.

If our lease were terminated, and we became obligated to pay the purchase price of the land and buildings, we would show the cost as an asset
on our balance sheet and our restricted cash and investments position would be reduced by theamount of the purchase price. Currently, we
reflect rent payments as an operating expense on our statement of income. In the event we were required to purchase the land and buildings, our
rent expense would cease and we would subsequently record depreciation expense for the buildings over their estimated useful lives.

We entered into two interest rate swaps on Junel9, 2000 and July20, 2000, to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on a portion of the
floating rate operating leasefor our facilities. See”ltem7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” and “Note6—
Derivative Instruments’ to our Consolidated Financial Statements, which isincorporated by reference herein.

InJanuary 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “ Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisinterpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No.51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” addresses consolidation by business enterprises of certain variable interest entitieswherethere isa
controlling financia interest in avariable interest entity or where the variableinterest entity does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its
activitieswithout additional subordinated financial support from other parties. This interpretation applies immediately to variable interest
entities created after January31, 2003 and applies in thefirst year or interim period beginning after Junel5, 2003 to variableinterest entitiesin
which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before Februaryl, 2003. We expect that the adoption of FIN46 will require usto
include our San Jose facilitieslease and potentially certain investments in our Consolidated Financial Statements effective Julyl, 2003. In
connection with our San Jose facilities |ease arrangement, our balance sheet following the July1, 2003 adoption of FIN46 will reflect changesto
record assets of $126.4million, liabilities of $122.5million and non-controlling interests of $3.9million. Inaddition, our post-adoption income
statement will reflect the reclassification of rent
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expense paymentsfrom operating expenses to interest expense as well as the recognition of depreciation expense, within operating expenses,
for our use of the buildings. We estimate that the income statement impact of consolidating our San Jose facilities lease will consist of acharge
against earnings, net of taxes, of $5.6million upon the adoption of FIN46 on July1, 2003. This charge will reflect the accumulated depreciation
charges that would have been recorded in previous periods had consolidation of the San Jose facilities been required. Additionally, we have not
decided whether we will keep the existing financing arrangement or purchase the San Jose facilities. Whether or not we keep the existing
financing arrangement, we anticipate recording additional annual operating expenses of $1.7million, net of taxes, for the recognition of
depreciation expense on the buildings. In the event we purchase the San Josefacilities, wewill aso pay $126.4million, eliminate financing
payments and settle our two interest rate swaps we used to establish a fixed rate of interest for $95million of our financing arrangement. During
the year ended December31, 2002, our financing payments related to the San Josefacilities totaled $7.9million. At December31, 2002,
settlement of our two interest rate swaps would have resulted in aloss of $10.9million.

Our U.S. segment occupies approximately 434,000 squarefeet of commercial office space in the United States. We occupy 314,000 sguare
feet of commercial office space in San Jose, California under theterms of our synthetic lease for our corporate headquarters. We own and
occupy approximately 72,000 square feet of commercial office space in Salt Lake City, Utah for our domestic customer support center. We
lease and occupy anadditional 48,000 square feet of commercial office space in various domestic locationsfor the operations of certain U.S.
subsidiaries.

Our International segment |eases approximately 210,000 square feet of commercia office space in 12countries for our international operations,
including the operations of our South Korean majority-owned subsidiary.

Our Payments segment |eases approximately 126,000 square feet of commercia office space in the United States and the United Kingdom. In
addition, our Paymentssegment owns approximately 22acres of land near Omaha, Nebraska, on whicha 115,000 square foot facility is under
construction. Upon completion, thisfacility will housethe primary customer service operations center for our Payments segment.

We also have lease obligations under certain other non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimumrental payments under all non-cancelable
operating leases, exclusive of theresidual value guarantee on our genera office facilities located in San Jose, California, at December31, 2002
are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending Operating

December 31, L eases
2003 $ 16,410
2004 17,056
2005 9,630
2006 7,568
2007 6,108
Thereafter 19,909
Total minimum lease payments $ 76,681
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Minimumannual repayments on notes payable and capital |eases at December3l, 2002 areas follows (in thousands):

Year ending

December 31, Total
2003 $ 4,145
2004 2,513
2005 1,478
2006 616
2007 —
Thereafter 9,192

$ 17,944

Marketing Agreements

Fromtimeto time and in theordinary course of business, weenter into arrangements to purchase online and offline promotions. Such
arrangements typically involve minimum purchase commitments withterms ranging from several monthsto five years.

AOL interactive marketing agreement

InApril 2002, we amended our Interactive Marketing Agreement with AOL Time Warner, Inc., or AOL. AOL attained certain performance
goals inthecontract year ending March23, 2003, and extended the amended agreement for anadditional year, through March23, 2004. Under
the termsof theamended agreement, we will pay AOL for its advertising serviceson a new user performance basis, up to a maximum of
$15million. We are recognizing these fees assales and marketing expense as such servicesare provided. From time to time, we have also
entered into incremental, discretionary purchases of advertising from AOL. Discretionary purchases totaled $1.4million during 2000,
$8.5million during 2001, and $7.6million during 2002.

Inthe event that AOL’s advertising servicesduring theyear achieve certain specified performance goals, AOL has the right to extend the term
of theamended agreement through March23, 2005. Our financia obligation for this renewal year, if any, will a'so be determined on a new user
performance basis and will amount to a maximum of $10.0million.

Disney marketing agreement

In February 2000, we entered a four-year marketing agreement with The Walt Disney Company, or Disney, to provide uswith online and
offline advertising and promotions and develop a co-branded version of our online service. Subject to certain Disney performance obligations,
we were obligated to pay a minimum of $30million to Disney over thefour-year term of the agreement. In August 2001, we amended the terms
of theinitial agreement and agreed to purchase a minimum of $23.0million in online and offline promotions through September 2004. We also
committed to provide Disney with online advertising on the eBay.com website valued at $3.5million. Through December31, 2002, wehave
recognized $16.9million in sales and marketing expense associated withthe amended agreement.

Microsoft marketing and services agreements

During 2001, we entered into a series of marketing and services agreementswith Microsoft that obligate usto purchase online advertising
promotions, software and related servicesthrough September 2003, totaling $8million. In addition, Microsoft hasagreed to purchase online
advertising and other servicesfrom ustotaling $7million over a three-year period ending June 2004. Through December31, 2002, we have
recognized $4.3million in sales and marketing expenses for advertising servicesreceived,
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incurred $3.0million for Microsoft software products used to support our operations and recognized $5.4million in revenues for advertising
services delivered to Microsoft.

Subsequent Events
Vancouver Lease

InFebruary 2003, we entered into an operating sublease for approximately 110,000 sguare feet of commercial office space in Vancouver,
British Columbiafor a customer support center. The sublease commences on July1, 2003 and ends on October30, 2011. Rental commitments
under the sublease total $11.8million, including operating costs and taxes. In addition, we are subleasing approximately 37,000 square feet of
the leased space back to the prime lessee for substantially the same lease term. The primelessee’s rental commitmentsto eBay under the
sublease total $5.2million, including operating costs and taxes. The primelessee has provided an irrevocable letter of credit for $7.8million as
security for their obligationsunder thissublease arrangement. The commitment under our sublease, as well as the primelessee’s sublease and
letter of credit, aredenominated in Canadian dollars. The dollar figures above are in U.S.dollars, converted from Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate as of December31, 2002.

Integration of Half.com Platform

InMarch 2003, we announced our intention to fully integrate the platform of Half.com, awholly owned subsidiary acquired in July 2000, with
the eBay.com platform by the end of 2004. Half.com'’soffice in Pennsylvania, where 65 of its employees work, will be shut down oncethis
process is complete. Management isin the process of formalizing an exit and integration plan and expects to finaize the plan by the end of
2003. Based on our preliminary estimates, we anticipate costs related to employee retention and severance will total approximately $3million. If
we decide to exit Half’ s leased office facility, theamount of lease termination costs, excluding any possible sublease income, and fixed asset
write-offswill total approximately $2million. Costsrelated to our exit planwill be recorded ascharges on our income statement over the exit
and integration period in accordance with SFAS No.146, “ Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.”

PayPal’s Prior Services to Online Gambling Merchants

PayPa completed its exit from the business of processing payments for online gambling merchantsin November 2002. Approximately 6% of
PayPal’ s revenues in 2002 were derived from this business. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal provided documentsand information related to its
services to online gambling merchants in response to afederal grand jury subpoenaissued at the request of theU.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March28, 2003, PayPal received aletter from theU.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’ s provision of services to online gambling merchantsviolated 18 U.S.C.1960 of the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of fundsthat are known to have been derived from a criminal offense or areintended to be usedto promote or
support unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal to potential civil forfeiture of the amountsit received in connection with such activities as
well as potential criminal liability. The letter offered a complete settlement of all possible claimsand charges from the U.S.Attorney for the
Eastern District of Missouri if Paypal paid the purported amount of its earnings derived from online gambling merchants during the nine-month
period from October26, 2001 to July31, 2002, plusinterest. PayPal acted in the good faith belief that its conduct did not violate 18 U.S.C.1960
and PayPal calculates that the amount of its earnings from online gaming activities was lessthan asserted in the letter. Althoughthe outcome of
this matter is not yet determinable, the monetary amounts associated with this matter are not expected to have a material impact on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

General

Webelievethat existing cash, cash equivalents and investments, together with any cash generated from operations, will be sufficient to fund
our operating activities, capital expenditures and other
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obligations for the foreseeable future. However, if during that period or thereafter we are not successful in generating sufficient cash flowsfrom
operations or in raising additional capital when required in sufficient amounts and on terms acceptable to us, our business could suffer.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates
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The following description of critical accounting policies and estimates should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and other disclosures included in thisAnnual Report on Form10-K for theyear ended December31, 2002. Senior management and
the Audit Committee of our Board of Directorsregularly review the appropriateness of the methodol ogies and estimates used in connection
with theapplication of our critical accounting policies.

Provisions for Doubtful Accounts and Authorized Credits

Our U.S. and International segments are exposed to losses due to uncollectible accounts and creditsto sellers. Provisions for these items
represent our estimate of actual losses and credits based on our historical experience, are monitored monthly, and are made at the time the
related revenue isrecognized. The provision for doubtful accountsis recorded as a charge to operating expense, whiletheprovision for
authorized credits isrecorded asareduction of revenues. The followingtable illustrates the provision for doubtful accounts and authorized
credits as a percentage of net revenues for 2000, 2001, and 2002 (in thousands, except percents).

2000 2001 2002
Net revenues from the U.S. and International segments $ 42638 $ 731,173 $ 1,118,732
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized credits 18,237 25,243 25,455
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized credits as a % of 4.3% 3.5% 2.3%

net revenues fromthe U.S. and International segments

Historically, our actual losses and credits have been consistent withthese provisions. However, unexpected or significant future changes in
trends could result in a material impact to future statements of income and cash flows. Based on our resultsfor theyear ended December31,
2002, a 25basis point deviation from our estimates would have resulted in an increase or decrease in expense and/or net revenues of
approximately $3million. The followinganalysis demonstrates the potential effect a 25basis point deviation from our estimates would have
upon our financial statements and is not intended to provide a range of exposure or expected deviation (in thousands, except per share data):

Management’s

-25 Basis 2002 +25 Basis

Points Estimate Points
Provision for doubtful accounts and authorized credits $ 22,934 $ 25,455 $ 28528
Income from operations 356,718 354,197 351,124
Net income 251,482 249,891 247,951
Diluted earnings per share 0.86 0.85 0.85

Provision for Transaction Losses

Our Payments segment is exposed to transaction losses due to fraud, as well as non-performance of third parties and customers. We establish
allowances for estimated losses arising from processing customer transactions, such as charge-backs for unauthorized credit card use and
merchant related charge-backs due to non-delivery of goods or services, ACH returns, and debit card overdrafts. These allowancesrepresent an
accumulation of the estimated amounts, using an actuarial technique, necessary to provide for
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transaction lossesincurred as of thereporting date, including thoseto whichwe have not yet been notified. The allowances are monitored
monthly and are updated based on actual claimsdata reported by our claims processors. Customers typically have up to 180days to file
transaction disputes. Consequently, the time between estimating the loss provisions and realization of theactual amount is short. The
allowances arebased on known facts and circumstances, internal factors including our experience with similar cases, historical trends involving
loss payment patterns and the mix of transaction and loss types. Additions to the allowance, in the form of provisions, are reflected as a genera
and administrative expense in our results of operations, while write-offsto the allowance are made whenalossis determined to have occurred.
Recoveries, when collected, are recorded asan increase to the allowance for transaction losses. As of December31, 2002, the allowance for
transaction losses totaled $10.1million and was included in other current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet.

The followingtable illustrates the provision for transaction losses as a percentage of total payment volume from PayPal operations for the
post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002 (in thousands, except percents).

2002

Total Payment Volume from the PayPal operations $ 2,138,093
Provision for transaction losses 7,832
Provision for transaction losses as a % of total payment volume 0.37%

from PayPal operations

Prior to our October3, 2002 acquisition of PayPal, no provision for transaction losses was recorded asour third-party banking service provider
assumed all transaction loss exposure. The fees charged to us by this banking service provider reflected the assumption of this loss exposure
and other servicesrendered. Charges for the services were reported asa cost of net revenues.

The establishment of appropriate allowancesfor transaction losses is an inherently uncertain process, and ultimatelosses may vary from the
current estimates. We regularly update our allowance estimates as new facts become known and eventsoccur that may impact the settlement or
recovery of losses. The allowances aremaintained at alevel deemed appropriate by management to adequately provide for losses incurred at
the balance sheet date. Based on our results for the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002, a five basis point
deviation from our estimateswould have resulted in an increase or decrease in expense of approximately $1.0million. The followinganaysis
demonstrates the potential effect a five basis point deviation from our estimates would have upon our financial statements for the period that we
consolidated PayPal’ s operations andis not intended to provide a range of exposure or expected deviation (in thousands, except per share data):

Management’s

-5 Basis 2002 +5 Basis

Points Estimate Points
Provision for transaction |osses $ 6,842 $ 7,832 $ 8,980
Income from operations 355,187 354,197 353,049
Net income 250,516 249,891 249,166
Diluted earnings per share 0.86 0.85 0.85

Legal Contingencies

In connection with certain pending litigation and other claims, we have estimated the range of probable loss and provided for suchlosses
through charges to our income statement. These estimates have been based on our assessment of the facts and circumstancesat each balance
sheet date and are subject to change based upon new information and future events.
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Fromtimeto time, we are involved in disputes that arisein the ordinary course of business, and we do not expect this trend to change in the
future. We are currently involved in certain legal proceedings asdiscussed in“Item3: Legal Proceedings’ and “Note 11— Commitments and
Contingencies— Litigation” to our Consolidated Financial Statements, which isincorporated by reference herein. We believe that we have
meritorious defenses to the claims against us, andwe will defend ourselves vigorously. However, even if successful, our defense against certain
actions will be costly and could divert our management’ stime. If the plaintiffs were to prevail on certain claims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modify our business practices or even be prohibited from conducting a significant part of our
U.S.business. Any suchresults could materially harm our business and could result in a material adverse impact on thefinancial position,
results of operations or cash flows of each of our three segments.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We are required to recognize a provision for income taxes based upon the taxable income and temporary differences for each of thetax
jurisdictions in which we operate. This process requiresa calculation of taxes payable under currently enacted tax lawsaround the world and an
analysisof temporary differences between thebook and tax bases of our assets and liabilities, including variousaccruals, allowances,
depreciation and amortization. The tax effect of these temporary differences and the estimated tax benefit from our tax net operating losses are
reported as deferred tax assets and liabilitiesin our consolidated balance sheet. We also assess thelikelihood that our net deferred tax assets
will be realized from future taxable income. To the extent we believe that it ismore likely than not that some portion of or all of the deferred tax
asset will not be realized, we establish a valuation allowance. To the extent we establish avaluation allowance or change the allowancein a
period, we reflect the change with a corresponding increase or decrease in our tax provision in our income statement. Where the change in the
valuation allowance relates to the deductionfor employee stock option exercises, the change isreflected as a credit to additional paid-in-capital .
Asemployee stock option exercises are highly dependent upon the performance of our stock price, it is extremely difficult to predict the amount
of deductions that will be generated from future option exercises and, therefore, it is difficult for usto ascertain the amount of deferred tax
assets related to employee stock option exercises that may be realized in future periods. We have consequently provided a valuation allowance
equal to 100% of our deferred tax assets related to employee stock option exercises. The deferred tax asset, net of a valuation allowance of
$145.2million, totaled $100.2million at December31, 2002. The following table illustrates the provision for incometaxes as a percentage of
income before incometaxes for 2000, 2001, and 2002 (in thousands, except percents):

2000 2001 2002
Income before incometaxes $ 81019 $ 170457 $ 395,837
Provision for income taxes 32,725 80,009 145,946
Provision for income taxes as a % of income before income taxes 40% 47% 37%

Historically, these provisions have adequately provided for our actual income tax liabilities. However, unexpected or significant future changes
intrends could result in a material impact to future statements of income and cash flows. Based on our results for theyear ended December31,
2002, a one-percentage point changein our provision for income taxes as a percentage of income before taxes would have resulted in an
increase or decrease in expense of approximately $4.0million. The following analysis demonstrates the potential effect such a one-percentage
point deviation change would have upon our financial statements
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and is not intended to provide a range of exposure or expected deviation (in thousands, except per share data):

Management's

2002
-1% Estimate +1%
Provision for incometaxes $ 142,105 $ 145,946 $ 150,022
Income before income taxes 395,837 395,837 395,837
Net income 253,732 249,891 245,815
Diluted earnings per share 0.87 0.85 0.84

Third-party Advertising Revenues

Our third-party advertising revenues are derived principally fromthe sale of online banner and sponsorship advertisements for cash and
through barter arrangements. To date, the duration of our banner and sponsorship advertising contracts hasranged from one week to three
years, but is generally oneweek to three months. Advertising revenueson both banner and sponsorship contracts are recognized as
“impressions’ (i.e., the number of times that an advertisement appears in pages viewed by users of our websites) are delivered or ratably over
the term of the agreement where such agreements provide for minimum monthly or quarterly advertising commitments or where such
commitments are fixed throughout theterm. Barter transactions are valued based on amountsrealized in similar cash transactions occurring
within six months prior to the date of the barter transaction. To the extent that significant delivery obligations remainat the end of a period or
collection of theresulting account receivableis not considered probable, revenuesare deferred until the obligation is satisfied or the uncertainty
isresolved. These amounts are included in deferred revenue in our balance sheet. Third-party advertising net revenues, including barter
transactions, totaled 3%, 11% and 5% of our consolidated net revenuesfor the years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively
and were primarily from our U.S.segment. Revenue from barter arrangements totaled $2.5million in 2000, $10.4million in 2001, and
$10.1million in 2002.

Third-party advertising revenuesmay be affected by thefinancial condition of our customers and by the success of online promotions in
genera. Recently, the industry pricing of online advertisements hasdeteriorated. Our third-party advertising revenue is dependent in significant
part on the performance of AOL TimeWarner, Inc., or AOL, over whichwe do not have control. Reduction in third-party advertising, whether
due to softening of the demand for online advertising in general or particular problems facing parties with whom we have contractual
arrangements, would adversely affect our operating results. Unlike our transaction revenues, third-party advertising revenues are derived from a
highly concentrated customer base. During the years ended December31, 2000 and 2001, third-party advertising revenues wereall attributable
to approximately 20 customerseach year. During theyear ended December31, 2002, third-party advertising revenues were all derived from
approximately 30 customers. We continue to view our business asprimarily transaction driven and weexpect third-party advertising revenues
in future periods to decrease asa percentage of total net revenues, and in absolute dollars. Additionally, our advertising salesrepresentative
agreement with AOL has not been extended or renewed and is scheduled to terminate on March31, 2003, with AOL to continue its electronic
delivery of our online advertisements for a specified wind-down period. After March31, 2003, our third-party advertising revenueswill be
dependent on the efforts of our existinginternal sales staff.

End-to-End Services Revenues

Our end-to-end services revenuesare derived principally from contractual arrangementswith third parties that provide transaction services to
eBay users. To date, theduration of our end-to-end services contracts has ranged from one to three years. End-to-end services revenuesare
recognized as the contracted services are delivered to end-users. To the extent that significant obligations remain at the end of a period or
collection of theresulting receivable is not considered probable, revenues are deferred until
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the obligation is satisfied or the uncertainty is resolved. End-to-end services net revenues were 7%, 4% and 2% of our consolidated net
revenues for the years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively and were primarily fromour U.S.segment.

Similar to our third-party advertising revenues, our end-to-end services revenues may be affected by the financia condition of the parties with
whom we have these relationships and by the success of online servicesand promotions in general. Additionally, end-to-end services revenues
are also concentrated among a small customer base. End-to-end services revenues were derived from approximately 10customers in 2000 and
from approximately 20customersin each of 2001 and 2002. We continue to view our business as primarily transaction driven and expect
end-to-end services revenues in future periods to decrease asa percentage of total net revenuesand in absolute dollars.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and I nvestments

Our long-lived assetsat December31, 2002 are property and equipment of $218.0million and other intangible assets of $279.5million. We
evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenever eventsor changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable in accordance with SFAS No.144, “ Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” An asset is considered
impaired if its carrying amount exceeds the future net cash flow the asset is expected to generate. If such asset is considered to be impaired, the
impairment to be recognized is measured by theamount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair market value. We assessthe
recoverability of ourlong-lived and intangible assetsby determining whether the unamortized balances can be recovered through undiscounted
future net cash flowsof the related assets. The amount of impairment, if any, is measured based on projected discounted future net cash flows
using a discount rate reflecting our average cost of capital.

Our goodwill a December31, 2002 totaled $1.46hillion. We evaluate goodwill, a a minimum, on an annual basis and whenever events and
changesin circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No.142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.” Impairment of goodwill istested at thereporting unitlevel by comparing the reporting unit’ s carrying amount, including
goodwill, to thefair value of the reporting unit. The fair valuesof the reporting unitsare estimated using a combination of the income or
discounted cash flows approach and the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies’ data. If the carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any.

To date, we have recorded no impairment of property and equipment, goodwill, or intangible assets. However, if our estimates or therelated
assumptions change in the future, we may be required to record impairment chargesin any or all of our three segmentsto reduce the carrying
amount of these assets.

The fair value of long-terminvestments are dependent on the performance of the companies and instruments in which we have invested, as well
asthevolatility inherent in external markets for these investments. In assessing potential impairment, we consider these factors as well as the
forecasted financial performance of the companies in which weinvest. If forecasted performance levelsare not met or if other events occur, we
may have to record additional impairment chargesin our U.S. and International segmentsto reduce the carrying amount of these assets. During
the year ended December31, 2002, we recognized $3.8million of impairment losses relating to the impairment in value of certain equity
investments. At December31, 2002, thetotal value of our equity investments in unconsolidated companies was $44.2million, with $4.9million
inour U.Ssegment, $37.5million in our International segment, and none in our Payments segment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
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Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities
InJune 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.146 or SFAS No.146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities,” which nullifies Emerging
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Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue N0.94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefitsand Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (including Certain CostsIncurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No.146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or
disposal activity be recognized whenthe liability isincurred and states that an entity’ s commitment to an exit plan, by itself, does not create a
present obligation that meetsthe definition of aliability. SFAS N0.146 also establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement of
the liability. The provisions of SFAS N0.146 are effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December31, 2002. We do not expect the
adoption of SFAS N0.146 to have a material impact upon our financial position, cash flows or results of operations.

Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees

InNovember 2002, the FASB issued FIN45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN45 requires a guarantor to recognize aliability for obligations it has undertakenin relation to the
issuance of a guarantee. It requires that the liability be recorded at fair value on the date that the guarantee isissued. It also requires a guarantor
to provide additional disclosures regarding guarantees, including the nature of the guarantee, the maximum potential amount of future payments
under the guarantee, the carrying amount of the liability, if any, for the guarantor’s obligations under the guarantee, and the nature and extent of
any recourse provisions or available collateral that would enable the guarantor to recover the amounts paid under the guarantee. The disclosure
requirements under FIN 45 areeffective for theinterim and annual periods ending after December15, 2002. The recognition and measurement
provisions under FIN45 are effective for guarantees issued or modified after December31, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of FIN 45 to
have a material impact upon our financial position, cash flows or results of operations. See “Notell— Commitmentsand Contingencies’ to our
Consolidated Financial Statements, whichis incorporated by reference herein.

Accounting for Stock Based Compensation

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS N0.148, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation— Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS148
provides two additional transition methods for entities that voluntarily adopt the fair value method of recording expenses when accounting for
stock based compensation. Further, the statement requires disclosure of comparable information for all companies regardless of whether, when,
or how an entity adopts the preferable, fair value based method of accounting. These disclosuresare now required for interim periods in
addition to thetraditional annual disclosure. The amendmentsto SFAS No.123, which provides for additional transition methods, are effective
for periods beginning after December15, 2002. The disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal years ending after December15, 2002 and have
been incorporated into the notes to the accompanying financia statements. We have chosen not to voluntarily adopt thefair value method of
accounting for employee stock option grantsat this time.

Consolidation of Variable I nterest Entities

InJanuary 2003, the FASB issued FIN46, “ Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisinterpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No.51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” addresses consolidation by business enterprises of certain variable interest entitieswherethere isa
controlling financia interest in avariable interest entity or where the variableinterest entity does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its
activitieswithout additional subordinated financial support from other parties. This interpretation applies immediately to variable interest
entities created after January31, 2003 and applies in thefirst year or interim period beginning after Junel5, 2003 to variableinterest entitiesin
which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before Februaryl, 2003. We expect that the adoption of FIN46 will require usto
include our San Jose facilitieslease arrangement and potentially certain investments in our Consolidated Financial Statements effective Julyl,
2003. In connection with our San Jose facilities lease arrangement, our balance sheet following the July1, 2003 adoption of FIN46 will reflect
changesto record assets of $126.4million, liahilities of $122.5million and non-controlling
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interests of $3.9million. Inaddition, our post-adoption income statement will reflect the reclassification of rent expense paymentsfrom
operating expenses to interest expense as well as the recognition of depreciation expense, within operating expenses, for our use of the
buildings. We estimate that the income statement impact of consolidating our San Jose facilities lease will consist of a charge against earnings,
net of taxes, of $5.6million upon the adoption of FIN46 on July1, 2003. This charge will reflect the accumulated depreciation charges that
would have been recorded in previousperiods had consolidation of the San Jose facilities been required. Additionally, we have not decided
whether we will keep the existing financing arrangement or purchase the San Jose facilities. Whether or not we keep the existing financing
arrangement, weanticipate recording additional annual operating expenses of $1.7million, net of taxes, to for the recognition of depreciation
expense on the buildings. Inthe event we purchase the San Josefacilities, wewill also pay $126.4million, eliminate financing payments and
settle our two interest rate swapswe used to establish afixed rate of interest for $95million of our financing arrangement. During the year ended
December31, 2002, our financing paymentsrelated to the San Jose facilities totaled $7.9million. At December31, 2002, settlement of our two
interest rate swaps would have resulted in aloss of $10.9million.
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Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Operations and Financial Condition
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Therisks and uncertainties described below arenot the only ones facing eBay. Additional risksand uncertainties not presently known to usor
that we currently deemimmaterial also may impair our business operations. If any of the following risks or such other risks actually occur,
our business could be harmed.

Our operating results may fluctuate.

Our operating results have varied on a quarterly basis during our operating history. Our operating results may fluctuate significantly as a result

of avariety of factors, many of which are outside our control. Factors that may affect our quarterly operating results includethe following:

our ability to retain anactive user base, to attract new users wholist items for sale, who purchase items through our service or who use
our payment services and to maintain customer satisfaction;

eour ability to keep our websitesoperational at a reasonable cost;

stheamount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures relating to the maintenance and expansion of our businesses,
operations and infrastructure;

«foreign, federal, state or local government regulation, includinginvestigations prompted by items listed, sold or paidfor by our users;

eour ability to comply withthe requirements of entities whose services arerequired for our operations, such as the credit card associations,

sthe success of our geographical and product expansion;

stheintroduction of new sites, servicesand products by us or our competitors;

svolume, size, timing and completion rate of transactions on our websites;

econsumer confidence in the safety and security of transactions on our websites;

«our ability to upgrade and develop our systems, infrastructure and customer service capabilities to accommodate growth at a reasonable

-gﬁixé\bility to develop product enhancementsat reasonable cost;

eour ability to integrate successfully and cost effectively manage our acquisitions, including the acquisition of PayPal;

eour ability to manage fraud loss and credit card charge back rates and the payment funding mix at PayPal;

sthe cost and demand for advertising on our websites;

-tech_nical difficultiesor service interruptions involving our websites or services provided to our users by third parties (such as photo

-g(ljilxgﬁhy to attract new personnel in atimely and effective manner;

eour ability to retain key employeesin our online businesses, including PayPal;

eour ability to expand our product offeringsinvolving fixed-price trading successfully;

sthe costs and results of litigation that involves us;

stheresults of regulatory decisionsthat affect us;

sthetiming, cost and availability of advertising in traditional media and on other websitesand online services,
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sthetiming of paymentsto usand of marketing and other expenses under existing and future contracts;
sthe success of our brand building and marketing campaigns,

sthe continued financia strength of our commercial partners and technology suppliers;

sthelevel of useof the Internet and online services;

esincreasing consumer acceptance of the Internet and other online services for commerce and, in particular, for thetrading of products such
asthose listed on our websites;
egeneral economic conditions and those economic conditions specific to the Internet and e-commerceindustries; and

egeopolitical events such aswar, threat of war or terrorist actions.

Our limited operating history and the increased variety of servicesoffered on our websitesmakes it difficult for usto forecast the level or
source of our revenues or earnings accurately. We believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results may not be meaningful,
and you should not rely upon them as anindication of future performance. We do not have backlog, and substantialy all of our net revenues
each quarter come from transactions involving salesor payments during that quarter. Due to the inherent difficulty in forecasting revenuesit is
also difficult to forecast income statement expenses as a percentage of net revenues. Quarterly and annual income statement expenses asa
percentage of net revenues may be significantly different fromhistorical or projected rates. Our operating resultsin one or more future quarters

may fall below the expectations of securities analystsand investors. Inthat event, the trading price of our common stock would almost certainly
decline.

We may not maintain our level of profitability.

We believe that our continued profitability at historical levels will depend in large part on our ability to do thefollowing:

emaintain sufficient transaction volume to attract buyers and sellers;

emanage the costs of our business, including the costs associated with maintaining and developing our websites, customer support, fraud
and chargebacks and international and product expansion;
sincrease the awareness of our brands; and

eprovide our customers with superior community and trading experiences.

We are investing heavily in marketing and promotion, customer support, further development of our websites, technology and operating
infrastructure development. The costs of these investmentsare expected to remain significant into the future. Inaddition, many of our
acquisitions require continuing investmentsin these areas and we have significant ongoing contractual commitmentsin some of these areas. As
aresult, we may be unable to adjust our spending rapidly enoughto compensate for any unexpected revenue shortfall, which may harm our
profitability. The existence of several larger and more established companies that are enabling online sales as well as other companies, some of
whom do not charge for transactions on their sites and others who are facilitating trading through varied pricing formats(e.g., fixed-price,
reverse auction, group buying) may limit our ability to raise user fees in responseto declinesin profitability. In addition, we are spending in
advance of anticipated growth, which may also harmour profitability. Inview of therapidly evolving nature of our business and our limited
operating history, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful. Y ou should not rely
upon our historical resultsas indications of our future performance.

Our integration of PayPal may be difficult.

WhileeBay has acquired smaller companies in the past, the acquisition of PayPal represents by far the largest acquisition by eBay to date. We
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the eBay platform, and pursuing opportunities for PayPal’ s growth outside of theeBay platform, will be relatively difficult andwill require
significant attention from management. This may divert management’ s attention from its focus on eBay’ s principal business for an extended
period of time. Inaddition, PayPal will continue to operate as an independent wholly owned subsidiary of eBay. Because PayPal will be
relatively independent, efficient cooperation between eBay and PayPal following the merger will be crucial for a successful integration of
PayPal’ s businessinto the eBay platform. PayPal’s pre-merger Chief Executive Officer left the company at thetime the merger was
consummated and the pre-merger Chief Technical Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financia Officer left the company shortly
thereafter. Accordingly, PayPal’s new Chief Executive Officer and certain other members of its management have only limited experience with
PayPal. There can be no assurance that PayPal’ s business will be integrated into the eBay platform in atimely and efficient manner or that any
of theanticipated benefits of the merger will be realized. If these benefits are not realized, our business and operating resultswill be harmed.

Our business is adversely affected by anything that causes our usersto spend lesstime on their computers, including national events
and seasonal factors.

Anything that diverts our users fromtheir customary level of usage of our websites could adversely affect our business. We would therefore be
adversely affected by geopolitical events such aswar, the threat of war or terrorist activity. Similarly, our results of operations historically have
been seasonal in nature because many of our users reduce their activities on our websites during the holidays, such as during the Thanksgiving
(in the U.S.) and Christmasperiods, and withthe onset of good weather during the summer months. We have historically experienced our
strongest quarters of online growth in our first and fourth fiscal quarters. PayPal has shown similar seasonality, except that its strongest quarter
of online growth hashistorically been thefourth fiscal quarter.

Thereare many risks associated with our international operations.

Ourinternational expansion has been rapid and we have only limited experiencein many of the countries in which we now do business. Our
international business, especially in Germany, the U.K., Canada and Korea, has also become critical to our revenues and profits. Expansion into
international markets requires management attention and resources. We have limited experience in localizing our service to conform to local
cultures, standards and policies. Inmany countries, we compete with local companies who understand thelocal market better than we do. We
may not be successful in expanding into particular international markets or in generating revenues from foreign operations. For example, in
2002 we withdrew from the Japanese market. Even if we are successful, the costs of operating new sites are expected to exceed our net
revenues for at least 12months in most countries. As we continueto expand internationally, we are subject to risks of doing business
internationally, including thefollowing:

eregulatory requirements, includingregulation of auctioneering, banking, and money transmitting, that may limit or prevent the offering of
our services in somejurisdictions, may prevent enforceable agreementsbetween sellers and buyers, may prohibit certain categories of
goods, may require special licensure, or may limit the transfer of information between our foreign subsidiaries and ourselves;

«legal uncertainty regarding liability for the listings of our users, including less Internet-friendly legal systems, unique local laws and lack
of clear precedent or applicablelaw;

«different employee/employer relationships and the existence of workers' councils and labor unions;

edifficultiesin staffing and managing foreign operations;
«longer payment cycles, different accounting practices and greater problemsin collecting accounts receivable;

epotentially adverse tax conseguences, including local taxation of our feesor of transactions on our websites;
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*higher telecommunications and Internet service provider costs;

estrong local competitors;

emorestringent consumer and data protection laws;

ecultural ambivalence to, or non-acceptance of, online trading;

eseasonal reductions in business activity;

eexpenses associated withlocalizing our products, including offering customersthe ability to transact business in thelocal currency;
slawsand business practices that favor local competitors;

eprofit repatriation restrictions, foreign currency exchange restrictions and exchange rate fluctuations;

echangesin a specific country’sor region’s political or economic conditions; and

ediffering intellectual property laws.

Some of these factors may cause our international costs to exceed our domestic costs of doing business. To the extent we expand our
international operations and have additional portions of our international revenues denominated in foreign currencies, we also could become
subject to increased difficulties in collecting accounts receivable and risks relating to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

Weintend to expand PayPal’ s services internationally. Bothwe and PayPal have limited experience with the payments business outside of the
U.S. In addition to al of thefactors listed above, we expect that successful international expansion of PayPal’s business will require successful
integration withlocal payment providers (including banks, credit and debit card associations, electronic fund transfer systems and others) and in
some countries may require a close commercial relationship with aloca bank. We do not know if these or other factors may prevent, delay or
limit PayPal’ s expansion or reduce its profitability. Any limitation on our ability to expand PayPal internationally could harmour business.

Our business may be subject to salesand other taxes.

Wedo not collect sales or other similar taxes on goods or services sold by users through our services. One or more states or any foreign
country may seek to impose value-added taxes, or VAT, or sales or use tax collection or record-keeping obligations on companies such as ours
that engage in or facilitate online commerce. Such taxes could be imposed if, for example, we wereever deemed to be an auctioneer or the
agent of our sellers. Several proposals have been made at the state and local level that would impose additional taxes on the sale of goods and
services through the Internet. These proposals, if adopted, could substantially impair the growth of e-commerce, and could diminish our
opportunity to derive financial benefit from our activities. In 1998, the U.S. federal government enacted legidation prohibiting statesor other
local authoritiesfrom imposing new taxes on Internet commerce for a period of three years, which hasbeen extended through Novemberl,
2003. Thismoratorium does not prohibit states or the Internal Revenue Service from collecting taxes on our income, if any, or from collecting
taxes that are due under existing tax rules. New regulationsin the European Union relating to the collection of VAT ondigital services will
require usto collect and remit VAT on our own fees beginning in July 2003. We intend to work with relevant tax authoritiesto clarify our
obligations under these regulationsand to change our software to permit the billing of these taxes. We expect substantial ongoing costs
associated withcomplying with the VAT rulesthroughout Europe and theincreased cost to our users may reduce their activity on our websites.
Both of these effects could adversely affect our business. A successful assertion by one or more states or any foreign country that we should
collect sales or other taxes on the exchange of merchandise on our system would harm our business.
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PayPal is subject to unique risks that could harm our business.

PayPal faces significant risks of loss due to fraud and disputes between senders and recipients. If PayPal isunable to deal effectively with
fraudulent transactions, PayPal’ s losses from fraud would increase, and its business would be harmed.

PayPal faces significant risks of loss due to fraud and disputes between senders and recipients, including:

eunauthorized use of credit card and bank account information and identity theft;
emerchant fraud and other disputes over the quality of goods and services,
epotential breaches of system security;

epotential employee fraud; and

euse of PayPal’s system by customersto makeor accept payment for illegal or improper purposes.

For the yearsended December31, 2001, and December31, 2002, PayPal’s provision for transaction losses totaled $14.8million and
$28.8million, respectively, representing 0.42% and 0.41% of PayPal’s total payment volume. In January 2003 PayPal increased the withdrawal
limit for unverified international users to $500 per month in certain countries. This increase may result in higher transaction losses.

PayPal incurs chargebacks and other |osses from merchant fraud, payment disputes and insufficient funds, and itsliability fromthese items
could have a material adverse effect on itsbusiness and result in PayPal losing the right to accept credit cardsfor payment. If PayPal is
prohibited from accepting credit cards for payment, its ability to compete could be impaired, and our business would suffer.

PayPal incurssubstantial losses from merchant fraud, including claimsfrom customersthat merchants have not performed, that their goods or
services do not match the merchant’ sdescription or that the customer did not authorize the purchase. PayPal also incurslosses from erroneous
transmissions and from customers who have closed bank accounts or have insufficient fundsin them to satisfy payments. PayPal’ s liability for
such itemscould have a material adverse effect on its business, and if they become excessive, could result in PayPal losing the right to accept
credit cards for payment. If PayPal were unable to accept credit cards, the velocity of trade on eBay could decrease, in which case our business
would suffer. PayPal hasbeen assessed substantial fines in the past, and excessive chargebacks may arisein the future. PayPal hastaken
measuresto detect and reduce the risk of fraud, but these measures may not be effective. If these measures do not succeed, our business will
suffer.

Unauthorized use of credit cardsand bank accounts could expose PayPal to substantial losses. If PayPal isunable to detect and prevent
unauthorized useof cardsand bank accounts, its business would suffer.

The highly automated nature of, and liquidity offered by, PayPal’s payment product makesPayPal an attractive target for fraud. In configuring
its product, PayPal faces an inherent trade-off between customer convenience and security. Identity thievesand those committing fraud using
stolen credit card or bank account numbers, oftenin bulk and in conjunction with automated mechanisms of online communication, potentially
can steal large amounts of money from businesses such as PayPal’s. PayPal believes that several of PayPal’s current and former competitors in
the electronic payments business have gone out of business or significantly restricted their businesseslargely due to losses from thistype of
fraud. PayPal expects that technically knowledgeable criminalswill continueto attempt to circumvent PayPal’ s anti-fraud systems. If they are
successful, our business will be harmed.

50

meres o SO irssss 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

PayPal’s processes to reduce fraud losses depend in part on its ability to restrict the withdrawal of customer funds while it investigates
suspicious transactions. PayPal has been and could be sued by plaintiffs alleging that PayPal’s restriction and investigation processes violate
federal and state law on consumer protection and unfair business practice, and are inconsistent with PayPal’ s user agreement. If PayPal is
unable to defend itself successfully, it could be required to restructure its anti-fraud processes in ways that would harm its business, andto pay
substantial damages.

Aspart of PayPal’s program to reduce fraud losses, it may temporarily restrict the ability of customersto withdraw their fundsif those funds or
their account activity are identified by PayPal’ s anti-fraud models as suspicious. PayPal is subject to severa purported class action lawsuits
challenging itsprocedures and disclosures withrespect to suspicious accounts (See “Item3: Legal Proceedings’), and if PayPal’s processes are
found to violate federal or statelaw on consumer protection and unfair business practices, it could be subject to an enforcement action or fines.
If PayPal loses this litigation or is subject to an enforcement action, it could be required to restructure its anti-fraud processesin waysthat
would harm its business, and to pay substantial damages. Even if PayPal is able to defend itself successfully, the litigation or enforcement
action could cause damage to its reputation, could consume substantial amounts of its management’ stime and attention, and could require
PayPal to changeits customer service and operations in waysthat could increase its costs and decrease the effectiveness of its anti-fraud
program.

Any failure to provide effective customer support could result in the loss of customers and inability to attract new customers, which would
harm PayPal’ s business.

Becauseit is providing afinancial serviceand operating in a moreregulated environment, PayPal, unlike eBay, must provide telephone as well
as email customer service, and must resolve certain customer contacts within shorter time frames. PayPal hasreceived negative publicity with
respect to its customer service andis the subject of purported class action lawsuits alleging, among other things, failureto resolve promptly
certain account restrictions. |f PayPal is unable to provide quality customer support operations in a cost-effective manner, its users may have
negative experiences, PayPal may receive additional negative publicity and its ability to attract new customers may be damaged. Current and
future revenues could suffer, or itsoperating margins may decrease. Inaddition, negative publicity about or experiences with PayPal’ s customer
support could cause eBay’ s reputation to suffer or affect consumer confidence in eBay as awhole.

Security and privacy breachesin PayPal’s electronic transactions may expose PayPal to additional liability and result in the loss of
customers, either of which events could harm its business.

Any inability on PayPal’ s part to protect the security and privacy of its electronic transactions could have a material adverse effect onits
profitability. A security or privacy breach could:

«expose PayPal to additional liability;

sncrease PayPal’ s expenses relating to resolution of these breaches; and

«eter customers fromusing PayPal’ s product.

PayPal’ s data security measures may not effectively counter evolving security risks or address the security and privacy concerns of existingand
potential customers. Any failuresin PayPal’s security and privacy measures could have a material adverse effect on our business.

PayPal could incur substantial losses from employee fraud and, as aresult, its business would suffer.
The large volume of paymentsthat PayPal handles for its customers makes it vulnerable to employee fraud or other internal security breaches.
PayPal isrequired to reimburse customersfor any funds stolen as a result of such breaches. We cannot assure you that PayPal’ sinternal security

systems will prevent material 1osses from employee fraud.
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PayPal’ s payment system might be used for illegal or improper purposes, which could expose it to additional liability and harm itsbusiness.

Despite measures PayPal has taken to detect and prevent identity theft, unauthorized usesof credit cardsand similar misconduct, its payment
system remains susceptibleto potentialy illegal or improper uses. These may includeillegal online gambling, fraudulent salesof goods or
services, illicit salesof prescription medications or controlled substances, software and other intellectual property piracy, money laundering,
bank fraud, child pornography trafficking, prohibited sales of alcoholic beverages and tobacco products and online securities fraud. Despite
mesasures PayPal hastaken to detect and lessen therisk of this kind of conduct, these measures may not succeed. The processing of these
payments could expose PayPal to liability. Inaddition, future regulations under the USA PATRIOT Act may require PayPdl to revise the
procedures it takes to verify theidentity of customersand to monitor moreclosely international transactions. PayPal’ s business could suffer if
customers useits system for illegal or improper purposes, or if usage of its system is reduced because of increased verification requirements.

PayPal’ s discontinuance of its processing of payments for online gambling merchants will reduce its revenue and profits; its past processing
of these accounts could subject it to liability.

PayPal completed its exit from the business of processing payments for online gambling merchantsin November 2002. Approximately 6% of
PayPal’ s revenues in 2002 were derived from this business. The loss of these revenues and related profits will adversely affect PayPal’s
financial results. As aresult of having beenin thisbusiness, PayPal has become subject to two inquiries related to payments made through its
service to online gambling merchants. In August 2002, PayPal reached agreement with the Attorney General of the State of New Y ork that it
would cease processing payments fromits New Y ork members to such merchants and pay the State of New Y ork $200,000 in penalties and
disgorged profitsand to cover the cost of investigation. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal provided documentsand information related to its
services to online gambling merchants in response to a federal grand jury subpoenaissued at the request of the U.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March28, 2003, PayPal received aletter from theU.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’ s provision of services to online gambling merchantsviolated 18 U.S.C.1960 of the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of fundsthat are known to have been derived from acriminal offense or areintended to be usedto promote or
support unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal to potential civil forfeiture of the amountsit received in connection with such activities as
well as potential criminal liability. The letter offered a complete settlement of all possible claimsand charges from the U.S.Attorney for the
Eastern District of Missouri if Paypal paid the purported amount of its earnings derived from online gambling merchants during the nine-month
period from October26, 2001 to July31, 2002, plusinterest. PayPal acted in the good faith belief that its conduct did not violate 18 U.S.C.1960
and PayPal calculates that the amount of its earnings from online gaming activities was lessthan asserted in the letter. Should this investigation
lead to acivil orcrimina charge against PayPal, we would be harmed by negative publicity, the cost of litigation andthe diversion of
management time, even if PayPal ultimately prevails. Any finding of a civil or crimina violation by PayPal, or potentially any settlement, could
also endanger PayPal’ s ability to obtain, maintain or renew money transmitter licenses in jurisdictions where it requires such licenses to operate,
whichwould materially harm our business.

Changes to card association rulesor practices could negatively affect PayPal’s service and, if it does not comply with therules, could result in
a termination of PayPal’s ability to accept credit cards. If PayPal isunable to accept credit cards, our business would suffer.

Because PayPal isnot abank, it cannot belong to and directly access theVisa and MasterCard credit card associations or the Automated
Clearing House, or ACH, payment network. Asaresult, PayPal must rely on banks and their service providers to processits transactions.
PayPal must comply with the operating rulesof the credit card associations and the National Automated Clearing House Association, or
NACHA, as they apply to merchants. The associations' member banks set these rules, and the associationsinterpret therules. Some of those
member banks compete with PayPal. Visa, MasterCard,
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American Express or Discover could adopt new operating rules or interpretations of existing rules which PayPeal or its processors might find
difficult or even impossibleto comply with, in which case PayPal could lose its ability to give customers the option of using credit cards to fund
their payments. If PayPal were unable to accept credit cards, its business would be seriously damaged. Inaddition, if PayPal were unable to
accept credit cards, thevelocity of trade on eBay could decrease and our business would suffer.

MasterCard has announced that a clarification of its rules, effective May1, 2002, requires each commercial customer that regularly uses PayPal
to accept payment for goods or services, to enter into a contract directly with the bank that processes MasterCard transactions for PayPal and to
agree to observe MasterCard rules. PayPal is complying with this rule through changesto itsUser Agreement, its internal processes, its
contractual relationship with its credit card processor, and by obtaining additional information about its larger customers. Asaresult, PayPal
has changed the interrel ationship among itself, its larger customers and its credit card processing bank in ways that will increase PayPal’ s costs
and may reduce the attractiveness of its service.

In 2001, Visaindicated that some of PayPal’s practices violated its operating rules, and PayPal implemented changesin response. In January
2002, PayPdl received correspondence through its credit card processor that threeissues remained unresolved. These issuesrelate to PayPal’s
international membership fees, its fees for international credit card funded payments, and its process for obtaining authorization to charge a
customer’s Visa account if thecustomer’s ACH transfer fails. 1n connection with these issues, PayPal’ s processor was assessed fines totaling
$130,000 by Visain 2002, $110,000 of which PayPal’s processor haspassed through to PayPal. PayPal has implemented changesto its
practices to resolve these issues, and believes these changes have resolved all outstandingissuesthat resulted in compliance fines from Visa.
However, these changes could make the PayPal service less attractive to its customers.

PayPal’s status under state, federal and international financial services regulation isunclear. Violation of or compliance with present or
future regulation could be costly, expose PayPal to substantial liability, force PayPal to change its business practices or force PayPal to cease
offering its current product.

PayPal operates in an industry subject to government regulation. PayPal currently is subject to some states money transmitter regulations, to
federal regulations inits role as transfer agent andinvestment adviser to the PayPal Money Market Fund, and to federal electronic fund transfer
and money laundering regulations. In the future, PayPal might be subjected to:

estate or federal banking regulations;
sadditional states money transmitter regulationsand federal money laundering regul ations;

einternational banking or financial servicesregulations or lawsgoverning other regulated industries; or

*U.S. and international regulation of Internet transactions.

If PayPal isfound to be in violation of any current or future regulations, PayPal could be:

sexposed to financial liability, including substantial fines which could be imposed on a per transaction basis and disgorgement of its
profits;
«forced to change itsbusiness practices; or

«forced to cease doing business altogether or withthe residents of one or more states or countries.

Any changeto PayPal’ s business practices that makesthe service less attractive to customersor prohibits its use by residents of a particular
jurisdiction could decrease the velocity of trade on eBay, in which case our business would suffer.
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If PayPal werefound to be subject to or inviolation of any lawsor regulations governing banking, it could be subject to liability and forced to
change itsbusiness practices.

PayPal believes that the licensing or approval requirements of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Reserve Board and
other federal or state agencies that regulate banks, bank holding companies or other types of providers of electronic commerce services do not
apply to PayPal, except for certain money transmitter licenses mentioned below. However, oneor more states may conclude that, under itsor
their statutes, PayPal is engagedin an unauthorized banking business. PayPal received written communications from regulatory authoritiesin
New Y ork, most recently in February 2002, and L ouisiana expressing theview that its service as it formerly operated constituted an
unauthorized banking business, and from authoritiesin Californiaand Idaho in 2001 that its service might constitute an unauthorized banking
business. PayPal has taken stepsto address these states' concerns, and has received a conclusion from the New Y ork Banking Department that
its current business model does not constitute illegal banking. PayPal also has obtained licenses to operate as a money transmitter in California,
Louisiana and Idaho. However, we cannot assure you that the steps PayPal has takento address state regulatory concerns will be effectivein all
states. If PayPal is foundto be engaged in an unauthorized banking businessin one or more states, it might be subject to monetary penalties and
adverse publicity and might be required to cease doing business withresidents of those states. Even if the stepsit has taken to resolve these
states' concerns are deemed sufficient by the state regulatory authorities, PayPal could be subject to fines and penalties for its prior activities.
The need to comply with state laws prohibiting unauthorized banking activities could also limit PayPal’ s ability to enhance itsservices in the
future. Any changeto PayPal’ s business practices that makesthe service less attractive to customers or prohibits its use by residents of a
particular jurisdiction could decrease the velocity of trade on eBay, in which case our business would suffer.

If PayPal werefound to be subject to or inviolation of any lawsor regulations governing money transmitters, it could be subject to liability
and forced to change its business practices.

A number of stateshave enacted legidlation regulating money transmitters and PayPal hasapplied for licenses under thislegislation in 28
jurisdictions. To date, PayPal has obtained licenses in 20 states and the District of Columbia. Asalicensed money transmitter, PayPal is subject
to bonding reguirements, restrictions onits investment of customer funds, reporting reguirements and inspection by stateregulatory agencies. If
PayPal’ s pending applications weredenied, or if it were found to be subject to and in violation of any money serviceslaws or regulations,
PayPal also could be subject to liability or forced to cease doing business with residents of certain statesor to changeits business practices.
Any change to PayPal’ s business practices that makes the service less attractive to customers or prohibits its use by residents of a particular
jurisdiction could decrease the velocity of trade on eBay, in which case our business would suffer. Even if PayPal isnot forced to changeits
business practices, it could be required to obtain licenses or regulatory approvalsthat could impose a substantial cost on PayPal.

If PayPal wereto be found subject to or in violation of any lawsor regulations governing electronic fund transfers, it could be subject to
liability and forced to changeits business practices.

Althoughthere have been no definitiveinterpretations to date, PayPal has assumed that its service is subject to the Electronic Fund Transfer
Act and RegulationE of the Federal Reserve Board. Asaresult, among other things, PayPal must provide advance disclosure of changestoits
service, follow specified error resolution procedures and absorb losses from transactions not authorized by the consumer. In addition, PayPal is
subject to the financial privacy provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and related regulations. Asa result, some customer financial
information that PayPal receives is subject to limitations on reuse and disclosure. Additionally, pending legislation at the state and federal levels
may restrict further PayPal’ sinformation gathering and disclosure practices. Existing and potential future privacy lawsmay limit PayPal’s
ability to develop new products and services that make use of data gathered through its service. The provisions of these laws and related
regulations are complicated, and PayPal does not have extensive experience in complying with these lawsand related regulations. Even
technical violations of
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these lawscan result in penalties of up to $1,000 assessed for each non-compliant transaction. During the years ended December31, 2001 and
December31, 2002, PayPal processed approximately 189,000 and 348,000 transactions per day, respectively, and any violations could expose
PayPal to significant liability.

PayPal is subject tolaws and regulations on money laundering and reporting of suspicious activities that could have a material adverse
impact onits business and could subject it to civil and criminal liability.

PayPal is subject to money laundering laws and regulationsthat prohibit, among other things, itsinvolvement in transferring the proceeds of
criminal activities. These lawsand regulations require PayPal to operate an anti-money laundering program that containsat least thefollowing
elements: written policiesand procedures (including thoserelating to customer identification), training for employees, designation of a
compliance officer, and regular independent review of the program. PayPal has adopted a program to comply with these regulations, but any
errors or failureto implement the program properly could lead to lawsuits, administrative action, fines and/or prosecution by the government.
PayPal is aso subject to regulations that require it to report suspicious activitiesinvolving transactions of $2,000 or more and to obtain and
keep more detailed records on the senders and recipientsin certain transfers of $3,000 or more. The interpretation of suspicious activitiesin this
context is uncertain. Future regulations under the USA PATRIOT Act may require PayPal to revise the procedures it takes to verify theidentity
of its customersand to monitor more closely international transactions. These regulations could impose significant costs on PayPal and make it
more difficult for new customers to join its network. PayPal could be required to learn more about its customersbefore opening an account, to
obtain additional verification of international customersand to monitor itscustomers’ activities more closely. These requirements could raise
PayPal’ s costs significantly and reduce the attractiveness of itsproduct. Failure to comply with federal and state money laundering laws could
result in significant criminal and civil lawsuits, penalties and forfeiture of significant assets.

PayPal’s status under banking or financial services laws or other laws in countries outside the U.S. is unclear. The cost of obtaining any
required licenses or regulatory approvals in these countries could affect PayPal’ s future profitability.

PayPal currently offers its product to customers withcredit cardsin 37 countries outside the U.S. In 19 of these countries, customerscan
withdraw fundsto local bank accounts. In these countries, it is hot clear whether, in order to provide its product in compliance with local law,
PayPal needs to be regulated as a bank or financia institution or otherwise. If PayPal were found to be subject to and in violation of any foreign
laws or regulations, it could be subject to liability, forced to changeits business practices or forced to suspend operations in one or more
countries. Alternatively, PayPal could be required to obtain licenses or regulatory approvals that could impose a substantial cost on it and
involve considerable delay to the provision or development of its product. Implementation of PayPal’s plansto enhance the attractiveness of its
product for international customers, in particular its plansto offer customersthe ability to transact business in major currencies in addition to
the U.S.dollar, will increase therisksthat it could be found to be in violation of laws or regulationsin countries outside the U.S. In the fourth
quarter of 2002, PayPal began offering customersthe ability to send or receive paymentsin Pounds, Euros, Canadian Dollars or Yen, in
addition to U.S.dollars.

PayPal’ s financial success will remain highly sensitiveto changesin therate at which itscustomers fund payments using credit cards rather
than bank account transfers or existing PayPal account balances. PayPal’s profitability could be harmed if the rate at which customers fund
using credit cards goes up.

PayPal payssignificant transaction feeswhen senders fund payment transactions using credit cards, nominal feeswhen customersfund
payment transactions by electronic transfer of funds from bank accounts and no feeswhen customers fund payment transactions from an
existing PayPal account balance. For the yearsended December31, 2001 and December31, 2002, senders funded 51.5% and 49.8%,

respectively, of PayPal’s payment volume using credit cards. Senders may resist funding paymentsby electronic transfer from bank accounts
because of the greater protection offered by credit cards, including
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the ability to dispute and reverse merchant charges, because of frequent flier miles or other incentives offered by credit cardsor because of
generalized fears regarding privacy or loss of control in surrendering bank account information to athird party.

Increases in credit card processing fees could increase PayPal’s costs, affect its profitability, or otherwise limit its operations.

Fromtimeto time, Visa, MasterCard, American Express and Discover increase theinterchange fees that they charge for each transaction using
their cards. MasterCard isimplementing an increase to its interchange fees effective April 2003. PayPal’s credit card processors have theright
to pass any increases in interchange feeson to PayPal. Any suchincreased feescould increase PayPal’ s operating costs and reduce its profit
margins. Furthermore, PayPal’ s credit card processors requireit to pledge cash as collateral withrespect to PayPal’ s acceptance of Visa,
MasterCard, American Express and Discover and the amount of cash that PayPal is required to pledge could be increased at any time.

PayPal haslimited experience in managing and accounting accurately for large amounts of customer funds. PayPal’ s failure to manage these
funds properly would harm its business.

PayPdl’ s ability to manage and account accurately for customer fundsrequires a high level of internal controls. PayPal hasneither an
established operating history nor proven management experiencein maintaining, over along term, these internal controls. AsPayPal’s business
continues to grow, it must strengthenitsinternal controls accordingly. PayPal’ s success requires significant public confidence in its ability to
handle large and growing transaction volumes and amounts of customer funds. Any failure to maintain necessary controls or to manage
accurately customer funds could diminish customer use of PayPal’s product severely.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about our customer service could affect use of our servicesadversely and, asa result, our
business could suffer.

Customer complaints or negative publicity about our customer service could diminish severely consumer confidence in and use of our services.
Breaches of our customers’ privacy and our security measures could have the same effect. Measureswe sometimes take to combat risks of fraud
and breaches of privacy and security can damage relations withour customers. These measures heighten the need for prompt and accurate
customer service to resolveirregularities and disputes. PayPal has received negative media coverage, as well as public criticism regarding
customer disputes. Effectivecustomer service requires significant personnel expense, and this expense, if not managed properly, could impact
our profitability significantly. Any inability by usto manage or train our customer service representatives properly could compromise our

ability to handle customer complaints effectively. If we do not handle customer complaints effectively, our reputation may suffer and we may
lose our customers’ confidence.

Our failure to manage growth could harmus.

We currently are experiencing a period of expansionin our headcount, facilities and infrastructure, and we anticipate that further expansion
will be required to address potential growthin our customer base and number of listings as well as our expansioninto new geographic areas,
types of goods and alternative methods of sale. This expansion has placed, and we expect it will continue to place, a significant strain on our
management, operational and financial resources. The areas that are put under strain by our growth include the following:

*The Websites. We must constantly add new hardware, update software and add new engineering personnel to accommodate the increased
useof our and our subsidiaries’ websites and the new products and features we are regularly introducing. This upgrade processis
expensive, and the increased complexity of our websitesincreases the cost of additional enhancements. If we areunable to increase the
capacity of our systemsat least as fast as the growthin demand for thiscapacity, our websites may become unstable and may cease to
operate for periods of time. We are
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inthemidst of asignificant multiyear project to enhance our current technical architecture. If thisproject is not successful, our business
could be harmed. We have experienced periodic unscheduled downtime. Continued unscheduled downtime would harmour business and
also could anger users of our websites and reduce future revenues.

«Customer Support. We are expanding our customer support operations to accommodate the increased number of users and transactions
on our websitesand the increased level of trust and safety activity we provide worldwide. If we are unable to provide these operations in
a cost-effective manner, users of our websites may have negative experiences, and current and future revenues could suffer, or our
operating margins may decrease.

*Customer Accounts. Our revenuesare dependent on prompt and accurate billing processes. If we are unable to grow our transaction
processing abilities to accommodate theincreasing number of transactions that must be billed, our ability to collect revenue will be
harmed.

Wemust continueto hire, train and manage new employeesat arapid rate. If our new hires perform poorly, or if we are unsuccessful in hiring,
training, managing and integrating these new employees, or if we arenot successful in retaining our existing employees, our business may be
harmed. To manage the expected growth of our operations and personnel, we will need to improve our transaction processing, operational and
financial systems, procedures and controls. Thisis a special challenge as we acquire new operations with different systems. Our current and
planned personnel, systems, procedures and controls may not be adequate to support our future operations. We may be unable to hire, train,
retain and manage required personne or to identify and take advantage of existing and potential strategic relationships and market
opportunities. The additional headcount and capital investmentswe are adding increase our cost base, whichwill make it more difficult for us to
offset any future revenue shortfalls by offsetting expense reductions in the short term.

Our business may be harmed by thelisting or sale by our usersof illegal items.

The law relating to the liability of providers of online services for the activities of their users ontheir serviceis currently unsettled. We are
awarethat certain goods, such asfirearms, other weapons, adult material, tobacco products, alcohol and other goods that may be subject to
regulation by local, stateor federal authorities, have been listed and traded on our service or paid for through PayPal. We may be unable to
prevent the sale of unlawful goods, or the sale of goods in an unlawful manner, by users of our service (including PayPal users), and we may be
subject to allegations of civil or criminal liability for unlawful activities carried out by users through our service. We have been subject to
several lawsuitsbased upon such allegations. In order to reduce our exposure to this liability, we have prohibited thelisting of certain items and
increased the number of personnel reviewing questionable items. Inthe future, we may implement other protective measuresthat could require
usto spend substantial resources and/or to reduce revenues by discontinuing certain service offerings. Any costsincurred as aresult of liability
or asserted liability relating to the sale of unlawful goods or the unlawful sale of goods, could harm our business. In addition, we have received
significant and continuing media attention relating to the listing or sale of unlawful goods on our websites. This negative publicity could
damage our reputation and diminish the value of our brand name. It also could make usersreluctant to continue to use our services.

We are subject to intellectual property and other litigation.

On April25, 2001, our European subsidiaries, eBay GmbH and eBay International AG, were sued by MontresRolex S.A. and certain Rolex
affiliates, or Rolex, in theregional court of Cologne, Germany. The suit subsequently was transferred to the regional court in Dusseldorf,
Germany. Rolex alleged that our subsidiaries were infringing Rolex’ strademarks asa result of users selling counterfeit Rolex watchesthrough
our German website. The suit also alleges unfair competition. Rolex sought an order forbidding the sale of Rolex watches on the website aswell
as damages. In December 2002, atrial was held in the matter and the court ruled in favor of eBay on al causes of action. Rolex has appealed
the ruling, but the appeal hasnot yet been briefed or heard.
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On September26, 2001, a complaint was filed by MercExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsidiary and ReturnBuy, Inc. inthe Eastern
District of Virginia (No.2:01-CV-736) alleging infringement of three patents (relating to online auction technology, multiple database searching
and electronic consignment systems) and seeking a permanent injunction and damages (including treble damages for willful infringement). We
answered the complaint, denying theallegations. In April 2002, we filed four motions for summary judgment relating to thethree patents in suit.
The court denied three of those motions and deferred ruling on thefourth motion. A “Markman” hearing washeld in July 2002 to define certain
disputed terms in the patents, and in October 2002 the court issued its claim construction findings. In October 2002, the court gave usleave to
amend our answer to include a claim that MercExchange committed fraud on the patent office during the prosecution of one of the patents. On
the samedate, the court granted in part our pending summary judgment motion, effectively invalidating the patent related to online auction
technology andrendering it unenforceable. In November 2002, we filed two additional summary judgment motions regarding the patents. One
motion wasdenied as moot; the other wasdenied because the court found there were triable issues of fact. In February 2003, wefiled an
additional summary judgment motion, which is still pending. Only two patentsremain in the case at thistime. Trial is scheduled for April22,
2003. We believe we have meritorious defenses and will defend ourselves vigorously. However, even if successful, our defense against this
action will be costly and could divert our management’ stime. If the plaintiff were to prevail onany of itsclaims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modify our business practices or even be enjoined from conducting a significant part of our U.S.
business. Any such results could materially harm our business. We are unable to determine what potential losseswe may incur if this lawsuit
were to have an unfavorable outcome,

On September6, 2002, a complaint was filed by First USA Bank, N.A. against PayPal intheDistrict of Delaware (N0.02-CV-1462) alleging
infringement of two patents relating to assigning an alias to a credit card so as to eliminate the need for thephysical presence of the card ina
transaction and seeking a permanent injunction and damages. PayPal believes it has meritorious defenses and intends to defend itself
vigorously. However, even if successful, our defense against this action will be costly and could divert management’ stime. If the plaintiff were
to prevail onits claims, PayPal might be forced to pay significant damages and licensing fees or modify its business practices. Any such result
could materially harm our business. We are unable to determine what potential losses we may incur if this suit were to have anunfavorable
outcome.

On August16, 2002, Charlesk. Hill Associates, Inc., or Hill, filed alawsuitin the U.S.District Court for the Eastern District of Texas
(No.2:02-CV-186) alleging that we and 17 other companies, primarily large retailers, infringed three patents owned by Hill generally relating to
electronic catalog systems and methods for transmitting and updating data at a remote computer. The suit seeks aninjunction against continuing
infringement, unspecified damages, including treble damages for willful infringement, and interest, costs, expenses and fees. In January 2003,
the court granted the collective defendants' motionto transfer the case from the court where it wasfiled in Marshall, Texasto the Federal
District Court for the Southern District of Indiana. We believe that we have meritorious defenses and intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

On February20, 2002, PayPal wassued in California state court in a purported class action alleging that its restriction of customer accounts and
failureto promptly unrestrict legitimate accounts violates state consumer protection law and is an unfair business practice and a breach of
PayPal’s User Agreement. This action wasrefiled with a different named plaintiff on June6, 2002, and arelated action wasfiled in the
U.S.District Court for the Northern District of Californiaon the same day. On March12, 2002, PayPal wassued in the U.S.District Court for the
Northern District of Californiain a purported class action alleging that its restrictions of customer accounts and failureto promptly unrestrict
legitimate accounts violates federal and state consumer protection and unfair business practice law. The court has denied PayPal’ s motion to
compel individual arbitration asrequired by the PayPal User Agreement and has invalidated that provision of the User Agreement. The two
federal court actions have been consolidated into asingle case. PayPal is defending itself vigorously, but if it is unable to prevail in these
lawsuits, it
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may have to changeits anti-fraud operations in a manner that will harm its business and pay substantial damages. Even if itsdefenseis
successful, thelitigation could damage PayPal’ s reputation, could require significant management time, will be costly and could require
changesto its customer service and operations that could increase its costs and decrease the effectiveness of its anti-fraud program.

Three purported class action complaints werefiled following announcement of the PayPal merger in July 2002 in the court of Chancery inthe
State of Delaware in and for New Castle County by aleged stockholdersof PayPal. Two additiona purported class action complaints were filed
inthe Superior Court of the State of California, County of Santa Clara, by aleged PayPal stockholders. These complaints name as defendants
PayPal and each member of itsboard of directors as well as eBay. The complaints are purported class actions that allege, among other things,
that eBay controlled PayPal prior to the execution of their merger agreement, the defendants breached fiduciary dutiesthey assertedly owed to
PayPal’ s stockholders in connection withPayPal entering into the merger agreement and the exchange ratio in the merger was unfair and
inadequate. The plaintiffs seek, among other things, anaward of unspecified compensatory damages. We believe that each of the lawsuitsis
without merit and intend to defend ourselves vigorousdly.

Other third parties have from time to time claimed, and others may claimin the future, that we have infringed their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We have in the past been forced to litigate such claims. We may become more vulnerableto such claimsas laws
such asthe Digital Millennium Copyright Act and Communications Decency Act areinterpreted by the courts and as weexpand into
jurisdictions wherethe underlying laws with respect to the potential liability of online intermediaries like ourselves is less favorable. We expect
that we will increasingly be subject to copyright and trademark infringement claims as the geographical reach of our services expands. We aso
expect that we will increasingly be subject to patent infringement claimsas our services expand. In particular, we expect that patent
infringement claims involving various aspects of our Payments business will continue to be made. We have been notified of several potential
disputes and are subject to a suit by Tumbleweed Communications Corporation that is currently ongoing. These claims, whether meritorious or
not, could be time-consuming, result in costly litigation, cause service upgrade delays, require expensive changes in our methods of doing
business or could require usto enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements, if available. Asaresult, these claims could harm our business.

Our business may be harmed by thelisting or sale by our users of pirated or counterfeit items.

We have received in the past, and we anticipate we will receivein the future, communications alleging that certain items listed or sold through
our service by our users infringethird-party copyrights, trademarks and tradenamesor other intellectual property rights. Although wehave
sought to work actively with the content community to eliminate infringing listings on our websites, some content owners have expressed the
view that our effortsare insufficient. Content owners have been active in defending their rights against online companies, including eBay.
Allegations of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights havein the past and may in the future result in litigation against us. Such
litigationis costly for us, could result in increased costs of doing business through adverse judgment or settlement, could require usto change
our business practices in expensive ways, or could otherwise harm our business. Litigation against other online companies could result in
interpretations of thelaw that could also require usto change our business practices or otherwise increase our Costs.

Our business may be harmed by fraudulent activities on our websites.

Our future success will depend largely upon sellers reliably delivering and accurately representing their listed goods and buyers paying the
agreed purchase price. We havereceived in the past, and anticipate that we will receivein thefuture, communications from users who did not
receive the purchase price or the goods that wereto have been exchanged. In some casesindividuals have been arrested and convicted for
fraudulent activities using our websites. While we can suspend the accounts of users who fail to fulfill their delivery obligationsto other users,
we do not have the ability to require users to makepayments or deliver goods or otherwise make users whole other than through our limited
buyer protection programs.
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Other than through these programs, we do not compensate userswho believe they have been defrauded by other users. We aso periodically
receive complaints from buyers as to the quality of the goods purchased. Negative publicity generated as a result of fraudulent or deceptive
conduct by users of our service could damage our reputation and diminish the value of our brand name. We expect to continue to receive
communications from usersrequesting reimbursement or threatening or commencing legal action against usif no reimbursement is made. Our
liability for these sort of claimsis only beginning to be clarified and may be higher in some non-U.S. jurisdictions thanit isin the U.S. This sort
of litigation could be costly for us, divert management attention, result in increased costs of doing business, lead to adverse judgmentsor could
otherwise harm our business. In addition, affected userswill likely complain to regulatory agencieswho could take action against us, including
imposing fines or seeking injunctions.

Government inquiries may lead to chargesor penalties.

On January29, 1999, we received initial requeststo produce certain records and information to the federal government relating to an
investigation of possible illegal transactions in connection with our websites. We wereinformed that the inquiry includes an examination of our
practices with respect to these transactions. We have continued to provide further information in connection with this ongoing inquiry. In order
to protect theinvestigation, the court has ordered that no further public disclosures be made with respect to the matter. Should this or any other
investigation lead to civil or criminal chargesagainst us, we would likely be harmed by negative publicity, thecost of litigation, the diversion of
management time and other negative effects, even if we ultimately prevail. Our business would suffer if we were not to prevail in any action like
this. Even the process of providing records and information can be expensive, time consuming and result in thediversion of management
attention.

PayPal completed its exit from the business of processing payments for online gambling merchantsin November 2002. Approximately 6% of
PayPal’ s revenues in 2002 were derived from this business. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal provided documentsand information related to its
services to online gambling merchantsin response to a federal grand jury subpoenaissued at the request of the U.S.Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March28, 2003, PayPal received aletter from the U.S.Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’ s provision of services to online gambling merchants violated 18U.S.C. 1960 of the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of fundsthat areknown to have been derived from a criminal offense or areintended to be usedto promote or
support unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal to potentia civil forfeiture of the amountsit received in connection with such activities as
well as potential criminal liability. The letter offered a complete settlement of all possible claimsand charges from the U.S.Attorney for the
Eastern District of Missouri if PayPal paid the purported amount of its earnings derived from online gambling merchants during the nine-month
period from October26, 2001 to July31, 2002, plusinterest. PayPal acted in the good faith belief that its conduct did not violate 18U.S.C. 1960
and PayPal calculates that the amount of its earnings from online gaming activitieswas lessthan asserted in the letter. Should this investigation
lead to acivil orcriminal charge against PayPal, we would be harmed by negative publicity, the cost of litigation andthe diversion of
management time, even if PayPal ultimately prevails. Any finding of acivil or criminal violation by PayPal, or potentially any settlement, could
also endanger PayPal’ s ability to obtain, maintain or renew money transmitter licenses in jurisdictions where it requires such licenses to operate,
whichwould materially harm our business.

A large number of transactions occur on our websites. We believe that government regulators have received a substantial number of consumer
complaints about both eBay and PayPal, which, while small asa percentage of our total transactions, are large in aggregate numbers. Asa
result, we have from time to time been contacted by variousforeign, federal, state andlocal regulatory agenciesand been told that they have
guestions with respect to the steps we take to protect our usersfrom fraud and about our operations. We are likely to receive additional
inquiries from regulatory agencies in the future, which may lead to action against us. We have responded to al inquiries from regulatory
agencies by describing our current and planned antifraud efforts, customer support procedures and operating procedures. If one or more of
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these agencies is not satisfied with our response to current or future inquiries, the resultant investigationsand potential fines or other penalties
could harmour business.

We are subject to lawsrelating to the use and transfer of personally identifiable information about our users and their transfers, especially
outside of the U.S. Violation of these laws, whichin many casesapply not only to third-party transfers but also to transfers of information
between ourselves and our subsidiaries, and between ourselves, our subsidiaries and our commercial partners could subject usto significant
penalties and negative publicity and could adversely affect us.

Acquisitions could resultin operating difficulties, dilution and other harmful consequences.

We have acquired a number of businesses, including our acquisitions of Half.com, Internet Auction, iBazar, HomesDirect.com, NeoCom and
PayPal. We expect to continue to evaluate and consider awide array of potential strategic transactions, including business combinations,
acquisitions and dispositions of businesses, technologies, services, products and other assets, including interests in our existing subsidiaries and
joint ventures. At any given time we may be engaged in discussions or negotiations with respect to one or more of such transactions. Any of
such transactions could be material to our financial condition and results of operations. There is no assurance that any such discussionsor
negotiations will result in the consummation of any transaction. The process of integrating any acquisition, including the acquisition of PayPal,
may create unforeseen operating difficultiesand expenditures and isitself risky. The areas wherewe may face difficultiesinclude:

ediversion of management time at both companies during the period of negotiation through closing and further diversion of such time after
closing, as well as a shift of focus from operating the businesses to issues of integration and future products;

«declining employee morale and retention issues resulting from changesin compensation, reporting relationships, future prospects or the
direction of the business,

stheneed to integrate each company’ s accounting, management information, human resource and other administrative systems to permit
effective management, and the lack of control if suchintegration isdelayed or not implemented;

«the need to implement controls, procedures and policies appropriate for alarger public company at companies that prior to acquisition
had lacked such controls, procedures and policies; and

«in some cases, the need to transition operations onto the existing eBay platform.

Foreign acquisitions involve special risks, including those related to integration of operations across different cultures, languages, currency
risks and the particular economic, political and regulatory risks associated with specific countries. Moreover, theanticipated benefitsof any or
all of our acquisitions may not be realized. Future acquisitions or mergers could result in potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities, the
incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities or amortization expensesrelated to goodwill and other intangible assets, any of which could harm our
business. Future acquisitions or mergers may require us to obtain additional equity or debt financing, which may not be available on favorable
termsor at all. Even if available, this financing may be dilutive.

Problems with third parties who provide services to our users could harm us.

A number of third parties provide services to our users that indirectly benefit us. Such servicesinclude seller tools that automate and manage
listings, merchant tools that manage listings and interface withinventory management software, photo hosting, and other services. In many
cases wehave contractual agreements with these companies, which may give usadirect financial interest in their success, whilein other cases
we have none. In either circumstance, financial, regulatory or other problems that prevent these companies from providing servicesto our users
could reduce the number of listings on our websites or make completing transactions on our websites more difficult, and thereby harm our
business.
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Inaddition, although we generally have been able to renew or extend theterms of contractual arrangements with our third party service
providers on acceptable terms, there can be no assurance that we will continueto be able to do so in the future. Our contractua arrangement
with our third-party photo hosting service provider is scheduled to expire on September30, 2003, subject to certain post-termination
obligations. If we are unable either to renegotiate the contract on terms acceptable to us, to build equivalent functionality ourselves or to find an
alternative supplier, our business would be adversely affected.

Third parties or governmental agencies may view our behavior asanti-competitive.

Third parties, including PayPal before its acquisition by us, have in the past and may in the future allege that actions taken by us violate the
antitrust or competition lawsof the U.S. or other countries, or otherwise constitute unfair competition. Such claimstypically arevery expensive
to defend, involve negative publicity and diversion of management time and effort and could result in significant judgmentsagainst us, all of
whichwould adversely affect us.

We have provided information to the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice in connection with an inquiry into our conduct with
respect to “auction aggregators’ includingour licensing program and apreviously settled lawsuit against Bidder’s Edge. Although the Antitrust
Division hasclosed this inquiry, if the Department of Justice or any other antitrust agency wereto open other investigations of our activities, we
would likely be harmed by negative publicity, the costs of the action, possible private antitrust lawsuits, thediversion of management time and
effort and penaltieswe might suffer if we ultimately were not to prevail.

Some of our businesses are subject to regulation and others may be in the future.

Asour activities and the types of goods listed on our site expand, stateregulatory agenciesmay claim that we are subject to licensure in their
jurisdiction, either withrespect to our services in general, or in order to allow the sale of certain items (e.g., real estate, boats, automobiles). We
are currently subject to potential regulation under the Office of Banksand Real Estate, or OBRE, in Illinoisconcerning the applicability of the
Illinois Auction law to our services. In August 2002, Illinoisamended thelllinois auction law to provide for a special regulatory regime for
“Internet auctionlisting services.” We expect to register as anlnternet auction listing servicein Illinoisfollowing the adoption of regulations
under the amended statute. Although we do not expect this registration to have a negative impact on our business, other regulatory and licensure
claims could result in costly litigation or could require usto change our manner of doing businessin waysthat increase our costs or reduce our
revenues or force usto prohibit listings of certain items for somelocations. We could also be subject to fines or other penalties. Any of these
outcomes could harm our business.

Aswe have expanded internationally, we have become subject to additional regulations, including regulations on thetransmission of personal
information. These laws may require costly changesto our business practices. If we are found to have violated any of these laws, we could be
subject to fines or penalties, and our business could be harmed.

Our revenues from third-party advertising and end-to-end services are subject to factors beyond our control and areexpected to decrease.

We recognize revenues from end-to-end service providers and direct advertising promotions. These revenues may be affected by thefinancial
condition of the parties with whom wehave these relationships and by the success of online promotions generally. Recently, the pricing of
online advertisements has deteriorated. Our direct advertising revenues historically have been dependent in significant part on the performance
of AOL’ssalesforce. Our advertising sales relationship with AOL hasnot been extended or renewed and is scheduled to terminate on March31,

2003, after whichtime we will be dependent on the efforts of our existinginternal sales staff. Reduction in these revenues would adversely
affect our results.
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At this time, we expect third-party advertising and end-to-end services revenuesto decrease substantially on an absolute basis in 2003 relative
to 2002.

We are subject to risks associated with information disseminated through our service.

The law relating to the liability of online services companies for information carried on or disseminated through their services is currently
unsettled. Claims could be made against online services companies under both U.S. and foreign law for defamation, libel, invasion of privacy,
negligence, copyright or trademark infringement, or other theories based on the nature and content of the materials disseminated through their
services. Severa private lawsuitsseeking to impose liability upon us under a number of these theories have been brought against us. In addition,
federal, state andforeign legislation has been proposed that imposes liability for or prohibits thetransmission over the Internet of certain types
of information. Our servicefeatures a Feedback Forum, which includesinformation from users regarding other users. Although all such
feedback is generated by users and not by us, claims of defamation or other injury have been made in the past and could be made in the future
against usfor content posted in the Feedback Forum. Claims like these are more likely and may have a higher probability of successin
jurisdictions outside the U.S. If we becomeliable for information provided by our users and carried on our service in any jurisdiction in which
we operate, we could be directly harmed and we may be forced to implement new measures to reduce our exposure to thisliability. This may
require usto expend substantial resources and/or to discontinue certain service offerings, which would negatively affect our financial results. In
addition, theincreased attention focused upon liability issues as a result of these lawsuits and legidative proposals could harm our reputation or
otherwise impact the growth of our business. Any costsincurred as aresult of this liability or asserted liability could harm our business.

The inability to expand our systemsmay limit our growth.

We seek to generate a high volume of traffic and transactions on our services. The satisfactory performance, reliability and availability of our
websites, processing systems and network infrastructure are critical to our reputation and our ability to attract and retain large numbers of users.
Our revenues depend primarily on the number of items listed by users, thevolume of user transactions that are successfully completed, thefinal
prices paid for the items listed and the volume of payment transactions by our payment customers. We need to expand and upgrade our
technology, transaction processing systems and network infrastructure both to meet increased traffic on our site and to implement new features
and functions, including those required under our contracts with third parties. We may be unable to project accurately the rate or timing of
increases, if any, in the use of our service or to expand and upgrade our systemsand infrastructure to accommodate any increases in atimely
fashion.

Weuse internally developed systemsto operate our service for transaction processing, including billing and collections processing. We must
continually improve thesesystems in order to accommodate the level of use of our websites. In addition, we may add new features and
functionality to our services that would result in the need to develop or license additiona technologies. We capitalize hardware and software
costs associated with this devel opment in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and include such amounts in property and
equipment. Our inability to add additional software and hardware or to upgrade our technology, transaction processing systems or network
infrastructure to accommodate increased traffic or transaction volume could have adverse consequences. These consequences include
unanticipated system disruptions, slower response times, degradation in levelsof customer support, impaired quality of theusers' experiences
of our serviceand delays in reporting accurate financia information. Our failureto provide new features or functionality also could resultin
these consequences. We may be unable to effectively upgrade and expand our systemsin atimely manner or to integrate smoothly with our
existing systemsany newly developed or purchased technologies or businesses such asPayPal. These difficulties could harmor limit our ability
to expand our business.
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Unauthorized break-insor other assaults on our services could harm our business.

Our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, physical or electronic break-insand similar disruptions, which could lead to interruptions,
delays, loss of data, public release of confidential data or the inability to complete customer transactions. In addition, unauthorized persons may
improperly access our data. eBay has experienced an unauthorized break-in by a*hacker” who has stated that he could, in the future, damage or
change our system or take confidential information. We have also experienced “denial of service” typeattacks on our system that have made all
or portions of our websitesunavailable for periods of time. These and other types of attacks could harm us. Actions of this sort may be very
expensive to remedy and could damage our reputation and discourage new and existing users from using our services.

System failures could harm our business.

Our system has been designed around industry standard architectures to reduce downtime in the event of outages or catastrophic occurrences.
Our services provide 24 hours-a-day, seven days-a-week availability, subject to a weekly scheduled two-hour maintenance period. Our systems
and operations are vulnerableto damage or interruption from earthquakes, floods, fires, power loss, telecommunication failures, terrorist
attacks, computer viruses, computer denial of service attacks and similar events. They are also subject to break-ins, sabotage, intentional acts of
vandalism and to potentia disruption if the operators of these facilities have financia difficulties. Only some of our systems are fully redundant
and we do not carry business interruption insurance sufficientto compensate usfor losses that may occur. Despite any precautions we may take,
the occurrence of a natural disaster, adecision to close a facility we are using without adequate notice for financial reasons or other
unanticipated problems at our hosting facilities could result in lengthy interruptionsin our services. In addition, thefailure by our hosting
facilities to provide our required data communications capacity could result ininterruptionsin our service. Any damageto or failure of our
systems could result ininterruptionsin our service. Interruptions in our service will reduce our revenuesand profits, and our future revenues
and profitswill be harmed if our users believe that our system isunreliable.

We have experienced system failures from timeto time. eBay’ s primary website has been interrupted for periods of up to 22 hours. Inaddition
to placing increased burdens on our engineering staff, these outages create a flood of user questions and complaints that need to be addressed
by our customer support personnel. Any unscheduled interruption in our services resultsin an immediate |oss of revenues that can be substantial
and may cause some users to switch to our competitors. If we experience frequent or persistent systemfailures on our websites, our reputation
and brand could be permanently harmed. We have been taking stepsto increase thereliability and redundancy of our systems. These steps are
expensive, reduce our margins and may not be successful in reducing the frequency or duration of unscheduled downtime.

Our infrastructure could prove unable to handle alarger volume of customer transactions. Any failureto accommodate transaction growth
could impair customer satisfaction, lead to aloss of customers, impair our ability to add customers or increase its costs, al of whichwould
harm our business.

Because our customers may use our products for critical transactions, any errors, defects or other infrastructure problems could result in
damageto our customers’ businesses. These customerscould seek significant compensation from usfor their losses. Even if unsuccessful, this
type of claim likely would be time consuming and costly for usto address.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Net revenues outside the United States accounted for approximately 15% of our net revenues in 2001 and 26% in 2002. Because a significant
and growing portion of our businessis conducted outside the United States, we face exposure to adverse movementsin non-U.S. currency
exchange rates. The results of operations of our internationally focused websitesare exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as the
financial results of the applicable subsidiaries are trandated from the local currency into U.S. dollars upon consolidation. Inconnection withits
multi-currency service, PayPal fixesexchange rates twiceper day, and
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thus may face financia exposure if exchange rates moverapidly or if the rateis set incorrectly. As exchangerates vary, net sales and other
operating results, when trandated, may differ materially from expectations. In particular, to the extent the U.S. dollar strengthensagainst the
Euro, our European revenues and profitswill be reduced as theresult of these trandation adjustments.

Our stock price has been and may continueto be extremely volatile.

The trading price of our common stock has been and islikely to be extremely volatile. Our stock price could be subject to wide fluctuationsin
response to avariety of factors, includingthe following:

eactual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results;

eunscheduled system downtime;

sadditions or departures of key personnel;

sannouncements of technological innovations or new servicesby usor our competitors;
echangesin financial estimates by securities analysts;

econditions or trends in the Internet and online commerceindustries;

echangesin the market valuations of other Internet companies;

edevelopmentsin regulation;

seventsaffecting PayPal’ s business;

eannouncements by usor our competitors of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments,
eunanticipated economic or political events;

esalesof our common stock or other securities in the open market; and

other eventsor factors, including these described in this “Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Operations and Financial Condition”
section and others that may be beyond our control.

Inaddition, the trading prices of Internet stocksin general, and oursin particular, have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations in
recent periods. These fluctuations often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of these companies.
Notwithstanding a sharp decline in the prices of Internet stocksin general, the valuation of our stock remains extraordinarily high based on
conventional valuation standards such as price-to-earnings and price-to-sales ratios. The trading price of our common stock has increased
enormously from theinitial public offering price. Thistrading price and valuation may not be sustained. Negative changesin the public's
perception of the prospects of Internet or e-commerce or technology companies havein thepast and may in the future depress our stock price
regardless of our results. Other broad market and industry factorsmay decrease the market price of our common stock, regardless of our
operating performance. Market fluctuations, aswell as general political and economic conditions, such asrecession or interest rate or currency
rate fluctuations, also may decrease the market price of our common stock. In the past, following declinesin the market price of acompany’s
securities, securities class-action litigation often has been instituted. Litigation of thistype, if instituted, could result in substantial costs anda
diversion of management’s attention and resources.

New and existing regulations could harm our business.

We are subject to the same foreign, federal, stateand local laws as other companies conducting business on and off the Internet. Today there
are relatively few lawsspecifically directed towards online services. However, due to the increasing popularity and use of thelnternet and
online services, many lawsrelating to the Internet are being debated at the state and federal levels (both intheU.S. and abroad) and it is
possible that lawsand regulations will be adopted with respect to the Internet or online services. These laws and regulations could cover issues
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content and quality of products and services, taxation, advertising, intellectual property rights and information security. Applicability to the
Internet of existing lawsgoverning issues such as property ownership, copyrights and other intellectual property issues, taxation, libel,
obscenity and persona privacy isuncertain. The vast mgjority of theselaws were adopted prior to the advent of the Internet and related
technologies and, as a result, do not contemplate or address the uniqueissues of the Internet and related technologies. Those laws that do
reference the Internet, such as the U.S. Digital Millennium Copyright Act and the European Union’s (E.U.) Directive on Distance Selling and
Electronic Commerceare only now beginning to be interpreted by the courts andimplemented by the E.U. Member States, and so their
applicability and scope remain somewhat uncertain. In addition, numerous states and foreign jurisdictions, including the State of California,
where our headquarters islocated, have regulations regarding how “auctions’ may be conducted and theliability of “auctioneers’ in conducting
such auctions. Nofinal legal determination hasbeen made withrespect to the applicability of the California regulationsto our businessto date
and little precedent existsin this area. Several states and someforeign jurisdictions have attempted, and may attempt in the future, imposing
such regulations upon usor our users, which could harm our business. In addition, as the nature of the products listed by our users changes, we
may become subject to new regulatory restrictions, such as licensure as an auto dealer or real estate broker.

Several domestic jurisdictions have proposed, and Minnesota hasrecently passed, legislation that would limit the uses of personal user
information gathered online or offline. Many jurisdictions aready have such lawsand continuously consider strengthening them, especially
against online services. eBay and PayPal in certain instances are subject to some of these current laws. PayPal may be subject to recently
enacted legidlation in several statesand countries imposing greater restrictionson the ability of financial services companies to share user
information with third parties without affirmative user consent. The U.S. Federa Trade Commission also hassettled severa proceedings
against companies regarding the manner in which personal information is collected from usersand provided to third parties. Specific statutes
intended to protect user privacy have been passed in many non-U.S. jurisdictions, including virtually every non-U.S. jurisdiction where we
currently have awebsite. Compliance with these laws, given the tight integration of our systemsacross different countries and the need to move
data to facilitate transactions amongst our users(e.g., to payment companies, shipping companies, €tc.), is both necessary and difficult. Failure
to comply could subject usto lawsuits, fines, criminal penalties, statutory damages, adverse publicity and other losses that could harm our
business. Changesto existing laws or the passage of new laws intended to address these issues could directly affect the way we do business or
could create uncertainty on the Internet. This could reduce demand for our services, increase the cost of doing business as aresult of litigation
costsor increased serviceor delivery costs, or otherwise harm our business. In addition, because our services are accessible worldwide, and we
facilitate sales of goodsto users worldwide, foreign jurisdictions may claim that we are required to comply with their laws. For example, the
Australian high court hasruled that a U.S. website in certain circumstances must comply with Australian laws regarding libel. As we have
expanded our international activities, we have become obligated to comply with thelaws of the countries in which we operate. Laws regulating
Internet companies outside of the U.S. may be lessfavorable than thosein the U.S., giving greater rightsto consumers, content owners and
users. Compliance may be more costly or may require us to change our business practices or restrict our service offerings relative to thosein the
U.S. Our failure to comply with foreign laws could subject usto penalties ranging from criminal fines to bans on our ability to offer our
services.

We are dependent on the continued growth of online commerce.

The business of selling goods over the Internet, particularly through onlinetrading, is new and dynamic. Our future net revenues and profits
will be substantially dependent upon the widespread acceptance of the Internet and online services asa medium for commerce by consumers.
Rapid growth in the use of and interest in the Internet and online services is a recent phenomenon. This acceptance and use may not continue.
Even if the Internet is accepted, concernsabout fraud, privacy and other problems may mean that a sufficiently broad base of consumers will
not adopt the Internet as a medium of commerce. In particular, our websites require users to make publicly available personal information that
some potential users may be unwilling to provide. These concerns may increase as additional publicity over
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privacy issues on eBay or generally over the Internet increase. Market acceptance for recently introduced services and products over the
Internet is highly uncertain, and there are few proven services and products. In order to expand our user base, we must appeal to and acquire
consumers who historically have used traditional means of commerce to purchase goods. If these consumers prove to be less active than our
earlier users, and we are unable to gain efficienciesin our operating costs, including our cost of acquiring new customers, our business could be
adversely impacted.

We are dependent on key personnel.

Our future performancewill be substantially dependent on the continued services of our senior management and other key personnel. Our
future performance also will depend on our ability to retain and motivate our other officers and key personnel. The loss of the services of any of
our executive officers or other key employees could harm our business. We do not have long-term employment agreements with any of our key
personnel, we do not maintain any “key person” lifeinsurance policies, and our Chief Executive Officer has fully vested the vast mgjority of her
equity incentives. Our new businesses areall dependent on attracting and retaining key personnel. Inaddition, employee turnover and other
labor problems frequently increase during the period following an acquisition as employees evaluate possible changesin compensation, culture,
reporting relationships and the direction of the business. Such increased turnover could increase our costs and reduce our future revenues. Our
future success also will depend on our ability to attract, train, retain and motivate highly skilled technical, managerial, marketing and customer
support personnel. Competition for thesepersonnd isintense, and we may be unable to successfully attract, integrate or retain sufficiently
qualified personnel. In making employment decisions, particularly in the Internet and high-technology industries, job candidates often consider
the value of the stock options they are to receive in connection with their employment. Fluctuations in our stock price may make it more
difficult to retain and motivate employees whose stock option strike prices are substantially above current market prices.

Our industry isintensely competitive.

Depending on the category of product, we currently or potentially compete with a number of companies serving particular categories of goods
as well as those serving broader ranges of goods. The Internet provides new, rapidly evolving and intensely competitive channels for the sale of
all types of goods. We expect competition to intensify in the future asthe barriers to entry into these channels are relatively low, ascurrent
offline and new competitors can easily launch online sites at a nominal cost using commercially available softwareor partnering with any one of
anumber of successful electronic commerce companies. Our broad-based competitors include thevast magjority of traditional department,
warehouse, discount and general merchandise stores, emerging onlineretailers, online classified services, and other shopping channels such as
offline and online home shopping networks. These include most prominently: Wal-Mart, Kmart, Target, Sears, Macy’s, JC Penney, Costco,
Office Depot, Staples, OfficeMax, Sam’s Club, Amazon.com, Buy.com, AOL.com, Y ahoo! Shopping, MSN, QVC and Home Shopping
Network/ HSN.com.

We face competition from local, regional and national specialty retailers and exchanges in each of our categories of products. For example:
Antiques: Bonhams, Christie's, eHammer, Sotheby’s, Phillips (LVMH), antique dealersand sellers

Coins Stamps: Collectors Universe, Heritage, US Mint, Bowers and Morena

Collectibles: Franklin Mint, Go Collect, Callectiblestoday.com, wizardworld.com, Russ Cochran Comic Art Auctions, All Star Auctions

Musical Instruments. Guitar Center/ Musicians Friend, Sam Ash, Gbase.com, Harmony-Central.com, musical instrument retailersand
manufacturers

Foorts Memorabilia: Beckett's, Collectors Universe, Mastro, Leylands, ThePit.com, Superior
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Toys, Hobbies, Dolls, Bears. ToysR Us, Amazon.com/Toysrus.com, KB ToysKBToys.com, FAO Inc. (FAO Schwarz, Zany Brainy, the Right
Start), Lego, TY Inc.

Premium Caollectibles: Bonhams, Christies, DuPont Registry, Greg Manning Auctions, iCollector, Lycos/ Skinner Auctions, Millionaire.com,
Phillips (LVMH), Sotheby’s, other premium collectibles dealers and sellers

Automotive (used carsand parts): Advance Auto Parts, Autonation.com, AutoTrader.com, Autozone, Barrett-Jackson, CaliforniaClassics,
CarMax, Cars.com, CarsDirect.com, Collectorcartraderonline.com, Desalix, Discount Auto Parts, Dupont Registry, eClassics.com, Edmunds,
Genera Parts (Carquest), Genuine/ NAPA, Hemmings, imotors.com, JC Whitney, TraderOnline, Trader Publishing, vehix.com, Wal-Mart,
newspaper classifieds, used car dealers, swap meets, car clubs

Books, Movies, Music: Amazon.com, Barnes Noble, Barnesandnoble.com, Alibris.com, Blockbuster, BMG, ColumbiaHouse, Best Buy,
CDNow, Express.com, Emusic.com, Tower Records Tower Records.com

Clothing and Accessories: Abercrombie.com, AE.com, Amazon.com, Bluefly.com, Coldwater-Creek.com, Delias.com, Dockers.com, Eddie
Bauer, The Gap, Gap Onlinesites, J.Crew, JCrew.com, LandsEnd.com, The Limited, LLBean.com, Macy’s, The Men's Wearhouse,
Payless.com, Ross, Urbang.com, VictoriasSecret.com

Computers Consumer Electronics. Amazon.com, Best Buy, Buy.com, Circuit City, CNET, CompUSA, Ddll, Electronics Boutique, Fry’s
Electronics, Gamestop, Gateway, The Good Guys, MicroWarehouse, PC Connection, Radio Shack, Ritz Camera, Tech Depot, Tiger Direct,
Tweeter Home Entertainment, uBid, Computer Discount Warehouse, computer, consumer electronics and photography retailers

Home Garden: IKEA, Crate Barrel, Home Depot, Williams-Sonoma Inc. (Pottery Barn, Williams-Sonoma), Bed, Bath Beyond, Lowes,
Linens‘n Things, Pier One, Ethan Allen, Frontgate, Burpee.com

Jewelry: Bluenile.com, Diamond.com, Macy’s
Pottery Glass. Just Glass, Pottery Auction, Pottery Barn, Go Collect, Pierl Imports, Restoration Hardware

Foorting Goods/ Equipment: BassPro, Cabellas, dsports.com, Footlocker, Gear.com, Globa Sports, golfclubexchange, MVP.com, Play It
Again Sports, REI, Sports Authority, Sportsline.com

Tickets: Ticketmaster, Tickets.com, ticket brokers
Tool/ Equipment/ Hardware: Home Depot, HomeBase, Amazon.com, Ace Hardware, OSH

Business-to-Business: Ariba, BidFreight.com, Bid4Assets, BizBuyer.com, bLiquid.com, Buyer Zone, CloseOutNow.com, Commerce One,
Concur Technologies, DoveBid, FreeMarkets, Iron Planet, labx.com, Oracle, Overstock.com, PurchasePro.com, RicardoBiz.com, Sabre,
SurplusBin.com, Ventro, VerticalNet

Additionally, we face competition from various online commerce sitesincluding: Amazon.com, BargainAndHaggle, Surplus Auction, uBid,
Y ahoo! Auctions and alarge number of other regional and national companies engaged in consumer-to-consumer or business-to-consumer
sales. Different aspects of our fixed-priced business compete with themajor Internet portals (AOL, MSN, Yahoo! and comparable companies
outside the U.S.) as well asAmazon.com and others.

Our international websites compete with similar online and offline channelsin each of their vertical categories in most countries. In addition,
they compete with general online e-commerce sites, such as Quello and Otto in Germany, Y ahoo-Kimo in Taiwan, eSdllpiain South Korea, El
Corte Inglsin Spain, Kelkoo in Italy and Amazon inthe U.K. and other countries. In some of these countries, there are online sitesthat have
much larger customer bases and greater brand recognition than we do, and in each of these
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countries there are competitors that have a better understanding of local culture and commerce than we do.

The principal competitive factors for eBay includethe following:

ebility to attract buyers and sellers;
volume of transactions and selection of goods;
customer service; and

brand recognition.

With respect to our online competition, additional competitive factorsinclude:

ecommunity cohesion and interaction;
esystem reliability;

ereliability of delivery and payment;
swebsite convenience and accessibility;
level of service fees; and

equality of search tools.

Some current and potential competitors have longer company operating histories, larger customer bases and greater brand recognition in other
business and Internet spaces than wedo. Some of these competitors also have significantly greater financial, marketing, technical and other
resources. Other online trading servicesmay be acquired by, receive investmentsfrom, or enter into other commercial relationships with larger,
well-established and well-financed companies. As aresult, some of our competitors with other revenue sources may be able to devote more
resources to marketing and promotional campaigns, adopt more aggressive pricing policies and devote substantially more resources to website
and systems development than we can. Inaddition, certain offline competitors may encourage manufacturersto limit or cease distribution of
their products to dealers who sell through online channels such as eBay. The adoption by manufacturers of anti-Internet policies could force
eBay usersto stop selling certain products on our site. Increased competition or anti-Internet distribution policies may result in reduced
operating margins, loss of market share and diminished value of our brand. Some of our competitors have offered servicesfor free, and others
may do this aswell. We may be unable to compete successfully against current and future competitors.

Inorder to respond to changesin the competitive environment, we may, from time to time, makepricing, service or marketing decisions or
acquisitions that could harm our business. For example, we haveimplemented abuyer protection program that generally insures items up to a
value of $200, with a $25 deductible, for users with a non-negative feedback rating at no cost to the user. In addition, certain competitors may
offer or continueto offer free shipping or other transaction related services, which could be impractical or inefficient for eBay usersto match.
New technologies may increase the competitive pressures by enabling our competitorsto offer alower cost service.

Althoughwe have established Internet traffic arrangements with several large online services and search engine companies, these arrangements
may not be renewed on commercially reasonable terms. Even if these arrangements are renewed, they may not result in increased usage of our
service. In addition, companies that control access to transactions through network access, Internet browsers, or search engines, or
Internet-based applications could promote our competitors, channel users to electronic commerce sites that compete with us, or charge us
substantial feesfor inclusion.
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The market for PayPal’ s product is emerging, intensely competitive and characterized by rapid technological change. PayPal competes with
existing on-lineand off-line payment methods, including, among others:

Credit card merchant processors that offer their servicesto online merchants, including First Data, Concord EFS, Paymentech, and Wells
Fargo; and payment gateways, including VeriSign and Authorize.net;
*MoneyZap and BidPay offered by Western Union, a subsidiary of First Data;

*Y ahoo! PayDirect offered by Y ahoo! and HSBC;
«c2it offered by Citigroup;
*WebPay and Valid offered by CheckFree; and

*U.S.P.S. SendMoney offered by the U.S. Postal Service.

Some of these competitors have longer operating histories, significantly greater financial, technical, marketing, customer service and other
resources, greater name recognition or alarger base of customers in affiliated businessesthan PayPal. For example, Citigroup’s c2it has existing
arrangements with AOL Time Warner and Microsoft. PayPal’s competitors may respond to new or emerging technologies and changesin
customer requirements faster and more effectively than PayPal. They may devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of
products and servicesthan PayPal, and they may offer lower prices. Some of these competitors have offered, and may continueto offer, their
services for freein order to gain market share, and PayPal may be forced to lower its prices in response. Competing services tied to established
banks and other financia institutions may offer greater liquidity and engender greater consumer confidence in the safety and efficacy of their
services than PayPal. If these competitors acquired significant market share, this could resultin PayPal losing market share.

PayPal also competes with providers of traditional payment methods, particularly credit cards, checks, money orders and ACH transactions.
Associations of traditiona financia institutions such as Visa, MasterCard and NACHA generally set the features of these payment methods.
The associations have initiated programs to enhance the usability of these payment methods for online transactions and could lower fees
charged to online merchants. Either of these changes could make it more difficult for PayPal to retain and attract customers.

Overseas, PayPal faces competition from similar channels and payment methods in most countries and from regional and national online and
offline competitorsin each country including First Gate and World Pay in the European Community, No Chex in the U.K., CertaPay and
HyperWallet in Canada, and Paymate in Australia. In addition, in certain countries, such as Germany, electronic fundstransfer (EFT)is a
leading method of payment for both online and offline transactions. As in the U.S., established banks and other financial institutionsthat do not
currently offer online payments could quickly and easily develop such a service.

Half.com competes directly with online and offline retailers in its product categories such as Amazon.com, as well as with traditional offline
and online sellers of new and used books, videos and CDs, consumer electronics and other products.

Our business is dependent on the development and maintenance of the I nternet infrastructure.

The success of our servicewill depend largely on the development and maintenance of the Internet infrastructure. This includes maintenance of
areliable network backbone with the necessary speed, data capacity and security, aswell as timely development of complementary products,
for providing reliable Internet access and services. The Internet hasexperienced, and islikely to continue to experience, significant growth in
the numbersof users and amount of traffic. If the Internet continues to experience increased numbersof users, increased frequency of useor
increased bandwidth requirements, the Internet infrastructure may be unable to support the demands placed onit. In addition, the performance
of the
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Internet may be harmed by increased number of users or bandwidth requirements or by “viruses,” “worms’ and similar programs. The backbone
computers of the Internet have been the targets of such programs. The Internet has experienced a variety of outages and other delays as a result
of damageto portions of itsinfrastructure, and it could face outagesand delays in the future. These outages and delays could reduce the level of
Internet usage as well asthe level of traffic and the processing transactions on our service.

Our businessis subject to online commerce security risks.

To succeed, online commerce and communications must provide a secure transmission of confidential information over public networks. Our
security measures may not prevent security breaches. Our failureto prevent security breaches could harm our business. Currently, a significant
number of our users authorize usto bill their credit card accountsdirectly for all transaction fees charged by us. PayPal’s and Billpoint’s users
routinely provide credit card and other financial information. We rely on encryption and authentication technology licensed from third parties to
provide the security and authentication technology to effect secure transmission of confidentia information, including customer credit card
numbers. Advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries inthefield of cryptography or other developments may result in a compromise or
breach of the technology used by usto protect customer transaction data. A number of websiteshave reported breaches of their security. Any
compromise of our security could harm our reputation and, therefore, our business. In addition, a party who is able to circumvent our security
measures could misappropriate proprietary information or causeinterruptionsin our operations. We may need to expend significant resources
to protect against security breaches or to address problems caused by breaches. Theseissues are likely to become more difficult as we expand
the number of places wherewe operate. Our users may also be targeted by parties attemptingto misappropriate passwords, credit card numbers
or other persona information by using fraudulent emails and websites appearing to be sent or operated by us. We actively pursue the parties
responsible for these attempts at misappropriation and encourage our users to divulge sensitive information only after they have verified that
they are on our legitimate websites, but we cannot entirely eliminate these types of activities.

Security breaches could damage our reputation and expose us to arisk of loss or litigation and possible liability. Our insurance policies carry
low coverage limits, which may not be adequate to reimburse usfor losses caused by security breaches.

We must keep pacewith rapid technological changeto remain competitive.

Our competitive space is characterized by rapidly changingtechnology, evolving industry standards, frequent new service and product
introductions and enhancementsand changing customer demands. These characteristics are caused in part by the emerging and changing nature
of thelnternet. Our future success therefore will depend on our ability to adapt to rapidly changing technologies, to adapt our services to
evolving industry standards and to improve the performance, features and reliability of our service. Our failureto adapt to such changes would
harm our business. New technologies, such as the development of a peer-to-peer personal trading technology, could adversely affect us. In
addition, thewidespread adoption of new Internet, networking or telecommunications technologies or other technological changes could require
substantial expendituresto modify or adapt our servicesor infrastructure.

We need to develop new services, features and functionsin order to expand.

We plan to expand our operations by developing new or complementary services, products or transaction formats or expanding the breadth and
depth of services. We may be unable to expand our operations in a cost-effective or timely manner. Evenif we do expand, we may not maintain
or increase our overall acceptance. If we launch anew business or servicethat is not favorably received by consumers, it could damage our
reputation and diminish the value of our brand. We anticipate that future serviceswill include pre-trade and post-trade services.
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We are pursuing strategic relationships with third parties to provide many of these services. Because we usethird partiesto deliver these
services, we may be unable to control the quality of these services, and our ability to address problems if any of thesethird parties failsto
perform adequately will be reduced. Expanding our operations in this manner also will require significant additional expenses and development,
operations and other resources and will strain our management, financial and operational resources. The lack of acceptance of any new services
could harmour business.

Our growth will depend on our ability to develop our brand.

Webelievethat eBay’s historical growth hasbeen largely attributable to word of mouth. Both eBay and PayPal have benefited from frequent
and high visibility media exposure both nationally and locally. We believe that continuing to strengthen our brand will be critical to achieving
widespread acceptance of our services. Promoting and positioning our brand will depend largely on the success of our marketing efforts and our
ability to provide high quality services. In order to promote our brand, we will need to increase our marketing budget and otherwise increase
our financial commitment to creating and maintaining brand loyalty among users. Brand promotion activities may not yield increased revenues,
and evenif they do, any increased revenues may not offset the expenses we incurred in building our brand. If we do attract new users to our
services, they may not conduct transactions over our services onaregular basis. If we fail to promote and maintain our brand or incur
substantial expensesin anunsuccessful attempt to promote and maintain our brand, our business would be harmed.

We may be unable to protect or enforce our own intellectual property rights adequately.

Weregard the protection of our trademarks, copyrights, patents, domain names, trade dress and trade secrets ascritical to our success. We
aggressively protect our intellectual property rights by relying on a combination of trademark, copyright, patent, trade dress and trade secret
laws and through the domain namedispute resolution system. We also rely on contractual restrictions to protect our proprietary rightsin
products and services. We have entered into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our employeesand contractors, and
nondi sclosure agreementswith parties with whom we conduct businessin order to limit access to and disclosure of our proprietary information.
These contractual arrangements and the other stepstaken by us to protect our intellectual property may not prevent misappropriation of our
technology or deter independent third-party development of similar technologies. We pursue the registration of our domain names, trademarks
and service marksin the U.S. and internationally. Effective trademark, copyright, patent, trade dress, trade secret and domain name protection is
very expensive to maintain and may require litigation. Protection may not be available in every country in which our servicesare made
available online. Furthermore, we must also protect our trademarks, patents and domain names in an increasing number of jurisdictions, a
process that is expensive and may not be successful in every location. We have licensed in the past, and expect to license in the future, certain
of our proprietary rights, such astrademarks or copyrighted material, to third parties. These licensees may take actions that might diminish the
value of our proprietary rights or harm our reputation.

We are subject to the risks of owning real property.

Weownreal property including land, buildings and interestsin a partnership holdingland and buildings, primarily related to our operations.
We have little experience in managing real property. Ownership of thisproperty subjectsus to risks, including:
sthe possibility of environmental contamination and the costs associated with fixing any environmental problems;
eadverse changesin the value of these properties, due to interest rate changes, changesin the neighborhoods in whichthe properties are

located, or other factors;
«the possible need for structural improvementsin order to comply with zoning, seismic, disability act or other requirements; and
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spossible disputes with tenants, partners or others.

Some anti-takeover provisions may affect the price of our common stock.

The Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock and to determine the preferences, rights and
privileges of those shareswithout any further vote or action by the stockholders. The rights of the holders of common stock may be harmed by
the rights of the holders of any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. Some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws
could have the effect of making it more difficult for athird party to acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock. These include provisions
that provide for aclassified board of directors, prohibit stockholders from taking action by written consent and restrict the ability of
stockholders to call special meetings. We are also subject to provisions of Delaware law that prohibit us from engaging in any business

combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years from the date the person became an interested stockholder, unless
certain conditions aremet. This restriction could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control.

Principal Accountant Feesand Services
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During the fiscal years ended December31, 2001 and December31, 2002, fees for services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, or PwC,
were as follows (rounded to the nearest $1,000):

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2002
Audit Fees $ 670,000 $ 1,195,000
Audit-Related Fees 969,000 747,000
Tax Fees 15,000 19,000
All Other Fees 31,000 91,000
Total $ 1,685,000 $ 2,052,000

Audit fees consisted of fees billed for services rendered for the audit of eBay’ s annual financial statements, review of financial statements
included in eBay’ s quarterly reports on Form10-Q, and other services normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings.
Audit-related fees consisted primarily of feesbilled for due diligence review in connection with acquisitions and divestitures and consultation
regarding financia accounting and reporting matters. Tax fees consisted of feeshilled for consulting regarding tax compliance, tax advice and
tax planning. All other fees consisted of fees billed for services in connection with legal mattersand technical accounting research.

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors has determined that the rendering of non-audit services by PwC wascompatible with
maintaining their independence.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policy
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Our Audit Committee has adopted a policy requiring the pre-approval of any non-audit engagement of PwC. Inthe event that we wish to
engage PwCto perform accounting, technical, diligence or other permitted services not related to the services performed by PwC as our

independent auditor, our internal finance personnel will prepare a summary of the proposed engagement, detailing the nature of the
engagement, thereasons why PwC isthe preferred provider of such services and the estimated duration and cost of the engagement. The report

will be provided to our Audit Committee or a designated committee member, who will evaluate whether the proposed engagement will interfere
with theindependence of PwCin the performance of its auditing services. Inthe future, we intend to disclose all approved non-audit
engagementsin the appropriate quarterly report on Form10-Q or annual report on Form10-K.
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Our Audit Committee adopted the policy on pre-approval of non-audit engagementsin October 2002 and approved the following non-audit
engagements through December31, 2002:

sthe prior engagement by PayPal of PwC to perform an analysis under Statement on Accounting Standards (SAS)N0.70 ( Service
Organizations) of PayPal’sinformation technology processes and contrals;

«the possible engagement of PwC to provide general financial advisory services to usin connection withour possible involvementin an
arbitration proceeding related to theinterpretation of a contractua provision;

sthe engagement by PayPal of PwCto review PayPal’ sinternal compliance audit under the provisions of the USA PATRIOT Act;

«the engagement by PayPal Asset Management, Inc. of PwCto audit the financial statementsand prepare thefederal tax return of PayPal
Money Market Reserve Fund; and

sthe engagement by PayPal of PwCto prepare the personal income tax return of an expatriate employee of PayPal working in the United
Kingdom.

74

swneest ox B asim 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

ITEM 7A:  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk
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The primary objective of our investment activitiesisto preserve principa whileat the same time maximizing yields without significantly
increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we maintain our portfolio of cash equivalents, short-termand long-term investmentsin avariety of
securities, including government and corporate obligations and money market funds. These securities aregenerally classified as availablefor
sale and consequently arerecorded on the balance sheet at fair value with unrealized gains or 1osses reported as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensiveincome (l10ss), net of estimated tax.

Investmentsin both fixed rate and floating rate interest earning instruments carry varying degrees of interest raterisk. Fixed rate securities may
havetheir fair market value adversely impacted due to arise in interest rates. In general, securities withlonger maturities are subject to greater
interest raterisk than those with shorter maturities. While floating rate securities generally are subject to less interest rate risk than fixed rate
securities, floating rate securities may produce lessincome than expected if interest rates decrease. Duein part to these factors, our investment
income may fall short of expectations or we may suffer lossesin principal if securities are sold that have declined in market value due to
changesin interest rates. As of December31, 2002, our fixed income investments had anunrealized gain of $3.6million with a pretax yield of
approximately 2.2% and a weighted average maturity of 2months. If interest rates were to instantaneously increase (decrease)by 100 basis
points, the fair market value of the total investment portfolio could decrease (increase) by approximately $3.3million. Assuming an average
investment balance of $1.8hillion, if rates were to increase (decrease) by 100 basis points, thiswould translate to an increase (decrease) in
interest income of approximately $18million annually.

We entered into two interest rate swaps on Junel9 and July20, 2000, totaling $95million to reduce the impact of changes in interest rates ona
portion of the floating rate operating lease for our primary office facilities. The interest rate swaps allow us to receive floating rate receipts
based on LIBOR in exchange for making fixed rate paymentswhich effectively changes our interest rate exposure on our operating lease from a
floating rate to afixed rate on $95million of thetotal $126.4million notional amount of our operating lease commitment. Of the $126.4million
operating lease commitment for our San Jose facility, the interest rate is fixed on $95million with the balance of $31.4million remaining at a
floating rate of interest based on the spread over 3-month LIBOR. See*Item2: Properties’ and “Item7: Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financia Condition and Results of Operations.” If the 3-month LIBOR rates were to increase (decrease) by 100 basis points, then our lease
paymentswould increase (decrease) by approximately $78,000 per quarter.

Equity Price Risk
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We are exposed to equity pricerisk on the marketable portion of equity investmentswe hold, typically as theresult of strategic investmentsin
third parties that are subject to considerable market risk due to their volatility. Wetypically do not attempt to reduce or €liminate our market
exposure in these equity investments. Asof December31, 2002, we did not have any unrealized gainsor |osses associated with our equity
investments. In accordance with our policy to assess whether an impairment loss on our investments hasoccurred due to declinesin fair value
and other market conditions, we determined that declinesin fair value of certain of our marketable and non-marketable equity investments were
other than temporary. Accordingly, we recorded impairment chargestotaling $3.8million during the year ended December31, 2002, relating to
the other-than-temporary impairment in the fair value of certain equity investments. At December31, 2002, the total value of our equity
investments was$44.2million, including $3.4million in marketable investments.

Foreign Currency Risk
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International net revenues result from transactions by our foreign operations and are typically denominated in thelocal currency of each
country. These operations also incur most of their expenses in
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the local currency. Accordingly, our foreign operations use thelocal currency as their functional currency. Our international operations are
subject to riskstypical of international operations, including, but not limited to differing economic conditions, changes in political climate,
differing tax structures, other regulations and restrictions and foreign exchange rate volatility. Accordingly, our future results could be
materialy adversely impacted by changes in these or other factors.

Foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely impact our financial position aswell as our results of operations. Foreign exchangerate
fluctuations may adversely impact our financial position as the assetsand liabilities of our foreign operations aretrandated into U.S. dollars in
preparing our consolidated balance sheet. The effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on eBay’ s financia position for the year ended
December31, 2002, was a trandation loss of approximately $48.0million. This lossis recognized as an adjustment to stockholders’ equity
through other comprehensive income. Additionally, foreign exchange rate fluctuations may adversely impact our results of operations as
exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in currencies other our functional currency create gains and losses which arereflected in
our consolidated statement of income. The effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations on eBay’ s results of operations for the year ended
December31, 2002, was a transaction loss of approximately $1.1million.

Asof December31, 2002, we had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts with notional values equivaent to approximately $69million
with maturity dates within 92days. The forward contracts are used to offset changesin the value of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as aresult of currency fluctuations. Transaction gainsand losses on the contracts and the assetsand liabilities are recognized each
period in our statement of income and generally are offsetting. Aswe purchased the forward contracts on December31, 2002, the fair values of
the forward contracts were immaterial as of thisdate.

ITEM 8  FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Annual Financial Statements: See Part |V, [tem15(a)(1) of thisAnnual Report on Form10-K.

ITEM 9: CHANGESIN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
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PART |11

ITEM 10t DIRECTORSAND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Executive officers are elected annually by the Board and serve at thediscretion of the Board. The following table setsforth certain information
regarding our directors and executive officers as of March31, 2003.

Name Age Position
Pierre M. Omidyar(4) 35 Founder, Chairman of the Board and Director
Margaret C. Whitman(5) 46 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Matthew J. Bannick 38 Senior Vice President and General Manager, Global Online Payments
William C. Cobb 46 Senior Vice President and General Manager, eBay International
Rajiv Dutta 41 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Michael R. Jacobson 48 Senior Vice President, Legal Affairs, General Counsdl and Secretary
Jeffrey D. Jordan 44  Senior Vice President and General Manager, U.S. Business
Maynard G. Webb, Jr. 47 Chief Operating Officer
Philippe Bourguignon(2)(5) 55 Director
Scott D. Cook(1)(3)(6) 50 Director
Robert C. Kagle(1)(2)(6) 47 Director
Dawn G. Lepore(1)(3)(4) 49 Director
Howard D. Schultz(2)(3)(4) 49 Director
Thomasl. Tierney(2)(3)(5) 49 Director

(1) Member of our Audit Committee

(20 Member of our Compensation Committee

(3) Member of our Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee
(4) Director continuing in office until our 2003 Annual Meeting

(5) Director continuing in office until our 2004 Annual Meeting

(6) Director continuing in office until our 2005 Annual Meeting

PierreM. Omidyar founded eBay as a sole proprietorship in September 1995. He has been a director and Chairman of the Board since eBay’s
incorporation in May 1996 and also served as its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and President frominception to February
1998, November 1997 and August 1996, respectively. Prior to founding eBay, Mr.Omidyar was a developer services engineer at General
Magic, a mobile communication platform company from December 1994 to July 1996. Mr.Omidyar co-founded Ink Development Corp. (later
renamed eShop) in May 1991 and served as a software engineer there from May 1991 to September 1994. Prior to co-founding Ink,
Mr.Omidyar was a developer for Claris, a subsidiary of Apple Computer, and for other Macintosh-oriented software devel opment companies.
Mr.Omidyar also serveson theBoard of Trustees of Tufts University, The SantaFe Institute and The Omidyar Foundation. Mr.Omidyar holds
aB.S. degree in Computer Science from Tufts University.

Margaret C. Whitman serves eBay as President and Chief Executive Officer. She hasserved in that capacity since February 1998 and as a
director since March 1998. From January 1997 to February 1998, she was General Manager of the Preschool Division of Hasbro Inc., atoy
company. From February 1995
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to December 1996, Ms.Whitman wasemployed by FTD, Inc., afloral products company, most recently as President, Chief Executive Officer
and a director. From October 1992 to February 1995, Ms.Whitman was employed by The Stride Rite Corporation in various capacities,
including President, Stride Rite Children’s Group and Executive Vice President, Product Development, Marketing Merchandising, Keds
Division. From May 1989 to October 1992, Ms.Whitman was employed by The Walt Disney Company, an entertainment company, most
recently as Senior Vice President, Marketing, Disney Consumer Products. Before joining Disney, Ms.Whitman was at Bain Co., a consulting
firm, most recently as a Vice President. Ms.Whitman also serves on the board of directors of The Procter Gamble Company and isa Member
of theBoard of Trustees of Princeton University. Ms.Whitman holds an A.B. degree in Economics from Princeton University and an M.B.A.
degree from the Harvard Business School.

Matthew J. Bannick serveseBay as Senior Vice President and General Manager, Global Online Payments and Chief Executive Officer of
PayPal. He has served in those capacities since October 2002. From December 2000 to October 2002, Mr.Bannick served as eBay’s Senior
Vice President and General Manager, eBay International. From February 1999 to December 2000, Mr.Bannick served in avariety of other
executive positions at eBay. From April 1995 to January 1999, Mr.Bannick was an executivefor Navigation Technologies (NavTech), the
leading provider of digital map databases for the vehicle navigation and internet mapping industries. Mr.Bannick was President of NavTech
North Americafor threeyearsand also served as Senior Vice President of Marketingand Vice President of Operations. From June 1992 to
August 1992, Mr.Bannick served as a consultant for McKinsey Company, in Europe and from June 1993 to April 1995 in the U.S.Mr.Bannick
also served as a U.S.diplomat in Germany during the period of German unification. Mr.Bannick holds aB.A. in Economics and International
Studies from University of Washington and an M.B.A degree from the Harvard Business School.

WilliamC. Cobb serves eBay asSenior Vice President and General Manager, eBay International. He has served in that capacity since
September 2002. From November 2000 to September 2002, Mr.Cobb served aseBay’s Senior Vice President, Global Marketing. From
February 2000 to June 2000, Mr.Cobb served as the General Manager of Consumer Sales for Netpliance, Inc., an Internet-based content
Company. From July 1997 to February 2000, Mr.Cobb served as the Senior Vice President of International Marketing for Tricon Global
Restaurants, Inc. From August 1995 to July 1997, Mr.Cobb served asthe Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer for Pizza Hut,
Inc., adivision of Tricon Global Restaurants, Inc. From May 1994 to August 1995, Mr. Cobb served as Vice President of Colasfor the
Pepsi-Cola Company, adivision of PepsiCo., Inc. Mr.Cobb holds a B.S. degree in Economicsfrom the University of Pennsylvaniaand an
M.B.A. degree from Northwestern University.

Rajiv Dutta serves eBay as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. He hasserved in that capacity since January 2001. From August
1999 to January 2001, Mr.Dutta served as eBay’s Vice President of Finance and Investor Relations. From July 1998 to August 1999, Mr.Dutta
served aseBay’ s Finance director. From February 1998 to July 1998, Mr.Dutta served as the World Wide Sales Controller of KLA-Tencor.
Prior to KLA-Tencor, Mr.Dutta spent ten years, from January 1988 to February 1998, at Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc., a manufacturer and
distributor of life scienceand diagnostic products with operations in over 24 countries. Mr.Dutta held a variety of positionswith the Company,
including the group controller of the Life Science Group. Mr.Dutta holds a B.A. degree in Economics from St. Stephen’s College, Delhi
University in Indiaand an M.B.A. degree from Drucker School of Management.

Michael R. Jacobson serves eBay asSenior Vice President, Legal Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary. He has served in that capacity or as
Vice President, Legal Affairs, General Counsel since August 1998. From 1986 to August 1998, Mr.Jacobson wasa partner with the law firm of
Cooley Godward LLP, specializing in securities law, mergersand acquisitions and other transactions. Mr.Jacobson holds an A.B. degreein
Economics from Harvard Collegeand a J.D. degree from Stanford Law School.

Jeffrey D. Jordan serves eBay as Senior Vice President and General Manager, U.S.Business. He has served in that capacity since April 2000.
From September 1999 to April 2000, Mr.Jordan served as eBay’s Vice President, Regionals and Services. From September 1998 to September
1999, Mr.Jordan served as

78

meres o SO irssss 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

Chief Financia Officer for Hollywood Entertainment and President of their subsidiary, Reel.com. From September 1990 to September 1998,
Mr.Jordan served in various capacities including most recently Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of The Disney Store
Worldwide, a subsidiary of The Walt Disney Company. Mr.Jordan holdsaB.A. degree in Poalitical Science and Psychology from Amherst
Collegeand an M.B.A. degree from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.

Maynard G. Webb, Jr. serves eBay as Chief Operating Officer. He hasserved in that capacity since June 2002. From August 1999 to June
2002, Mr. Webb served asPresident, eBay Technologies. From July 1998 to August 1999, Mr.Webb was Senior Vice President and Chief
Information Officer at Gateway, Inc. From February 1995 to July 1998, Mr.Webb was Vice President and Chief Information Officer at Bay
Networks, Inc. From June 1991 to January 1995, Mr. Webb was Director, IT at Quantum Corporation. Mr.Webb al so serves on the board of
directors of Gartner, Inc., a high technology research and consulting firm. Mr.Webb holds a B.A.A. degree from Florida Atlantic University.

Philippe Bourguignon hasserved as a director of eBay since December 1999. From April 1997 to January 2003, Mr.Bourguignon served as
Chairman of the Board of Club Mediterranee S.A. Prior to his appointment at Club Mediterranee S.A., Mr.Bourguignon was Chief Executive
Officer of Euro Disney S.A., the parent company of Disneyland Paris, since 1993, and Executive Vice President of The Walt Disney Company
(Europe) S.A., since October 1996. Mr.Bourguignon was named President of Euro Disney in 1992, a post he held through April 1993. He
joined The Walt Disney Company in 1988 as head of Real Estate development. Mr. Bourguignon holds a Masters Degree in Economics at the
University of Aix-en-Provence and holds a post-graduate diploma from the Institut d’ Administration des Enterprises (IAE)in Paris.

Scott D. Cook has served as a director of eBay since June 1998. Mr.Cook isthe founder of Intuit Inc., afinancia software developer. Mr.Cook
has been a director of Intuitsince March 1984 andis currently Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board of Intuit. From March 1993
to July 1998, Mr.Cook served as Chairman of theBoard of Intuit. From March 1984 to April 1994, Mr.Cook served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of Intuit. Mr.Cook also serves on theboard of directors of The Procter Gamble Company. Mr.Cook holdsa B.A. degreein
Economics and Mathematicsfrom the University of Southern California and an M.B.A. degree from the Harvard Business School.

Robert C. Kagle has served asadirector of eBay since June1997. Mr. Kagle has been a Member of Benchmark Capital Management Co.,
L.L.C., the General Partner of Benchmark Capital Partners, L.P. and Benchmark Founders' Fund, L.P., sinceits founding in May 1995.
Mr.Kagle also hasbeen a General Partner of Technology Venture Investors since January 1984. Mr.Kagle also serves on the board of directors
of Ariba, Inc.and E-LOAN, Inc. Mr.Kagle holds a B.S. degree in Electrical and Mechanical Engineering from the General Motors Institute
(renamed Kettering University in January 1998) and an M.B.A. degree from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.

Dawn G. Lepore has served as adirector of eBay since December 1999. Ms.Lepore is Vice Chairman of Technology, Operations, and
Administration and a member of the Executive Management Committee of the Charles Schwab Corporation where she hasserved for over
19years in various capacities. From October 1993 to December 2001, Ms.Lepore served as Chief Information Officer at Schwab. Prior to that
she served as Senior Vice President of Information Technology at Schwab fromMay 1993 to October 1993 where she was responsible for the
development of awiderange of systemsto support Schwab’s growing product offerings and client base. Sheaso led a strategic initiativefor
redesigning Schwab’s entire technology platform. Ms.Lepore also serves on the board of directors of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and on the Board of
Trustees of Smith College. Ms.Lepore holds aB.A. degree from Smith College in Music.

Howard D. Schultz has served as adirector of eBay since June 1998. Mr.Schultz isthefounder of Starbucks Corporation, a provider of
gourmet coffee, and has been its Chairman of the Board and Chief Global Strategist since June 2000. From Starbucks' inceptionin 1985to
June 2000, he served as its Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer. From 1985 to June 1994, Mr.Schultz also served as President
of Starbucks. Mr.Schultz is also one of two founding members of Maveron LLC, a company providing advisory services to consumer-based
businesses, and isa member of two LLCsthat serve as
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Genera Partners of Maveron LLC'sffiliated venture capital funds, Maveron Equity Partners LP and Maveron Equity Partners 2000 LP.
Mr.Schultz has announced that hewill step down from the board when his current term expires at our Annual Meeting in June 2003.

Thomasl. Tierney hasserved as adirector of eBay since March 2003. Mr.Tierney isthe founder of The Bridgespan Group, a non-profit
business consulting firm serving the non-profit sector, and has been its Chairman of the Board since late 1999. Prior to founding Bridgespan,
Mr.Tierney served as Chief Executive Officer of Bain Company, a consulting firm, from June 1992 to January 2000. Mr.Tierney holdsaB.A.
degree in Economics from the University of California at Davisand an M.B.A. degree with distinction from the Harvard Business School.
Mr.Tierney isthe co-author of a book about organization and strategy called Aligning the Stars .

Section16(a) Beneficial Owner ship Reporting Compliance
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Section16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors and executive officers, and persons who own morethan 10% of a
registered class of our equity securities, to file with the SEC initia reports of ownership and reports of changesin ownership of our Common
Stock and other equity securities of the company. Officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholdersare required by SEC regulation to
furnish us with copies of all Section16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on areview of the copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations that no other reports were
required, during thefiscal year ended December31, 2002, all Section16(a) filingrequirements applicableto our officers, directorsand greater
than 10% beneficial ownerswere complied with, except Mr.Bannick reported one late report on Form4 that involved one transaction covering
411 shares.

Code of Ethics

swneest ox B asim 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




We have adopted awritten code of ethics that applies to our senior financial officers, includingour principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer. Weintend to satisfy the disclosurerequirement of 1tem10 of Form8-K regarding an
amendment to, or awaiver from, a provision of our code of ethicsthat applies to our principal executive officer, principa financia officer, or
principal accounting officer by posting such information on our website at www.sharehol der.convebay/code-of-ethics.cfm .
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ITEM 11:EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Summary of Compensation
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The followingtable shows certain compensation earned during the fiscal years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, by our Chief
Executive Officer and four most highly-compensated other executive officers (based ontheir total annua salary and bonus compensation), aso
referred to asthe Named Executive Officers, at December31, 2002.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Long-Term and Other

Annual Compensation Compensation
Number of
Securities
Fiscal Other Annual Underlying All Other
Nameand 2002 Principal Positions Year Salary(1) Bonus(2) Compensation(3) Options Compensation(6)
Margaret C. Whitman 2002 $ 250,008 $ 419,698 (8) $ 133,062 300,000 $ 1,980
President and Chief 2001 241,256 139,332 — 750,000 1,884
Executive
Officer 2000 210,000 87,914 — 500,000 (4) 1,882
Maynard G. Webb, Jr. 2002 531,250 837,154 (9) — 150,000 1,104
Chief Operating 2001 500,000 646,137 (9) — 500,000 384
Officer
2000 450,000 503,151 — 100,000 (4) 384
Jeffrey D. Jordan 2002 345,102 739,762 (10) — 135,000 672
Senior Vice President 2001 322,404 467,041 (10) — 400,000 4,759
and
General Manager, 2000 290,000 136,254 — 300,000 (5) 30,750
U.S. Business
Matthew J. Bannick 2002 334,086 472,540 (11) 15,987 140,000 2,173
Senior Vice 2001 279,506 133,396 — 300,000 1,884
President,
Global Online 2000 207,250 86,139 — 140,000 (4) 1,872
Payments
William C. Cobb 2002 312,185 240,390 (12) — 125,000 2,173
Senior Vice President 2001 283,666 202,026 (12) — — 92,127
and
General Manager, 2000 27,576 (7) — — 280,000 14,064

eBay International

(1) Effective Aprill, 2002, al eligible employees of eBay, including certain of the Named Executive Officers, received an annual salary
increase representing: (i)in the case of Mr.Webb, a salary of $525,000 per annum; (ii)in the case of Mr.Jordan, a salary of $350,136 per
annum; (iii)in the case of Mr.Bannick, asalary of $350,112 per annum; and (iv) in the case of Mr.Cobb, a salary of $300,000 per annum.
Mr.Cobb’s salary increased to $350,112 in September 2002 in connection with hisincreased responsibilities as Senior Vice President
and General Manager, eBay International. Mr. Webb's salary increased to $575,000 in October 2002 in connection with hisincreased
responsibilities as Chief Operating Officer. Ms.Whitman’'s salary in 2002 was$250,008 per annum.

(2) All 2002 bonuses represent amounts paid in 2002 and 2003 for servicesrendered in 2002, all 2001 bonuses represent amounts paid in
2001 and 2002 for services rendered in 2001, and all 2000 bonuses represent amounts paid in 2000 and 2001 for servicesrendered in
2000.

(3) Represents:. (i) in the case of Ms.Whitman, her personal useof eBay’s corporate aircraft ($58,101), which isvalued at rates prescribed
under applicable IRS regulations, and of a corporate aircraft from an unaffiliated third-party vendor, whichisvalued at actual invoiced
amounts ($74,961); and (ii)in the case of Mr.Bannick, costs associated with family transportation while Mr.Bannick worked out of our
European officesduring the summer of 2002.

(4) Reflects option grants that were subsequently rescinded and cancelled by agreement between eBay and the applicable Named Executive
Officer in July 2000 after it wasdetermined that the grantsmight call into question thedesired accounting treatment of our acquisition of
Half.com.

(5) All but 100,000 of the sharesof our Common Stock underlying options granted to Mr.Jordan in 2000 were subsequently rescinded and
cancelled by agreement between eBay and Mr.Jordan after it
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(6)

)
(8)
©)

(10)

(11)

(12)

was determined that the grants might call into question the described accounting treatment of our acquisition of Half.com.

Represents: (i)in the case of Mr.Jordan, a reimbursement for relocation expenses paid to him in 2000 ($28,866) and 2001 ($2,875); (ii)in
the case of Mr.Cobb, a reimbursement for relocation expenses paid to himin 2000 ($13,799) and 2001 ($90,243); and (iii)in the case of
each of the Named Executive Officers, insurance premiums we paid with respect to group life insurance for their benefit and matching
contributions under our 401(k) Plan (subject to the maximum of $1,500 per annum).

Mr.Cobb was hired by eBay in November 2000. Accordingly, the amounts shown in the table above for fiscal year 2000 are for a period
of lessthan ayear. Mr.Cobb's salary in 2000 was$280,000 per annum.

Represents for 2002, $329,698 paid under eBay's Management I ncentive Plan and an additional $90,000 bonus granted by the
Compensation Committee after theend of the fiscal year.

Represents for 2002, $387,254 paid under eBay’s Management Incentive Plan and $449,900 paid under Mr.Webb's special retention
plan and represents for 2001, $290,927 paid under eBay’s Management Incentive Plan and $355,200 under Mr.Webb's special retention
plan. See “I1tem13: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Represents for 2002, $202,212 paid under eBay’s Management Incentive Plan, $522,550 under Mr.Jordan’s special retention plans
and $15,000 pursuant to our discretionary reward program, and represents for 2001, $153,041 paid under eBay’ s Management
Incentive Plan and $314,000 under Mr.Jordan’s specia retention plan. See “Item13: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”
Represents for 2002, $207,540 paid under eBay’s Management Incentive Plan, $250,000 under Mr.Bannick’s special retention plan
and $15,000 pursuant to our discretionary reward program. See “ltem13: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Represents for 2002, $170,390 paid under eBay’s Management Incentive Plan and $70,000 under Mr.Cobb’s special retention plan
and representsfor 2001, $132,026 paid under eBay’ s Management Incentive Plan and $70,000 under Mr.Cobb’s special retention plan.
See “Item13: Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

The following executive officers received grants of options in 2002 under eBay’s 2001’ sEquity Incentive Plan, which we also refer to as the

2001 Plan.
Option GrantsDuring 2002
Potential Realizable Value at

Number of Per centage of Assumed Annual Rates of

Securities Total Options StockPriceAppreciation for

Underlying Granted to Exercise Option Term(4)

Options Employees Price Expiration
Name Granted(1) during 2002(2) Per Share(3) Date 5% 10%

Margaret C. 300,000 21 % $ 5805 02/12/12 $ 10,952,200 $ 27,755,025
Whitman
Maynard G. 150,000 11 58.05 02/12/12 5,476,100 13,877,512
Wehb, Jr.
Jeffrey D. 135,000 10 58.05 02/12/12 4,928,490 12,489,761
Jordan
Matthew J. 140,000 1.0 58.05 02/12/12 5,111,027 12,952,345
Bannick
William C. 125,000 0.9 58.05 02/12/12 4,563,417 11,564,594
Cobb
(1) Options granted in 2002 were granted under the 2001 Plan. All options granted in 2002 to the Named Executive Officers were granted

@)

by our Board, are nonqualified stock options and are subject to a four-year vesting schedule, vesting 12.5% after six monthsand 1/48 per
month thereafter.

Based on options to purchase 14,205,236 shares of our common stock granted in 2002, exclusiveof 150,000 shares granted to our
directors and options to purchasean aggregate of 2,511,149 sharesthat wereassumed by us in connection with the PayPal acquisition in
October 2002.
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(3) Options were granted at an exercise price equal to thefair market value of our common stock, as determined by the Board of Directors
onthe date of grant. The exercise prices per shares listed in thetable above are rounded to the nearest cent.

(4) Reflectsthe valueof the stock option on thedate of grant assuming (i) for the 5% column, a 5% annual rate of appreciation in our
common stock over theten-year term of the option and (ii)for the 10% column, a 10% annual rate of appreciation in our Common Stock
over the ten-year term of the option, in each case without discounting to net present value and before income taxes associated with the
exercise. The 5% and 10% assumed rates of appreciation are based on therules of the SEC and do not represent our estimate or
projection of thefuture common stock price. The amountsin this table may not necessarily be achieved.

The followingtable sets forth the number of sharesacquired and the valuerealized upon exercise of stock optionsduring 2002 and the number
of shares of our common stock subject to exercisable and unexercisable stock options held as of December31, 2002, by each of the Named
Executive Officers. The value at fiscal year end is measured asthe difference between the exercise price and thefair market value at close of
market on December31, 2002, whichwas $67.82.

Aggregate Option Exercises in 2002 and Values at December 31, 2002

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexer cised ValueofUnexer cised
Options at December 31, In-the-Money Options at
Number of 2002 December 31, 2002(2)
Shares
Acquired on Value Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexer cisable
Name Exercise Realized(1) (#) # (6] $)
Margaret C. — — 218,750 831,250 $ 4,947,734 $ 18,801,391
Whitman
Maynard G. 400,000 $ 6,922,607 474,035 465,965 11,714,025 10,443,840
Webb
Jeffrey D. 133,328 2,576,137 355,901 334,648 2,253,147 5,438,814
Jordan
Matthew J. 113,329 2,106,234 220,832 247,497 1,312,179 4,155,422
Bannick
William C. 85,000 1,898,718 86,874 233,126 2,057,054 4,942 533
Cobb

(1) Vaueredizedisbased onthe fair market value of our common stock on date of exercise minusthe exercise price and does not
necessarily reflect proceeds actualy received by the officer.

(2) Cadculated using thefair market value of our common stock on December31, 2002 ($67.82) lessthe exercise price of the option.

Compensation CommitteeInterlocks and Insider Participation
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No member of the Compensation Committee is or was formerly anofficer or an employee of eBay. Nointerlocking relationship exists between
the Board of Directorsor Compensation Committee and the board of directors or compensation committee of any other company, nor has such
interlocking relationship existed in the past.

Mr.Kagle, amember of our Compensation Committee, is a member of the general partner of certain venture capital fundsthat beneficially hold
greater than 10% of the equity interests in Keen.com and VVcommerce, Inc. We engaged in the following transactions with these companiesin
2002:

InApril 2000, we entered into an advertising and promotions agreement with Keen.com under which we recognized revenues of approximately
$200,000 in 2002 in exchange for our promotion of Keen. Our agreement with Keen.com expired during 2002. In February 2001, our wholly
owned subsidiary, Half.com, entered into a certain content licensing and inventory salesagreement with Vcommerce pursuant to which
Vcommerce agreed to list its inventory on Half.com’s websiteand to allow Half to use Vcommerce' s catalog data to supplement Half’ sexisting
catalog data. Half paid Vcommerce approximately $25,000 in 2002 under this agreement. Half has recognized approximately $17,000 of
expense in 2003 under itsagreement with Vcommerce.
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We believe that all of thetransactions set forth above were made on terms no less favorable to us than we could have obtained from
unaffiliated third parties.

ITEM12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The followingtable sets forth certain information known to uswith respect to beneficial ownership of the Common Stock as of Marchl, 2003,
by (i)each stockholder known to usto be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stock, (ii)each director and nominee for
director, (iii)each of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table set forth under “Item11: Executive Compensation—
Summary of Compensation” and (iv)all executive officers and directors as a group.

Shares Beneficially

Owned(1)
Name of Beneficial Owner Number Per cent
Pierre M. Omidyar(2) 63,077,942 20.1 %
Jeffrey S. Skoll(3) 33,177,348 10.6
Janus Capital Management LLC (“Janus Capital”)(4) 15,750,221 5.0
Margaret C. Whitman(5) 7,211,551 2.3
Maynard G. Webb, Jr.(6) 525,421 *
Jeffrey D. Jordan(7) 404,596 *
Matthew J. Bannick(8) 225,832 *
William C. Cobb(9) 95,624 *
Philippe Bourguignon(10) 186,250 *
Scott D. Cook(11) 838,536 *
Robert C. Kagle(12) 2,042,293 *
Dawn G. Lepore(13) 156,250 *
Howard D. Schultz(14) 75,042 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (13persons)(15) 75,649,236 238

t ess than one percent.

(Thistable isbased upon information supplied by officers, directors and principal stockholders and Schedules13D and 13G filed with the

1Securities and Exchange Commission. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rulesof the Securitiesand Exchange

) Commission and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Unless otherwise indicated below, the persons
and entities named in the table have sole voting and sole investment power with respect to all shares beneficially owned, subject to
community property laws where applicable. Shares of our common stock subject to options that are currently exercisable or exercisable
within 60days of Marchl, 2003 are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of the person
holding those options, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person. The
percentage of beneficial ownership is based on 314,555,966shares of our common stock outstanding as of Marchl, 2003.

(Mr.Omidyar is our Founder and Chairman of the Board. Includes 383,800shares held by his spouse as to which he disclaims beneficial

2ownership. The address for Mr.Omidyar is 2145Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California 95125.

)

(The address for Mr.Skoll is c/o Capricorn Management, LL C, 2005Hamilton Avenue, Suite260, San Jose, California 95125.
3
)
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(Janus Capital hasan indirect 100% ownership stake in Bay Isle Financial LLC, or Bay Isle, and an indirect 50.1% ownership stakein
4Enhanced Investment Technologies LLC, or INTECH. Dueto the above ownership structure, holdings for Janus Capital, Bay Isle and
) INTECH are aggregated for
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(10)
(11)

(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)

beneficial ownership disclosure purposes. Janus Capital, Bay Isle and INTECH areregistered investment advisers, each furnishing
investment adviceto various investment companies registered under Section8 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and to individual
and ingtitutional clients (collectively, the“Managed Portfolios’). Neither Janus Capital, Bay Islenor INTECH has the right to receive
any dividends from, or the proceeds from the sale of , the securities held in the Managed Portfolios and disclaims any ownership
associated with such rights. Janus Capital has sole voting and dispositive power over 15,320,121shares of common stock and shared
voting and dispositive power over 430,100shares of common stock. The address for Janus Capital Management LLC is 100Fillmore
Street, Denver, Colorado 80206-4923.

(Ms.Whitmanis our President and Chief Executive Officer. Includes 6,425,262shares held by the Griffith R. Harsh,IVV Margaret C.

5Whitman TTEES of Sweetwater Trust U/ A/ D 10/15/99. In addition, it includes (a) 1,198shares held by Griffith Rutherford HarshlV

) Custodian Griffith Rutherford HarshV UTMA California as to which Ms.Whitman’s spouse is custodian for the trust and as to which
Ms.Whitman disclaims beneficial ownership and (b)1,198shares held by Griffith Rutherford Harsh 1V Custodian William Whitman
Harsh UTMA California as to which Ms.Whitman’s spouse is custodian for thetrust and as to which Ms.Whitman disclaims beneficial
ownership. Includes 306,250shares Ms.Whitman has theright to acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The
addressfor Ms.Whitman is 2145Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California95125.

(Mr.Webb isour Chief Operating Officer. Includes 525,421shares Mr.Webb has theright to acquire pursuant to outstanding options

6exercisable within 60days. The address for Mr.Webb is 2145Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California95125.

)

(Mr.Jordan isour Senior Vice President and General Manager, U.S. Business. Includes 404,596shares Mr.Jordan has the right to acquire
7pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The addressfor Mr.Jordan is 2145Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California

) 95125.

(Mr.Bannick isour Senior Vice President, Global Online Payments. Includes 225,832shares Mr.Bannick has the right to acquire pursuant
8to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The address for Mr. Bannick is 2145Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California 95125.

)

(Mr.Cabb isour Senior Vice President and General Manager, eBay International. Includes 95,624shares Mr.Cobb hasthe right to acquire
9pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The address for Mr.Cobb is 2145Hamilton Avenue, San Jose, California

) 95125.

Includes 186,250shares Mr.Bourguignon hasthe right to acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The
addressfor Mr.Bourguignon is 33rue Censier, 75019 Paris, France.

Includes 716,250shares Mr.Cook has theright to acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The address for
Mr.Cook is c/o Intuit, Inc., 2535Garcia Avenue, Mountain View, California 94043.

The shares are held by Robert Joanne Kagle Trust UAD 4/4/96, Robert Kagle and Joanne Kagle, TTEES. Includes 36,250shares
Mr.Kagle hasthe right to acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The address for Mr.Kagle isc/o
Benchmark Capital Management Co., L.L.C., 2480Sand Hill Road, Suite200, Menlo Park, California94025.

Includes 156,250shares Ms.Lepore has theright to acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The address for
Ms.Lepore is c/o The Charles Schwab Corporation, 101Montgomery Street, M.S., 120-30-305, San Francisco, California94104.
Includes 36,250shares Mr.Schultz has theright to acquire pursuant to outstanding options exercisable within 60days. The address for
Mr.Schultz is c/o Starbucks Corporation, 2401Utah Ave. South, 8thFloor, Seattle, Washington 98134.

Includes 3,335,005shares subject to options exercisable within 60days.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
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The followingtable gives information about our shares of common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options, warrantsand rights
under al of our existing equity compensation plansas of December31, 2002, including our 1996 Stock Option Plan, 1997 Stock Option Plan,
1998 Equity Incentive Plan, 1998 Directors Stock Option Plan, the 1999 Plan, the 2001 Plan as well as shares of our common stock that may be
issued under individual compensation arrangements that were not approved by our stockholders, also referred to asour Non-Plan Grants. No
warrants or rights are outstanding under any of theforegoing plans.

©

(a Number of Securities
Number of Securities (b) Remaining Available for
toBe Issued upon Weighted Average Future I ssuance under
Exercise Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrantsand Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Equity compensation plans 34,722,006 $ 56.27 22,238,406 (1)
approved by securityholders
Equity compensation plans not 780,000 (2)(3)(4)(5)(6) $ 156 —
approved by securityholders
Total 35,502,006 $ 55.07 22,238,406

(1) Includes 1,623,993shares of our common stock remaining available for futureissuance under our 1998 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
as amended, or the ESPP, as of December31, 2002. Our ESPP contains an “evergreen” provision that automatically increases, on each
January1l, the number of securities available for issuance under the ESPP by the number of shares purchased under the ESPP in the
preceding calendar year. An aggregate amount of 176,007shares was purchased under the ESPP in 2002. None of our other planshas an
“evergreen” provision.

(2) Doesnot include 13,772shares of our common stock, witha weighted average exercise price of $1.10 per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding optionsassumed by us under the Billpoint, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan, or the Billpoint Plan, in connection with
our acquisition of Billpoint in 1999, as we cannot make subsequent grants or awards of our equity securities under the Billpoint Plan.
Prior to our acquisition of Billpoint, the stockholders of Billpoint approved the Billpoint Plan. Our stockholders, however, did not
approve theBillpoint Plan in connection with our acquisition of Billpoint.

(3) Doesnot include 95,363shares of our common stock, withaweighted average exercise price of $13.83 per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding optionsassumed by us under the Half.com, Inc. 1999 Equity Compensation Plan, or the Half.com Plan, in
connection with our acquisition of Half.comin 2000, aswe cannot make subseguent grants or awards of our equity securities under the
Haf.com Plan. Prior to our acquisition of Half, the stockholders of Half approved the Half.com Plan. Our stockholders, however, did not
approve theHalf.com Plan in connection withour acquisition of Half.

(4)  Doesnotinclude 59,159shares of our common stock, withaweighted average exercise price of $0.43 per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding optionsassumed by us under the Confinity, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan, or the Confinity Plan, in connection with our
acquisition of PayPal in October 2002, as we cannot make subsequent grants or awards of our equity securities under the Confinity Plan.
The Confinity Plan was assumed by PayPal in connection with itsmerger with Confinity in 2000. Prior to our acquisition of PayPal and
PayPal’ s merger with Confinity, the stockholders of Confinity approved the Confinity Plan. Our stockholders, however, did not approve
the Confinity Plan in connection with our acquisition of PayPal.
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(5) Doesnot include 323,313shares of our common stock, with aweighted average exercise price of $3.00 per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding optionsassumed by us under the X.com Corporation 1999 Stock Plan, or the X.com Plan, in connection with our
acquisition of PayPal in October 2002, as we cannot make subsequent grants or awards of our equity securities under the X.com Plan.
Prior to our acquisition of PayPal, the stockholders of PayPal approved the X.com Plan. Our stockholders, however, did not approve the
X.com Planin connection with our acquisition of PayPal.

(6) Doesnotinclude 1,182,373shares of our common stock, with a weighted average exercise price of $33.73 per share, to be issued upon
exercise of outstanding optionsassumed by us under the PayPal, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, or the PayPal Plan, in connection with
our acquisition of PayPal in October 2002, as we cannot make subsequent grants or awards of our equity securities under the PayPal
Plan. Prior to our acquisition of PayPal, the stockholders of PayPal approved the PayPal Plan. Our stockholders, however, did not
approve thePayPal Plan in connection with our acquisition of PayPal.

The only outstanding Non-Plan Grant as of December31, 2002 relatesto an individual compensation arrangement that was made prior to the
initial public offering of our Common Stock in 1998. At the time of thisNon-Plan Grant, membersof our Board and their affiliates beneficially
owned in excess of 90% of our then outstanding equity and voting interests. This Non-Plan Grant has been previously disclosed in our initial
public offering Prospectus filed with the SEC on September25, 1998 under the headings “ M anagement— Director Compensation” and
“—Compensation Arrangements.” Except as set forth below, the termsand conditions of this Non-Plan Grant are identical to the termsof our
1997 Stock Option Plan, a copy of which was filed as an exhibit to our S-1 Registration Statement (N0.33-59097) filed in connection with our
initial public offering.

The outstanding Non-Plan Grant involved the Board' s grant of an option to purchase 900,000shares of our Common Stock at an exercise price
of $1.56 to Mr.Cook upon hisjoining our Board in June 1998 asan independent director. These options granted to Mr.Cook werenon-qualified
options and were immediately exercisable, with aterm of 10years. These options vested asto 25% of the underlying shares in June 1999 and as
to 2.08% of the shares each month thereafter until they fully vested in June 2002. Mr.Cook exercised 120,000 of these optionsin May 2002 and
exercised an additional 100,000 of these optionsin February 2003.

A second Non-Plan Grant involved the Board' s grant of an option to purchase 3,600,000shares of our Common Stock at an exercise price of
$2.50 to Brian Swette upon his joining eBay in August 1998 as Senior Vice President of Marketing and International. These options granted to
Mr.Swette were non-qualified options with aterm of ten years. During 2002, Mr.Swette exercised all options availableto himin connection
with his departure from eBay. No options were outstanding under thisgrant as of December31, 2002.

ITEM13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. These agreementsrequire usto indemnify
such individuals, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, for certain liabilities to which they may become subject as aresult of their
affiliation witheBay.

In August 2000, Mr.Webb, our Chief Operating Officer, entered into a four-year termloan with usat aninterest rate of 6.37% per annum, with
10%, 15%, 25% and 50% of principal on theloan being dueon each of the first, second, third and fourth anniversary of the loan’sissue date,
respectively. The principal amount on theloan was approximately $2,169,800, which amount represented the principa and accrued interest due
at theend of aone-year term loan entered into in August 1999 between Mr.Webb and us shortly after his relocation to San Jose asaresult of his
joining eBay in 1999, and was secured by Mr.Webb's principal place of residence. In January 2001, we entered intoa special retention bonus
plan with Mr.Webb, under which Mr.Webb received bonus paymentsin August of 2001 and 2002 and remains digible to receive bonus
paymentsin August 2003 and 2004 if he isthen employed by us.
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Payment amounts under Mr.Webb's bonus plan are $355,200 for 2001, $449,900 for 2002, $646,100 for 2003 and $1,154,000 for 2004, and
may be used to pay principal and interest payments owing to us under theterms of hisloan. In August 2001 and August 2002, in accordance
with theterms of hisloan, Mr.Webb paid down $355,200 and $449,900, respectively, of principa and accrued interest on the loan. The
maximum indebtedness of Mr.Webb to usduring 2002 was $2,077,211. In January 2003, Mr.Webb prepaid in full the principal and accrued
interest on hisloan in the amount of approximately $1,670,800.

InMay 2000, Mr.Jordan, our Senior Vice President and General Manager, U.S.Business, entered into two four-year termloans with usat an
interest rate of 6.40% per annum, withprincipal and accrued interest payable on each loan in equal installments on each anniversary. The
principal amounts on the loans were$1,000,000 and $900,000, respectively, with theloan amounts secured by Mr.Jordan’s principal place of
residence. InMay 2000, we entered into a special retention bonus plan with Mr.Jordan under which Mr.Jordan received bonus paymentsin
May of 2001 and 2002 and remainseligible to receive bonus paymentsin May 2003 and 2004 if heis then employed by us. Payment amounts
under this bonus plan with Mr.Jordan are $314,000 for 2001, $298,000 for 2002, $282,000 for 2003, and $266,000 for 2004, and may be used
to pay principal and interest payments Mr.Jordan will then owe to usunder the loansdescribed in this paragraph. In July 2000, Mr.Jordan
repaid in full the principal and accrued interest on the $900,000 term loan. In addition, in April 2001, Mr.Jordan entered into afour-year term
loan with us at an interest rate of 4.94% per annum, with principal and accrued interest payablein equal installments on each anniversary of this
loan. The principal amount on this loan was $750,000, with theloan amount secured by Mr.Jordan’s principa place of residence. InApril
2001, we entered into a second special retention bonus plan with Mr.Jordan under which Mr.Jordan received bonus payments in April of 2002
and remains eligible to receive bonus paymentsin April 2003, 2004 and 2005 if he isthen employed by us. Payment amounts under this bonus
plan with Mr.Jordan are $224,550 for 2002, $215,288 for 2003, $206,025 for 2004, and $196,763 for 2005, and may be used to pay principal
and interest payments Mr.Jordan will then owe to us under theloans described in this paragraph. InMay 2001 and May 2002, Mr.Jordan paid
down $314,000 and $298,000, respectively, of principal and accrued interest on his May 2000 loan. In April 2002, Mr.Jordan paid down
$224,550 of principal and accrued interest on his April 2001 loan. The maximum indebtedness of Mr.Jordan to us during 2002 was $1,579,050.

InMarch 2001, in connection with his relocation to San Jose as a result of hisjoining eBay in late 2000, Mr.Cobb, our Senior Vice President
and General Manager, eBay International, entered into a four-year, non-interest bearing term loan with usin the amount of $840,000. The loan
to Mr.Cobb is secured by his principal place of residence. Principal payments of $70,000 are due on the first, second and third anniversaries of
the date Mr.Cobb joined eBay (November27, 2000), with a balloon payment of theremaining principal due on November27, 2004. In
November 2000, we entered intoa specia retention bonus plan with Mr.Cobb under which Mr.Cobb received a $70,000 bonus paymentin
November of 2001 and 2002 and remainseligible to receive bonus paymentsin November 2003 and 2004 if he isthen employed by us. In
April 2002, we entered intoa second special retention bonus plan with Mr.Cobb under which Mr.Cobb will receive a $280,000 bonus payment
on November27, 2004 if he isthen employed by us. Mr.Cobb may use these bonus paymentsto pay principal payments due under hisloan. In
November 2001 and 2002, Mr.Cobb paid down $70,000 and $70,000, respectively, of principal on hisloan. The maximum indebtedness of

Mr.Cobb to us during 2002 was$770,000.

In September 2002, weentered into a special retention bonus plan with Mr. Bannick. Under theterms of thisbonus plan, Mr.Bannick received
a $250,000 bonus payment after theclosing of our acquisition of PayPal in October 2002 and upon his acceptance of the new position as our
Senior Vice President and General Manager, Globa Online Payments. Mr.Bannick remains eligible to receive performance-based bonus
paymentsrelated primarily to theintegration and performance of our PayPal subsidiary of up to $250,000 on each of the nine-month, 18-month,
and 24-month anniversaries of the October 2002 closing of the PayPal acquisition.

Mr.Omidyar, our Founder and the Chairman of our Board of Directors, and Mr.Skoll, abeneficial owner of more than 5% of our common
stock, from time to time make their personal aircraft available to
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our officers for business purposes at no cost to us. The imputed cost of the aircraft use was not material to our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Mr.Cook, a member of our Board of Directors, is adirector and Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directorsof Intuit. In
September 2000, prior to eBay’ s acquisition of PayPal, PayPal entered intoa strategic marketing agreement with Intuit. PayPal paid Intuit
approximately $672,000 in 2002 under this agreement. The agreement was terminated in December 2002, and PayPal paid Intuitan early
termination fee of $1,349,000 in January 2003 in accordance with the termsof the agreement.

Certain other transactions are described under the caption “ Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in Item12, whichis
incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM14.CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined inthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules13a-14(c) and 15d-14(c)) as of a date, also referred to as the Evaluation Date, within 90days before the
filing date of this annual report. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financia Officer have concluded that as
of the Evaluation Date, thedesign and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures wereeffective.

(b) Changesin internal controls. There wereno significant changesin our internal controls or in other factorsthat could significantly affect
these controls subsequent to the Evaluation Date.
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PART IV

ITEM 15:EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULESAND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a)The following documents arefiled as part of this report:

1. Consolidated Financial Satements:

Page
Number
Report of Independent Accountants 93
Consolidated Balance Sheet 94
Consolidated Statement of Income 95
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 96
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity 97
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 98
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 99
2. Financial Satement Schedules.
Page
Number
Schedulel l—Vauation and Qualifying Accounts 140

All other schedules have been omitted because the information required to be set forth therein is not applicable or is shown in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits
Filed Incorporated by Reference
with
this Date
No. Exhibit Description 10-K Form File No. Filed
2.01 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July7, 2002, 8-K 07/08/02
among PayPal, Inc., the Registrant and VVaguita Acquisition
Corp.
3.01 Registrant’'s Amended and Restated Certificate of 10-Q 11/13/98
Incorporation.
3.02 Regidrant’s Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of 10-K 03/28/01
Incorporation.
3.03 Regidtrant’s Corrected Certificate of Certificate of 10-K 03/28/01
Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation.
4,01 Form of Specimen Certificate for Registrant’s Common S1 333-59097 08/19/98
Stock.
4.02 Investor Rights Agreement, dated June20, 1997, between S1 333-59097 07/15/98
the Registrant and certain stockholders named therein.
10.01+ Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registrant S1 333-59097 07/15/98

with each of its directors and executive officers.
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No.
10.02+

10.03+
10.04+
10.05+
10.06+
10.07+
10.08+
10.09+
10.10+
10.11+

10.12+
10.13+

10.14+

10.15+
10.16+

10.17+

10.18+
10.19+

Exhibit Description

Registrant’s 1996 Stock Option Plan.

Registrant’s 1997 Stock Option Plan.

Registrant’s 1998 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.
Registrant’s 2001 Equity Incentive Plan.

Registrant’s 1998 Directors Stock Option Plan.
Amendment No.1 to Registrant’s 1998 Directors Stock
Option Plan.

Registrant’s Amended and Restated 1998 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.

Registrant’s 1999 Glaobal Equity Incentive Plan, as
amended.

Employment Letter Agreement dated January16, 1998,
between MargaretC. Whitman and Registrant.
Employment Letter Agreement dated August20, 1998,
between MichaglR. Jacobson and Registrant.

Offer Letter to MaynardG. Webb, Jr. dated July17, 1999.
Retention Bonus Plan dated January10, 2001, between
Registrant and MaynardG. Webb, Jr. (Corrected).

Stock Option Agreement dated June9, 1998 between
Registrant and ScottD. Cook.

Offer Letter to JeffreyD. Jordan dated July30, 1999.
Retention Bonus Plan dated May16, 2000, between
Registrant and JeffreyD. Jordan.

Retention Bonus Plan dated April3, 2001, between
Registrant and JeffreyD. Jordan.

Offer Letter to WilliamC. Cobb dated November22, 2000.
Supplemental Retention BonusPlan dated April14, 2002,
between Registrant and WilliamC. Cobb.
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Filed
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Form

S1
S1
S1
S8
S1
10-K
10-K
S8
S1
S1

S3
10-Q

S3
10-K

10-Q

10-K
10-Q

Incor porated by Reference

File No.

333-59097
333-59097
333-59097
333-97729
333-59097

333-97729

333-59097

333-59097

333-88205

333-88205

Date

Filed
07/15/98
07/15/98
07/15/98
08/06/02
07/15/98
03/29/99

03/25/02

08/06/02

08/19/98

09/01/98

09/30/99
08/14/01

09/30/99
03/28/01

08/14/01

03/25/02
08/06/02
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Filed Incorporatedby Reference
with
this Date
No. Exhibit Description 10-K Form File No. Filed
10.20+ Employment Letter Agreement between Registrant and 10-Q 11/14/02
ChristopherT. Hjelm, dated as of March11, 2002.
10.21+ Special Bonus Plan between Registrant and Matthewd. Bannick, 10-Q 11/14/02
dated asof September6, 2002.
10.22 Lease dated Marchl, 2000, between eBay Realty Trust and 10-K 03/30/00
Registrant.
10.23 Cash Collateral Agreement between Registrant and Chase 10-K 03/30/00
Manhattan Bank as Agent, dated March1, 2000.
21.01 List of Subsidiaries. X
23.01 PricewaterhouseCoopersLLP consent. X
24,01 Power of Attorney (seesignature page) X

+Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

(b)Reports on Form8-K during thefourth quarter of fiscal 2002:

1.0n October3, 2002, eBay filed areport on Form8-K to report under Itemb that it had obtained all approvals required under applicable
state money transmitter lawsto complete itspreviously announced merger with PayPal, Inc. No financial statementswere filed with the
report.

2.0n October4, 2002, eBay filed areport on Form8-K to report under Item?2 that it had obtained the approval of the holders of a majority
of common stock of PayPal, Inc. of themerger of Vacquita Acquisition Corp., awholly-owned subsidiary of eBay, with and into PayPal,
as well asthe completion of the merger. Nofinancial statementswerefiled with the report because the required financial statementswere
filed with Amendment No.1 to the Company’ s Registration Statement on FormS-4 (File N0.333-97727), whichwas filed withthe
Securities and Exchange Commission on August28, 2002.

3.0n November14, 2002, eBay furnished a report on Form8-K to report under Item9 that it had filed its Quarterly Report on Form10-Q,

and that accompanying such report were the certifications of eBay’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, asrequired by
Section906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. No financial statementswere filed with the report.

(c)See the Exhibitslisted under 1tem15(a)(3) above.
(d)The financial statement schedules required by thisitem arelisted under 1tem15(a)(2) above.

92

swneest ox B asim 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To theBoard of Directors and
Stockholders of eBay Inc.:

Inour opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements listed in theindex appearing under Item15(a)(1) on page88 present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of eBay Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December31, 2001 and December31, 2002, and theresults
of their operations and their cash flows for the three yearsthen ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financia statements are theresponsibility of the Company’ s management; our responsibility isto express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statementsin accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which requirethat we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basisfor our opinion.

Asdiscussed in Note3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, effective Januaryl, 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for
goodwill in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
January17, 2003, except for Notel?,

whichis asof March28, 2003
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eBay Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,
2001 2002
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents $ 523969 $ 1,109,313
Short-term investments 199,450 89,690
Accounts receivable, net 101,703 131,453
Funds receivable — 41,014
Other current assets 58,683 96,988
Total current assets 883,805 1,468,458
Long-term investments 286,998 470,227
Restricted cash and investments 129,614 134,644
Property and equipment, net 142,349 218,028
Goodwiill 187,829 1,456,024
Intangible assets, net 10,810 279,465
Deferred tax assets 21,540 84,218
Other assets 15,584 13,380

$ 1678529 $ 4,124,444

LIABILITIESAND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 3323 $ 47,424
Funds payable and amounts due to customers — 50,396
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 94,593 199,323
Deferred revenue and customer advances 15,583 18,846
Short-term debt 16,111 2,970
Income taxes payable 20,617 67,265
Total current liabilities 180,139 386,224

Long-term debt 12,008 13,798
Deferred tax ligbilities 3,629 111,843
Other ligbilities 15,864 22,874
Minority interests 37,751 33,232
Total liabilities 249,391 567,971

Commitmentsand contingencies (Notes9 and11)

Stockholders' equity:
Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value; 10,000 — —
shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding

Common Stock, $0.001 par value; 900,000 shares 277 311

authorized; 277,259 and 311,277 sharesissued and

outstanding
Additional paid-in capital 1,275,240 3,108,443
Unearned stock-based compensation (2,367 ) (5,253)
Retained earnings 164,633 414,474
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome (10ss) (8,645 ) 38,498

Total stockholders' equity 1,429,138 3,556,473

$ 1678529 $ 4,124,444
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eBay Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December31,

2000 2001 2002
Net revenues $ 431,424 $ 748,821 $ 1,214,100
Cost of net revenues 95,453 134,816 213,876
Gross profit 335,971 614,005 1,000,224

Operating expenses.

Salesand marketing 166,767 253,474 349,650

Product devel opment 55,863 75,288 104,636

General and administrative 73,027 105,784 171,785

Payroll taxes on stock option gains 2,337 2,442 4,015

Amortization of intangible assets 1,433 36,591 15,941

Merger related costs 1,550 — —

Total operating expenses 300,977 473,579 646,027

Income from operations 34,994 140,426 354,197
Interest and other income, net 46,337 41,613 49,209
Interest expense (3374) (2,851) (1,492)
Impairment of certain equity investments — (16,245 ) (3,781)
Income before incometaxes and minority interests 77,957 162,943 398,133
Provision for income taxes (32,725 ) (80,009 ) (145,946 )
Minority interests in consolidated companies 3,062 7,514 (2,296 )
Net income $ 48294 $ 90448 $ 249,891
Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.19 $ 0.34 $ 0.87

Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.32 $ 0.85
Weighted average shares:

Basic 251,776 268,971 287,496

Diluted 280,346 280,595 292,820

The accompanying notesare an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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eBay Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002

Net income $ 48,294 $ 90,448 $ 249,891
Other comprehensiveincome (10ss):

Foreign currency trandation adjustments 803 (5,835) 48,000

Unrealized gains (losses)on investments (11,583 ) 1,215 774

Investment gainincluded in net income — 3,799 558

Unrealized losses on cash flow hedges — (3,865) (2,637 )

Estimated tax benefit (provision) 4811 (458) 448
Net change in other comprehensive income (loss)before (5,969 ) (5,144) 47,143
cumulative effect of changein accounting principle
Cumulative effect of changein accounting principle — (2,626) —
Comprehensive income $ 42,325 $ 82678 $ 297,034

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
Convertible preferred stock:
Balance, beginning of year $ — $ — $ —
Balance, end of year — — —

Common stock:
Balance, beginning of year 262 269 277
Common stock issued 7 8 34
Balance, end of year 269 277 311
Additional paid-in-capital:
Balance, beginning of year 831,121 941,285 1,275,240
Common stock issued 49,043 252,395 1,740,488
Common stock repurchased (365) (145) (132)
Contributions from partners and minority interest 23,816 — —
Unearned stock-based compensation 187 — 298
Stock option income tax benefit 37,483 81,705 92,549
Balance, end of year 941,285 1,275,240 3,108,443
Notesreceivable from stockholders:
Balance, beginning of year (11) — —
Note repayments 11 — —

Balance, end of year — — —
Unearned stock-based compensation:

Balance, beginning of year (8,704 ) (1,423) (2,367 )
Unearned stock-based compensation (187) (4,117) (9,943 )
Amortization of unearned stock-based compensation 7,141 3,091 5,953
Cancellation or repurchase of shares 327 82 1,104
Balance, end of year (1,423 ) (2,367) (5,253 )
Retained earnings:
Balance, beginning of year 26,367 74,504 164,633
Partnership distributions (157) (319) (50)
Net income 48,294 90,448 249,891
Balance, end of year 74,504 164,633 414,474
Accumulated other comprehensiveincome (10ss):
Balance, beginning of year 5,094 (875) (8,645 )
Unrealized gain (loss)on investments, net of tax (6,772 ) 3,010 724
Unrealized gain (loss)on cash flow hedges, net of tax — (4,945) (1,581)
Foreign currency trandation adjustment 803 (5,835) 48,000
Balance, end of year (875) (8,645) 38,498
Total stockholders' equity $ 1,013,760 $ 1,429,138 $ 3,556,473

Number of shares

Common stock:

Balance, beginning of year 262,087 269,250 277,259
I ssuance of common stock for cash 4,593 5,831 10,028
I ssuance of common stock for acquisitions 2,570 2,178 23,990
Balance, end of year 269,250 277,259 311,277

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financia Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flowsfrom operating activities:

Net income

2000

$

Adjustmentsto reconcile to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Provision for doubtful accounts and

authorized

credits

Provision for transaction losses
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation

Tax benefi
options

t on theexercise of stock

Impairment of certain equity investments
Minority interestsand other
Gain on sale of assets

Changes in assetsand liahilities, net of
acquired businesses:

Cash flowsfrom invest

Accountsreceivable
Fundsreceivable
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Deferred tax assets
Accountspayable
Funds payable and amounts
dueto customers
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities
Deferred revenueand
customer advances
Income taxes payable
Net cash provided
by operating
activities
ing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments
Maturities and sales of investments

Proceeds fromsde
Acquisitions, net of

of assets
cash acquired

Purchases of other non-current assets

subsidiaries

Net cash used in

48,294

18,237

38,050
7,141
37,483

(1,475)

(48,862 )

(20,530 )
(11,992 )

(8,253)
(408 )

31,167
6,659

4,637

100,148

(49,753 )
(398,998 )
248,547

(5,850 )

(206,054 )

investing activities
Cash flowsfrom financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net
Proceeds fromissuance of common stock by

Proceeds from (principal paymentson) long-term

debt

Partnership distributions

EGAF

— Faalfdalia

2003.

45,530
37,736

2,869

(157 )

Year Ended December 31,

$

EDGAR Onl i ne,

2001

90,448

25,243

86,641
3,001
81,705

16,245
(10,170 )

(50,221 )

11,607
(4,787 )
(11,408 )
(4,087 )

6,790
1,516

9,499
252,112

(57,420 )
(602,485 )
738,989
4,560
(111,730 )
(1,733 )
(29,819 )

123,710

(21,886 )
(319 )

I nc.

$

2002

249,801

25,455

7,832
76,576
5,953
91,237

3,781
1,324
(21,378 )

(54,583 )
(11,819 )
10,716
(1,195 )
8,134
14,631
(6,027 )

35,481
2,780

41,114
479,903

(138,670 )
(723,307 )
727,455
35,777
(59,411 )

397
(157,759 )

252,181

(64)

(50)



Net cash provided 85,978 101,505 252,067

by financing
activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash — (4,702 ) 11,133
equivaents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (19,928 ) 322,096 585,344
Cash and cash equivalentsat beginning of year 221,801 201,873 523,969
Cash and cash equivalentsat end of year $ 201,873 $ 523,969 $ 1,109,313
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,915 $ 2,195 $ 1,492
Cash paid for income taxes $ — $ — $ 2,382
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock issued for acquisition $ 17,341 $ 128,540 $ 1,476,504
Preferred stock issued for notes payable $ 3,494 $ — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1— The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The Company

eBay Inc. (“eBay”) was incorporated in Californiain May1996, and reincorporated in Delawarein April1998. Asof December31, 2002,
through our wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and affiliates, we had websites directed towards the United States, Australia,
Austria, Belgium, Canada, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Singapore, South Korea, Spain, Sweden,
Switzerland, Taiwan and the United Kingdom. We pioneered online trading by developing a Web-based community in which buyers and sellers
are brought together to buy and sell almost anything. The eBay online service permits sdllersto listitems for sale, buyers to bid on items of
interest, and all eBay usersto browse through listed itemsin a fully-automated, topically-arranged servicethat is available online seven daysa
week.

On October3, 2002, we completed our acquisition of PayPal,Inc. in atax-free, stock-for-stock transaction. PayPal provides an online global
payments platform and is headquartered in Mountain View, California. The PayPal financial statements are includedin our Consolidated
Financial Statements for the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002.

Sock splits

In April2000, our Board of Directors approved a two-for-onecommon stock split. Stockholders of record on May9, 2000 received one
additional share for each share owned on May24, 2000. All share and per share amountsin these Consolidated Financial Statements and related
notes reflect the stock splitsin all periods presented.

Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity withgenerally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and ligbilities at the
date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during thereporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Principles of consolidation and basis of presentation

The accompanying financia statements are consolidated and include thefinancia statements of eBay and our mgjority-owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The consolidated accounts include 100percent of the assets and liabilities of these majority-owned subsidiaries and the ownership interests of
minority investors are recorded as minority interests. Investmentsin entities where we hold more than a 20percent but less than a 50percent
ownership interest and have the ability to significantly influence the operations of the investee are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and the investment balance isincluded in long term investments, while our share of theinvestees operationsisincluded in other
income.

Certainprior period balanceshave been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
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Fair value of financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investmentswith original maturities of three monthsor less when purchased. Our
financial instruments, including cash, cash equivalents, accounts
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)
receivable, and accounts payable are carried at cost, which approximates their fair value because of the short-term maturity of these instruments.

Short and long-term investments, which include marketable equity securities, municipal, government and corporate bonds, are classified as
available-for-sale and reported at fair value using the specific identification method. Realized gainsand losses are included in earnings and
were immaterial in all periods presented. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from earnings and reported as acomponent of other
comprehensive income (loss), net of related estimated tax provisions or benefits. Additionally, we assess whether an other-than-temporary
impairment loss on our investments has occurred due to declines in fair value or other market conditions. Declines in fair value that are
considered other than temporary arerecorded as an impairment of certain equity investments in the statement of income.

Derivative instruments

Werecognize all derivativeinstrumentson the balance sheet at fair value. Changesin thefair value (i.e., gainsor losses) of thederivatives are
recorded each period in the statement of incomeor other comprehensive income (1oss). For a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge, the
gain or loss on thederivative isinitially reported as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently reclassified into the
statement of income when the hedged transaction affects earnings. For derivatives recognized as afair value hedge, thegain or loss on the
derivative in the period of change and the offsetting loss or gain of the hedged item attributed to the hedged risk, are recognized in the statement
of income. For derivatives not recognized as hedges, the gain or loss on thederivative in the period of changesis recognized as other income.

Concentrations of credit risk

Our cash, cash equivalents, investments and accounts receivable are potentially subject to concentration of credit risk. Cash, cash equivalents
and investments are deposited with financia institutions that management believes are of high credit quality. Our accounts receivable are
derived fromrevenue earned from customers located in the U.S. and internationally. The revenues earned fromthe U.S. site aredenominated in
U.S.dollars and revenue earned from our international sites are denominatedin the country’s functional currency. Accounts receivable balances
are typically settled through customer credit cardsand, as aresult, themajority of accounts receivable are collected upon processing of credit
card transactions. We maintain an allowancefor doubtful accounts receivable and authorized credits based upon our historical experience.
Historically, such losses have been within our expectations. However, unexpected or significant future changesin trends could result ina
material impact to future statements of income or cash flows. Generally, due to therelatively small dollar amount of individual accounts
receivable, we do not require collateral on these balances. The provision for doubtful accountsisrecorded asa charge to operating expense,
whilethe provision for authorized credits is recognized as a reduction of revenues.

We also entered into two interest rate swaps withtwo separate financial institutions to reduce our interest rate exposure on our lease payments.
If either of these financial ingtitutions should fail to deliver under these contracts, we may be subject to variable interest rate payments.

During the years ended and as of December31, 2000 and 2002, no customers accounted for more than 10% of net revenuesor net accounts
receivable. During theyear and asof December31, 2001, no customers accounted for more than 10% of net revenues and one customer
represented approximately 20% of net accounts receivable.
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NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

Allowances for transaction losses

Our Payments segment is exposed to transaction losses due to fraud, as well as non-performance of third parties and customers. We establish
allowances for estimated losses arising from processing customer transactions, such as charge-backs for unauthorized credit card use and
merchant related charge-backs due to non-delivery of goods or services, Automated Clearing House, or ACH, returns, and debit card
overdrafts. These alowancesrepresent anaccumulation of the estimated amounts, using an actuarial technique, necessary to provide for
transaction losses incurred as of thereporting date, including thoseto whichwe have not yet been notified. The allowances are monitored
monthly and are updated based on actual claims data reported by our claims processors. Customers typically have up to 180days to file
transaction disputes. Consequently, the time between estimating the loss provisions andredlization of theactual amount is short. The
allowances arebased on known facts and circumstances, internal factors including our experience with similar cases, historical trends involving
loss payment patterns and the mix of transaction and loss types. Additions to the allowance, in the form of provisions, are reflected as a general
and administrative expense in our results of operations, while write-offsto the allowance are made whenaloss is determined to have occurred.
Recoveries, when collected, are recorded asan increase to the allowance for transaction losses. As of December31, 2002, the allowance for
transaction losses totaled $10.1million and was included in other current liabilities in our consolidated balance sheet.

Fundsreceivable and funds payable

Fundsreceivable and payablerelate to our Payments segment and arise due to thetime taken to clear transactions through external payment
networks. When customers fund their account using their bank account or credit card, or withdraw money to their bank account or through a
debit card transaction, thereis aclearing period before the cash isreceived or sent by PayPal, usually two or three days. Hence, these fundsare
treated as areceivable or payable until the cashis settled.

Foreign currency

All of our foreign subsidiaries use thelocal currency of their respective countries as their functional currency. Assetsand liabilitiesare
trandlated at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates. Revenues, costs and expenses are trandlated into United States dollars at
average exchange rates for the period. Gains and losses resulting from translation are accumulated asa component of other comprehensive
income (l0ss).

Realized gains and losses fromforeign currency transactions arerecognized asother income and are insignificant for all periods presented.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, generally five yearsor lessfor equipment and furniture, and up to thirty years
for buildings and building improvements.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets resulting from the acquisitions of entities accounted for using the purchase method of accounting are estimated by
management based on thefair value of assets received. Identifiable intangible assets are comprised of purchased customer lists, developed
technol ogies, trade names, and other intangible assets. |dentifiable intangible assets are being amortized using the straight-line method over
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Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over thefair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.142 or SFAS No.142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill isno longer subject to amortization. Rather, goodwill is subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment,
applying a fair-value based test.

Impairment of long-lived assets

We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenever eventsor changes in circumstancesindicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable in accordance with SFAS No.144, “ Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Anasset is
considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds thefuture net cash flow the asset is expected to generate. If such asset is considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair market value.
We assess the recoverability of our long-lived andintangible assetsby determining whether the unamortized balances can be recovered through
undiscounted future net cash flows of therelated assets. The amount of impairment, if any, is measured based on projected discounted future
net cash flowsusing a discount rate reflecting our average cost of capital.

We evaluate goodwill, at aminimum, on an annual basis and whenever events and changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reporting unitlevel by comparing thereporting unit’s carrying amount,
including goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit. The fair values of the reporting unitsare estimated usinga combination of the income,
or discounted cash flows, approach and the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies’ data. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and a second step is performed to measure theamount of impairment loss,
if any.

Due to customers

Customersutilize our payment servicesto transfer money viathe Internet. Any stored value remaining fromtransactionsin a customer’s
account represents a liability to the customer. Customers can elect to sweep their account balances into the PayPal Money Market fundto earna
rate of return; otherwise, nointerest ispaid on customer account balances.

Custodial accounts

We deposit all U.S.-based customer fundsnot transferred to PayPal’s Money Market Fund into Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insured
bank accounts. FDIC insuranceis available to PayPal customers if we (1)place pooled customer fundsin bank accounts denominated “ PayPal
as Agent for the Benefit of its Customers’ or similar caption, (2)maintain records sufficient to identify the claim of each customer inthe
FDIC-insured account, (3)comply withapplicable FDIC recordkeeping regquirements, and (4)truly operate as an agent of our customers. We
recelve a custodial credit from our serviceprovider in theform of areduction in transaction processing fees based upon balances held with each
institution. This credit is recognized as a reduction in processing costs.

Environmental expenditures

Asaresult of our 1999 merger with Butterfields, we ownreal estate properties that are either used in our business or leased to unrelated parties
for various commercia uses. We have remediation responsibility for certain environmental and structural deficiencies. Liabilities are recorded
when environmental assessments are made, remediation obligations are probable, and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Estimated
liabilities of approximately $5.8million at December31, 2001 and $404,000 at December31,
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2002 areincluded within other liabilities. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, theamounts accrued for these matters may be
revised in future periods asadditional information is obtained.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensiveincome includes all changesin equity (net assets) during a period from non-owner sources. The change in comprehensive
income for all periods presented resulted from foreign currency translation gainsand losses, unrealized and realized gainsand losses on
investments, and unrealized |osses on cash flow hedges.

Revenue recognition

Our net revenues result from fees associated with our transaction, third-party advertising, end-to-end services, and offline services inour U.S,,
International and Payments segments. Transaction revenue is derived primarily from listing, feature and final value fees paid by sellers and fees
from payment processing services. Revenue from third-party advertising is derived principally from the sale of online banner and sponsorship
advertisements for cash and through barter arrangements. End-to-end services revenueis derived principally from contractual arrangements
with third parties that provide transaction servicesto eBay users. Offline services revenue is derived from avariety of sourcesincluding seller
commissions, buyer premiums, bidder registration fees and auction-related servicesincluding appraisal and authentication, primarily related to
our Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries.

Listing and feature fee revenuesare recognized ratably over the estimated period of the auction while revenuesrelated to final value feesare
recognized at the time that the transaction is successfully concluded. A transaction is considered successfully concluded when at least one buyer
has bid above the seller’ s specified minimum price or reserve price, whichever ishigher, at theend of the transaction term. We earn transaction
fees, alocated to our Payments segment, from processing transactions for certain customers. Revenue resulting from a payment processing
transaction is recognized once the transaction is complete. Provisions for doubtful accounts, authorized credits and transaction losses are made
at thetime of revenue recognition based upon our historical experience. The provision for doubtful accountsis recorded as a chargeto
operating expense, while the provisions for authorized credits and transaction losses are recognized as reductions of net revenues.

Our third-party advertising revenue is derived principally from the sale of online banner and sponsorship advertisements for cash and through
barter arrangements. To date, the duration of our banner and sponsorship advertising contracts has ranged from one week to three years, but is
generally one week to three months. Advertising revenues on both banner and sponsorship contracts are recognized as “impressions’ (i.e., the
number of timesthat an advertisement appears in pages viewed by users of our websites) are delivered or ratably over theterm of the agreement
where such agreements provide for minimum monthly or quarterly advertising commitments or where such commitments are fixed throughout
the term. Barter transactions are valued based on amounts realized in similar cash transactions occurring withinsix months prior to the date of
the barter transaction. To the extent that significant delivery obligations remain at the end of aperiod or collection of the resulting account
receivable is not considered probable, revenues aredeferred until the obligation is satisfied or the uncertainty isresolved. These amounts are
included in deferred revenue in our balance sheet. Third-party advertising revenues, including barter transactions, totaled 3%, 11% and 5% of
our consolidated net revenues for the yearsended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Revenue from barter arrangementstotaled
$2.5million, $10.4million and $10.1million for theyears ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Third-party advertising revenuesmay be affected by thefinancial condition of our customers and by the success of online promotionsin
general. Recently, the industry pricing of online advertisements has deteriorated. Our third-party advertising revenue historically hasbeen
dependent on the performance of the
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sales force of AOL TimeWarner, or AOL. Reduction in third-party advertising, whether due to softening of the demand for online advertising
in general or particular problemsfacing parties withwhom we have contractual arrangements, would adversely affect our operating results.
Unlike our auction transaction revenues, third-party advertising revenues are derived from a highly concentrated customer base. During the
yearsended December31, 2000 and 2001, third-party advertising revenues were attributable to approximately 20 customers each year. During
the year ended December31, 2002, third-party advertising revenues were derived from approximately 30 customers. Additionally, our
advertising salesrepresentative agreement with AOL has not been extended or renewed and is scheduled to terminate on March31, 2003, with
AOL to continue its electronic delivery of our online advertisements for aspecified wind-down period. After March31, 2003, we will be
dependent on the efforts of our existinginternal sales staff.

Our end-to-end services revenuesare derived principally from contractual arrangementswith third parties that provide transaction services to
eBay users. To date, theduration of our end-to-end services contracts has ranged from one to three years. End-to-end services revenuesare
recognized as the contracted services are delivered to end users. To the extent that significant obligations remain at theend of a period or
collection of theresulting receivable is not considered probable, revenues are deferred until the obligation is satisfied or the uncertainty is
resolved. End-to-end services revenueswere 7%, 4% and 2% of our consolidated net revenues for the years ended December31, 2000, 2001
and 2002, respectively.

Similar to our third-party advertising revenues, our end-to-end services revenues may be affected by the financial condition of the parties with
whom we have these relationships and by the success of online servicesand promotions in general. Additionally, end-to-end services revenues
are also concentrated among a small customer base. End-to-end services revenues were derived from approximately 10 customersin 2000 and
from approximately 20 customers in each of 2001 and 2002.

Offline revenuerepresents seller commissions, buyer premiums, bidder registration fees, and auction-related servicesincluding appraisal and
authentication derived from the traditional auction services provided by Butterfields and Kruse International. Butterfields auction revenuesare
derived primarily from auction commissions and fees fromthe sale of property through the auction process. Revenues from seller commissions
and buyer premiums are recognized at the date the related auction is concluded. Service revenues are derived from financial, appraisal and other
related servicesand are recognized as such servicesare rendered. During 2002, we sold our Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries.

Website devel opment costs

We expense costs related to the planning and post implementation phases of our website development efforts. Direct costs incurred in the
development phase are capitalized and amortized over the product’s estimated useful life of one to three years ascharges to cost of net
revenues. Costs associated with minor enhancements and maintenance for the website are included in cost of net revenuesin the accompanying
consolidated statement of income.

Advertising expense

We expense the costs of producing advertisements at the time production occurs, and expense the cost of communicating advertising in the
period during whichthe advertising space or airtimeis used. Internet advertising expenses are recognized based on the termsof theindividual
agreements, which is generally over the greater of theratio of the number of impressions delivered over the total number of contracted
impressions, or on a straight-line basis over theterm of the contract. Advertising expenses totaled $85.4million, $127.1million, and
$181.8million during the years ended December31, 2000, 2001, and 2002, respectively.
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Sock-based compensation

Generally accepted accounting principles provide companies with the option of either recognizing the fair value of option grants as an
operating expense or disclosing the impact of fair value accounting in a noteto thefinancial statements. Consistent with predominant industry
practice, we account for stock-based employee compensation arrangementsusing the intrinsic value method, which cal culates compensation
expense based on the difference, if any, on the date of the grant, between the fair value of our stock and the exercise price and have elected to
disclose theimpact of fair value accounting for option grants. Had we elected to recognize thefair value of option grants as an operating
expense, our reported net income would have been substantially reduced, as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Net income, asreported $ 48,294 $ 90,448 $ 249,891
Add: Amortization of stock-based compensation expense determined 7,141 3,091 5,953
under theintrinsic value method
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under (169,656 ) (211,526 ) (192,902 )
fair value based method for al awards, net of tax
Pro forma net income (loss) $ (114221) $ (117987) $ 62,942
Earnings (loss)per share:
Basic—as reported $ 0.19 $ 0.34 $ 0.87
pro forma $ 045) $ 044) $ 0.22
Diluted—as reported $ 0.17 $ 0.32 $ 0.85
pro forma $ 045) $ 044) $ 0.21

The 2000 and 2001 pro forma amounts have been adjusted to reflect the correction of previously calculated pro forma option pricing and
amortization amounts. These adjustments arelimited to the footnote disclosure of non-cash SFAS No0.123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” pro formaexpense and do not resultin any changes or impact to our historically reported statements of income or cash flows.
The previously reported diluted pro formanet loss per sharewas $(0.36) and $(0.05) for theyears ended December31, 2000 and 2001,
respectively.

We account for stock-based arrangements issued to non-employees using the fair value based method, which cal culates compensation expense
based on thefair value of the stock granted using the Black-Scholes option pricing model at the date of grant.

Income taxes

We account for incometaxes using an asset and liability approach, which requires therecognition of taxes payable or refundable for the current
year anddeferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of eventsthat have been recognized in our financial statements or tax
returns. The measurement of current and deferred tax assetsand liabilities is based on provisions of enacted tax laws; the effects of future
changesin tax laws or rates are not anticipated. |f necessary, the measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced by theamount of any tax
benefits that are not expected to be realized based on available evidence.
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Recent accounting pronouncements

Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities

InJune 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board or FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.146 or SFAS
No.146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF Issue
No0.94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 requires that aliability for acost associated with anexit or disposal activity be recognized when
the liability isincurred and statesthat an entity’s commitment to an exit plan, by itself, does not create a present obligation that meets the
definition of aliability. SFASN0.146 aso establishesthat fair value is the objective for initial measurement of theliability. The provisions of
SFAS No0.146 areeffectivefor exit or disposal activities initiated after December31, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS N0.146 to
have a material impact upon our financia position, cash flows or results of operations.

Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees

InNovember 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation N0.45 or FIN45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirementsfor
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.” FIN45 requires a guarantor to recognize aliability for obligations it has
undertaken in relation to the issuance of aguarantee. It requiresthat theliability be recorded at fair value on the date that the guarantee is
issued. It aso requires a guarantor to provide additional disclosures regarding guarantees, including the nature of the guarantee, the maximum
potential amount of future payments under the guarantee, the carrying amount of the liability, if any, for the guarantor’s obligations under the
guarantee, and the nature and extent of any recourse provisions or available collateral that would enable the guarantor to recover the amounts
paid under the guarantee. The disclosure requirements under FIN 45 are effective for the interim and annual periods ending after December15,
2002. The recognition and measurement provisions under FIN45 are effective for guarantees issued or modified after December31, 2002. We
do not expect the adoption of FIN45 to have amaterial impact upon our financial position, cash flowsor results of operations. See “Notell—
Commitmentsand Contingencies.”

Accounting for Sock Based Compensation

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS N0.148, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation— Transition and Disclosure.” SFAS148
provides two additional transition methods for entities that voluntarily adopt the fair value method of recording expenses when accounting for
stock based compensation. Further, the statement requires disclosure of comparable information for al companies regardless of whether, when,
or how an entity adopts the preferable, fair value based method of accounting. These disclosuresare now required for interim periods in
addition to thetraditional annual disclosure. The amendmentsto SFAS No.123, which provides for additional transition methods, are effective
for periods beginning after December15, 2002. The disclosure provisions are effective for fiscal years ending after December15, 2002 and have
been incorporated into the notes to the accompanying financial statements. We have chosen not to voluntarily adopt thefair value method of
accounting for employee stock option grantsat this time.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities
InJanuary 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “ Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisinterpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No.51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” addresses consolidation by business enterprises of certain variable interest entitieswherethere isa

controlling financia interest in avariable interest entity or where the variableinterest entity does not have sufficient
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equity at risk to financeits activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. Thisinterpretation applies
immediately to variable interest entities created after January31, 2003 and applies in the first year or interim period beginning after Junel5,
2003 to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before Februaryl, 2003. We expect that the
adoption of FIN46 will require usto include our San Jose facilitieslease arrangement and potentially certain investments in our Consolidated
Financial Statements effective Julyl, 2003. In connection with our San Jose facilities |ease arrangement, our balance sheet following the July1,
2003 adoption of FIN46 will reflect changes to record assets of $126.4million, liahilities of $122.5million and non-contralling interests of
$3.9million. In addition, our post-adoption income statement will reflect thereclassification of rent expense payments from operating expenses
to interest expense aswell as therecognition of depreciation expense, within operating expenses, for our use of the buildings. We estimate that
the income statement impact of consolidating our San Jose facilities lease will consist of a charge against earnings, net of taxes, of $5.6million
upon the adoption of FIN46 on July1, 2003. This charge will reflect the accumul ated depreciation charges that would have been recorded in
previous periods had consolidation of the San Jose facilitiesbeen required. Additionally, we have not decided whether we will keep the existing
financing arrangement or purchase the San Josefacilities. Whether or not we keep the existing financing arrangement, we anticipate recording
additional annual operating expenses of $1.7million, net of taxes, for therecognition of depreciation expense on the buildings. In the event we
purchase the San Jose facilities, we will also pay $126.4million, eliminate financing payments and settle our two interest rate swaps we used to
establish a fixed rate of interest for $95million of our financing arrangement. During theyear ended December31, 2002, our financing payments
related to the San Jose facilities totaled $7.9million. At December3l, 2002, settlement of our two interest rate swaps would haveresulted in a
loss of $10.9million.

Note 2— Net IncomePer Share;

Basic net income per shareis computed by dividing the net income for the period by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing the net incomefor the period by theweighted average
number of common and common equivalent shares outstanding during the period. Potentially dilutive securities, composed of unvested,
restricted common stock and incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options and warrants, areincluded in diluted net
income per share to the extent such shares are dilutive.
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The followingtable sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per sharefor the periods indicated (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Year Ended December31,

2000 2001 2002
Numerator:
Net income $ 48294 $ 90,448 $ 249,891
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares 266,826 272,567 287,680
Weighted average restricted common stock (15,050 ) (3,596 ) (184)
Denominator for basic calculation 251,776 268,971 287,496
Weighted average effect of dilutive securities:
Warrants 93 — —
Weighted average restricted 15,050 3,596 184
common stock
Employee stock options 13,427 8,028 5,140
Denominator for diluted calculation 280,346 280,595 292,820
Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.19 $ 0.34 $ 0.87
Diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.32 $ 0.85

Note3— Business Combinations, Goodwill and Intangible Assets

During 2001 and 2002, we completed a number of purchase acquisitions that are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Post Net Identifiable Deferred Aggregate
Acquisition Acquisition Tangible Intangible Tax Unear ned Minority Purchase
Company Name Date Ownership Assets Assets Liabilities Compensation Goodwill Interest Price
Internet Auction February 2001 50.1 % $ 67,670 $ 9,000 $ (3,600 ) $ — $ 82,691 $ (33834 ) $ 121,927
iBazar May 2001 100 % 4,696 2,140 (856 ) — 119,606 — 125,586
Billpoint January 2002 100 % 6,643 1,750 (700 ) — 35,848 — 43541
EachNet March 2002 38 % 9,379 2,280 (912) — 19,253 — 30,000
NeoCom April 2002 100 % 1,446 165 (66 ) — 9,760 — 11,305
PayPal October 2002 100 % 104,965 277,000 (34,958 ) 9,943 1,135,554 — 1,492,504
eBayAustrdiaand ~ October 2002 100 % 444 4,650 (1,860 ) — 62,266 — 65,500
New Zealand
Total $ 195,243 $ 296,985 $ (42,952 ) $ 9943 $ 1,464,978 $ (33834 ) $ 1,890,363

Tangible net assets were valued at their respective carrying amounts as we believe that these amountsapproximated their current fair values at
the respective acquisition dates. The valuation of identifiableintangible assets acquired was based on management’ s estimates using a valuation
report prepared by anindependent third-party valuation consultant. Such assets consist of developed technologies, customer lists, trade names
and other acquired intangible assets including contractual agreements. Identifiable intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of three years to seven years. We believe the straight-line method of amortization best represents the distribution
of theeconomic
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value of theidentifiable intangible assets. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over thefair vaue of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in each business combination. In accordance with SFAS No.142, goodwill isno longer subject to
amortization. Rather, goodwill is subject to at least an annual assessment for impairment, applying a fair-value based test. See “Note 1— The
Company and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”

We account for our investment in EachNet using the equity method of accounting and thetotal investment, including identifiableintangible
assets, deferred tax liabilitiesand goodwill, is classified on our balance sheet as along-term investment.

The followingtable presents details of the purchased intangible assets acquired during 2002 (in thousands, except number of years):

Estimated Estimated Estimated
Acquisition Developed Useful Life Customer Useful Life Trade Useful Life
Company Name Date Technologies (in years) Lists (in years) Names (in years)
Billpoint January 2002 $ 1,750 3 $ — — $ — —
EachNet March 2002 228 2 266 4 1,786 4
NeoCom April 2002 78 2 87 4 — —
PayPel October 2002 16,500 3 196,900 7 63,600 7
eBay Australiaand New Zealand October 2002 — — 4,650 4 — —
Total $ 18,556 $ 201,903 $ 65386
Billpoint

OnMay?25, 1999, eBay acquired a 100% interest in Billpoint, Inc. aleading provider of billing and payment fulfillment services. On
February24, 2000, Billpoint reincorporated in Delaware and sold 350 shares of common stock and 1,399,965 shares of SeriesA preferred stock
to Wells Fargo Bank, which represented an approximately 35% ownership interest in Billpoint. Simultaneously, we exchanged 25,999,350 of
Billpoint’s common shares for 2,599,935 shares of SeriesA preferred stock. The merger was accounted for as a pooling of interests.

InJanuary 2002, we acquired the 35% minority interest in Billpoint held by Wells Fargo Bank in apurchase acquisition for approximately
$43.5million in cash.

In October 2002, we acquired PayPal, Inc. The combined operations of PayPal and Billpoint form our Payments segment. We will be phasing
out Billpoint operations during thefirst half of 2003 and we expect the goodwill and identifiable intangible assetsrelated to the acquisition of
the 35% minority interest to continue to benefit the ongoing operations.

eBay Japan

On February17, 2000, eBay Japan Inc., awholly owned subsidiary of eBay, entered into a shareholder and marketing services agreement with
NEC Corporation. In accordance with the shareholder agreement, NEC acquired 30% of eBay Japan and provided marketing servicesto eBay
Japan in an effort to deliver aminimum level of confirmed registered users. As compensation for the marketing and other services performed by
NEC, eBay Japan paid NEC an annual up-front fee of approximately $1.5million. On July18, 2001, eBay purchased the outstanding 30%
interest in eBay Japan held by NEC for approximately $1.7million. InMarch 2002, eBay Japan ceased business operations.

Half.com

OnJuly11, 2000, we acquired a 100% interest in Half.com, Inc. Half.com was incorporated in Pennsylvaniain June 1999 and provides a
fixed-price, online e-commerce site that allows people to buy
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and sell new and previously owned goods at discounted prices. In connection with the merger, we issued, or reserved for issuance, atotal of
approximately 5,484,000 shares of eBay common stock to Half.com’ sexisting shareholders, option holders and warrant holders as
consideration for all sharesof capital stock, options and warrants of Half.com held immediately prior to consummation of the merger. The
merger wasaccounted for as a pooling of interests.

Internet Auction Co., Ltd.

On February15, 2001, we acquired an approximately 51% majority interest in Internet Auction Co., Ltd., a South Korean company in a
purchase acquisition for $120.8million in cash and incurred $1.1million of direct acquisition costs. Internet Auction introduced onlinetrading in
South Korea whenit launched in April 1998. Shares of Internet Auction are listed on the KOSDAQ. The transaction wasaccounted for using
the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the results of operations of Internet Auction have been included in our Consolidated
Financial Statements since February15, 2001.

iBazar SA.

OnMay18, 2001, weacquired a 100% interest iniBazar S.A. iBazar is a French-based corporation that introduced online trading in France and
at thetime of the acquisition had websitesin Belgium, Brazil, France, Italy, the Netherlands, Portugal, Spain and Sweden. Asconsideration for
the acquisition, we issued sharesin a Belgian subsidiary exchangeablefor 2,045,054 shares of eBay common stock valued at $120.4million,
paid $2.3millionin cash to certain shareholders andincurred acquisition-related costs of approximately $2.9million. The shares issued in the
acquisition were valued on May18, 2001, thefirst date on which the number of eBay’s shares and the amount of other consideration became
fixed, using the average closing price of eBay sharesfor the five daysprior to and includingthe closing date of May18, 2001. The transaction
was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and accordingly, the results of operations of iBazar have been included in our
Consolidated Financial Statements sinceMay18, 2001.

We have established plansto exit certain activities of iBazar andto involuntarily terminate certain iBazar employees. In accordance with this
exit plan included in our purchase accounting, approximately $2.0million hasbeen accrued for the estimated costs associated with severance,
contract terminations and financial advisory and legal fees and hasbeen included in net tangible assets. Asof December31, 2002, we have
utilized al of the$2.0 million liability. In addition, we arein the process of resolving various incometax related contingencies that could result
in an increase in goodwill to the extent that an unfavorable outcome is reached.

In September 2001, weentered into a strategic business relationship with MercadoL ibre, aleading online auction site serving Latin America.
In exchange for our equity interest in iBazar Com Ltda, a Brazilian subsidiary of iBazar, wereceived a 19.5% ownership interest in
MercadoL ibre. We accounted for this investmentin MercadoLibre using the cost method, and no gain or loss was recognized on the exchange.
NeoCom Technology Co., Ltd. Acquisition

InApril 2002, we acquired a 100% interestin NeoCom Technology Co., Ltd. in a purchase acquisition for $11.1million cash and incurred
direct acquisition costs of $198,000. NeoCom provides an online Chinese language marketplace for the trading of goods and services in
Taiwan. The results of operations of NeoCom have been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements since April 2002.
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EachNet, Inc. Equity |nvestment

OnMarchl7, 2002, we acquired a 38% interest in the outstanding common stock of EachNet, Inc., which isa 33% interest on afully diluted
basis, in a purchase acquisition for $30.0million in cash. EachNet provides an online marketplace for the trading of goods and services for both
individual and business customersin the People’s Republic of China.

We account for our investment in EachNet using the equity method of accounting and thetotal investment, including identifiableintangible
assets, deferred tax liabilitiesand goodwill, is classified on our balance sheet as along-terminvestment. In periods subsequent to the
acquisition, our consolidated financial resultsinclude 38% of the net incomeor loss of EachNet together with amortization expenserelating to
acquired intangible assets.

PayPal, Inc. Merger

On October3, 2002, we acquired a100% interest in PayPal, Inc. in atax-free, stock-for-stock transaction. PayPal provides a globa payments
platform and is headquartered in Mountain View, California. We acquired PayPal to provide a significantly improved customer experience to
eBay’ s users by making their trading experience easier, safer, and faster. The PayPal financial statements areincluded in our Consolidated
Financial Statements for the post-acquisition period from October4, 2002 through December31, 2002.

The purchase pricereflects theissuance of approximately 23,825,000 shares of our common stock to PayPal stockholders using a fixed
exchange ratio of 0.39 shares of our common stock for each PayPal share of common stock outstanding on October3, 2002. In addition, we
assumed PayPal’ s outstanding stock options. The fair value of the shares of our common stock issued and PayPal options assumed isbased on a
per share value of $57.92, which isequal to our weighted average closing share pricefor thefive trading dayssurrounding the July8, 2002
acquisition announcement date. Total purchase priceis comprised of the following (in thousands):

Fair value of eBay common stock issued $ 1,379,944
Fair value of PayPal stock options assumed by eBay 96,560
Estimated acquisition related costs 16,000

Aggregate purchase price $ 1,492,504

The acquisition related costs consist primarily of investment banking fees, legal and accounting fees, printing costs, and other direct costs of
the acquisition.

Theintrinsic value of PayPal’ s unvested common stock options and restricted stock subject to repurchase assumed in the merger totaled $9.9
million as of October3, 2002 and wasrecorded as unearned stock-based compensation. For purposes of purchase price allocation, PayPal’s
outstanding options that vested solely as aresult of the proposed merger weredeemed to be vested as of the October3, 2002 acquisition date.
The unearned stock-based compensation relating to the unvested options and therestricted stock subject to repurchase will be amortized on an
accelerated basis over the remaining vesting period of less than one year to three years, consistent withthe graded vesting approach described
in FASB Interpretation No.28.

In connection with the acquisition of PayPal, managementis in the process of formalizing an integration planto exit certain activities of both
eBay and PayPal. Preliminary plansinclude the elimination of redundant contracts, phase-out of eBay Payments by BillPoint, discontinuance of
PayPal’ s online gambling payment processing and other effortsaimed at achieving operational synergies. We expect to finalize the adoption of
aformal integration plan after our assessment is complete, likely in the second
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quarter of 2003. During the fourth quarter of 2002, we discontinued PayPal’ s online gaming payment processing. During theyear ended
December31, 2002, revenues generated from PayPal’ s online gambling payment processing, including revenues generated prior to our
acquisition of PayPal on October3, 2002, represented 6% of PayPal’ s total revenues for 2002. Included inthe PayPal purchaseprice allocation
as of December31, 2002 is $38.5million of acquisition related accrued expenses related primarily to the elimination of redundant contracts.
Additional costs related to theintegration planwill be accounted for as charges to our income statement or adjustment to the purchase price
allocation in accordance with SFASN0.146, “ Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities’ and EITF Issue Number 95-3,
“Recognition of Liabilities in Connection with a Business Combination.”

Acquisition of Remaining Equity Interest in eBay Australia New Zealand Pty Ltd.

In October 2002, we acquired the remaining 50% interest in our eBay Australia New Zealand joint venture held by ecorp Limitedin a
purchase acquisition for approximately $65.5million in cash. This acquisition increased our ownership of thisentity to 100%. The results of
operations of eBay Australia and New Zealand have been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements since October 2002.

Sale of Butterfields, Kruse and Certain Real Estate Properties

During 2002 we sold our Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries as well as several real estate properties we acquired asaresult of our 1999
acquisition of Butterfields. During the year ended December31, 2002, we recognized an aggregate gain of $17.1million, whichis reported in
other income.

Pro forma financial information
The following unaudited pro formafinancial information presents the combined results of eBay, Internet Auction, iBazar, and PayPal asif the

acquisitions had occurred as of the beginning of 2001 and 2002, respectively, after applying certain adjustments, including amortization of
goodwill and other acquisition related transactions (in thousands except per share amounts):

Year ended
December 31,
2001 2002
(unaudited)
Net revenues $ 857,290 $ 1,377,771
Net income (l0ss) $ (62007) $ 231,316
Net income (loss)per share:
Basic $ 021) % 0.76
Diluted $ 021) % 0.74

The pro formafinancial information does not necessarily reflect theresults of operations that would have occurred had eBay, Internet Auction,
iBazar, and PayPal constituted a consolidated entity during such periods. See “Notel— The Company and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies, Recent Accounting Pronouncements.”
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Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill information for each reportable segment is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, Goodwill Goodwill December 31,
2001 Acquired Disposed of Adjustments 2002
Segments:
u.s. $ 14,915 $ 107,810 $ (3241) $ (83%B) % 118,649
International 172,914 93,005 — 28,842 294,761
Payments — 1,061,867 — — 1,061,867
$ 187,829 $ 1,262,682 $ (3241) $ 28,007 $ 1,475,277

Theincrease in goodwill during the year ended December31, 2002, resulted from business acquisitions and fromforeign currency trandation
adjustments relating to goodwill associated with prior period acquisitions, partially offset by the disposal of goodwill in connection with the
sale of our Butterfields and Kruse subsidiaries. Goodwill of $1.1billion resulted from our acquisition of PayPal, $62.3million resulted from our
acquisition of the remaining 50% interest in eBay Australia and New Zealand, $35.8million resulted from our acquisition of theremaining 35%
minority interest in Billpoint, $19.3million resulted from our acquisition of a 38% interest in EachNet, and $9.8million resulted from our
acquisition of NeoCom. Foreign currency trandlation adjustments are included in the adjustments column.

We account for our investment in EachNet using the equity method of accounting and thetotal investment, including identifiableintangible
assets, deferred tax liabilities and goodwill, is classified on our balance sheet as along-terminvestment. As of December31, 2002, the goodwill
related to our acquisition of EachNet totaled $19.3million.

The following table summarizes the pro formaimpact of excluding goodwill amortization from our operating results (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2000 December 31, 2001
Net income as reported $ 48294 $ 90,448
Add: Goodwill amortization expense 620 32,586
Net income, pro forma $ 48914 $ 123,034
Basic net income per share:
As reported $ 0.19 $ 0.34
Pro forma $ 0.19 $ 0.46
Diluted net income per share:
As reported $ 0.17 $ 0.32
Pro forma $ 0.17 $ 0.44
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The components of acquired identifiable intangible assets are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,2001 December 31, 2002
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets:
Developed $ 9076 $ (3643) $ 5433 $ 27825 $ (8353) $ 19472
technologies
Customer lists 6,525 (2,306 ) 4,219 208,811 (10,723 ) 198,088
Trademarks 1,390 (350 ) 1,040 65,140 (3,235) 61,905
All other 973 (855 ) 118 733 (733) —
$ 17,94 $ (7154) $ 10810 $ 302,509 $ (23044) $ 279,465

All of our acquired identifiable intangible assets are subject to amortization. Acquired identifiableintangible assetsare comprised of developed
technol ogies, customer lists, trademarks, and other acquired intangible assets including contractual agreements. Developed technologies are
being amortized over a weighted average period of approximately three years. Customer lists are being amortized over a weighted average
period of approximately seven years. Trademarks are being amortized over a weighted average period of approximately seven years. No
significant residua valueis estimated for the intangible assets. Aggregate amortization expense for intangible assets totaled $4.0million and
$16.3million for theyears ended December31, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Asof December31, 2002, expected future intangible asset amortization expenseis asfollows (in thousands):

Fisca Years:
2003 $ 47555
2004 47,052
2005 43,844
2006 38,297
2007 37,212
Thereafter 65,505

$ 279,465

Note 4—Segment I nfor mation:

Segment selectionis based upon our internal organization structure, the manner in which our operations are managed, the measurement of the
performance of our operations evaluated by managementin the chief operating decision-maker capacity, the availability of separate financial
information, and overall materiality considerations.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, the growth of our international operations and our acquisition of PayPa prompted us to changethe basisfor
measuring our financial performance and evaluating resource allocations, andtherefore our reportable segments. We changed our business
segments from Online and Offline services to U.S,, International, and Paymentsoperations. This new segment structure reflects the new
composition of our business. Additionally, we changed theinternal measurement basis of segment performance from operating income before
certain itemsto adirect contribution measure of profitability.
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Direct contribution consists of revenues lessdirect costs. Direct costsinclude specific costs of net revenues, salesand marketing expenses, and
general and administrative expenses over which segment managers have direct discretionary control, such asadvertising and marketing
programs, customer support expenses, bank charges, provisions for doubtful accounts, authorized credits and transaction losses. Expenses over
which segment managersdo not have discretionary control, such assite operations costs, product development expenses, and general and
administrative costs, are monitored by management through shared cost centers and are not evaluated in the measurement of segment
performance.

The U.S. segment comprises U.S. online trading platforms other than PayPal and Billpoint. The International segment comprisesour
international online trading platforms. The Payments segment comprises our global payments platform consisting of our PayPal and Billpoint
subsidiaries. The Payments amounts reflect Billpoint’s historical operations and PayPal’ s operations for the post-acquisition period from
October4, 2002 through December31, 2002. We have previously announced that we intend to discontinue Billpoint’s operations in thefirst half
of 2003. Billpoint’s operations will continue to be reflected in the Payments segment results until the wind-down of Billpoint’s operations.

The followingtables illustrate thefinancial performance of our new reporting segments. Additionally, we have presented our current period
financial performance on areporting segment basis consistent with our old reporting segments for purposes of comparison during this transition
period (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2000

u.s. International Payments Consolidated

Net revenues from external customers $ 397,407 $ 28978 $ 5,039 $ 431,424

Direct costs 179,635 21,747 4,044 205,426

Direct contribution 217,772 7,231 995 225,998

Operating expenses and indirect costs of sales 191,004

Income from operations 34,994

Interest and other incomeand expense, net 46,337
Interest expense (3,374)

Impairment of certain equity investments —

Income before income taxesand minority interest $ 77,957

December 31, 2000
us. International Payments Consolidated
Total assets $ 1,122,014 $ 22,762 $ 37,627 $ 1,182,403
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Year Ended December 31,2001

us International Payments Consolidated
Net revenues from external customers $ 617,011 $ 114,162 $ 17,648 $ 748,821
Direct costs 246,664 63,964 18,640 329,268
Direct contribution 370,347 50,198 (992) 419,553
Operating expenses and indirect costs of sales 279,127
Income from operations 140,426
Interest and other incomeand expense, net 41,613
Interest expense (2,851)
Impairment of certain equity investments (16,245 )
Income before income taxesand minority $ 162,943
interest
December 31, 2001
u.s. International Payments Consolidated
Total assets $ 1,321,347 $ 322561 $ 34,621 $ 1,678,529
Year Ended December 31, 2002
us. International Payments Consolidated
Net revenues from external customers $ 816,596 $ 302,136 $ 95368 $ 1,214,100
Direct costs 300,659 123,784 68,107 492,550
Direct contribution 515,937 178,352 27,261 721,550
Operating expenses and indirect costs of 367,353
sales
Income from 354,197
operations
Interest and other incomeand expense, net 49,209
Interest expense (1,492 )
Impairment of certain equity investments (3,781)
Income before income taxesand minority $ 398,133
interest
December 31, 2002
u.s. International Payments Consolidated
Total assets $ 1,858,235 $ 583,252 $ 1,682,957 $ 4,124,444
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ThreeMonths Ended March 31,

2001 2002
us Inter national Payments Consolidated us International Payments
(Unaudited)
133,636 $ 17,904 $ 2,550 $ 154,090 $ 187,768 $ 52551 $ 4787
55,479 11,774 3,003 70,256 69,153 23,954 5,413
78,157 6,130 (453) 83,834 118,615 28,597 (626 )
53,124
30,705
14,978
(7112)
(9,921 )
$ 35050
March 31,2001 March 31, 2002
International Payments Consolidated us. International Payments
$ 198,426 $ 37,305 $ 1,257,029 $ 1391311 $ 361,956 $ 35747
ThreeMonths Ended June30,
2001 2002
us. International Payments Consolidated us. International Payments
(Unaudited)
$ 25936 $ 4,208 $ 180,905 $ 197,260 $ 64,309 $ 4,718
59,938 13,706 4,450 78,094 68,697 29,632 6,149
90,823 12,230 (242) 102,811 128,563 34,677 (1,431 )
67,357
35,454
10,147
(959 )
$ 44642
June 30, 2001 June 30, 2002
International Payments Consolidated us. International Payments
$ 323,222 $ 35874 $ 1,475,657 $ 1,500,313 $ 436,709 $ 33001
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98,520
146,586

75,870
70,716
7,387

(685 )
(1,181 )

$ 76,237

Consolidated
1,789,014

Consolidated

$ 266,287

104,478
161,809
82,368

79,441
9,001

(698 )

$ 87,744

Consolidated
1,970,023
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Net revenues from external $
customers

Direct costs
Direct contribution

Operating expenses and
indirect costs of sales
Income from
operations
Interest and other incomeand
expense, net
Interest expense

Impairment of certain equity
investments

Income before income taxes
and minorityinterest

u.s.
Total $ 1,184,883
assets
Net revenues from external $
customers
Direct costs

Direct contribution

Operating expenses and

indirect costs of sales
Income from
operations

Interest and other incomeand

expense, net

Interest expense

Impairment of certain equity

investments

Income before income taxes

and minorityinterest

us.

Total $ 1,321,347
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2001
us International Payments
159,014 $ 30,231 $ 5180
63,832 16,662 5,198
95,182 13,569 (18 )
September 30, 2001
Inter national Payments
$ 327,321 $ 36403 $
2001
us International Payments
173,600 $ 40,091 $ 5710
67,415 21,822 5,990
106,185 18,269 (280 )
December 31, 2001
International Payments
$ 322,561 $ 34621 $

L ! —

2002
Consolidated us. Inter national Payments Consolidated
(Unaudited)
$ 194,425 $ 206,491 $ 76,194 $ 6,094 $ 288,779
85,692 76,284 31,754 7,222 115,260
108,733 130,207 44,440 (1,128 ) 173,519
76,084 83,402
32,649 90,117
9,302 8,729
(458 ) (50
(6,324 ) (2,600
$ 35,169 $ 96,196
September 30, 2002
Consolidated us. International Payments Consolidated
1,548,607 $ 1,581,387 $ 467,782 $ 31,3% $ 2,080,565
ThreeMonths Ended December 31,
2002
Consolidated us International Payments Consolidated
(Unaudited)
$ 219,401 $ 225,078 $ 109,082 $ 79,768 $ 413,928
95,227 86,526 38,444 49,323 174,293
124,174 138,552 70,638 30,445 239,635
82,556 125,712
41,618 113,923
7,186 24,092
(722) (59
$ 48,082 $ 137,956
December 31, 2002
Consolidated us. International Payments Consolidated
1,678,529 $ 1,858,235 $ 583252 $ 1,682,957 $ 4,124,444
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Net revenues from external customers

Operating income (loss), asadjusted

Interest and other income and expense, net
Interest expense

Impairment of certain equity investments
Amortization of certain non-cash items

Income before incometaxes and minority interest

Online

Total assets $ 1,084,909

Net revenues from external customers

Operating income (loss), asadjusted

Interest and other income and expense, net
Interest expense

Impairment of certain equity investments
Amortization of certain non-cash items

Income before incometaxes and minority interest

Online
Total assets $ 1588913

Net revenues from external customers $
Operating income (loss), asadjusted $
Interest and other income and expense, net
Interest expense
Impairment of certain equity investments
Amortization of certain non-cash items
Income before incometaxes and minority $
interest

Online

—

— Faalfdalia

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Online Offline
$ 391,952 $ 39472 $
$ 49,767 $ (2312) $
45,642 695
(1,071) (2,303 )
(11,464 ) (997 )
$ 82874 $  (4917) $
December 31, 2000
Offline Consolidated
$ 97,494 $ 1,182,403
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Online Offline
$ 714,405 $ 34,416 $
$ 185298 $ (2759) $
42,208 (595 )
(1,686 ) (1,165 )
(16,245 ) —
(41,772) (341 )
$ 167,803 $ (4,860) $
December 31, 2001
Offline Consolidated
$ 89,616 $ 1,678,529
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Online Offline
1,192,296 $ 21,804 $
384,065 $ (4,158) $
38,977 10,232
(18) (1,474 )
(3,781) —
(25,670 ) (40 )
393,573 $ 4,560 $
December 31, 2002
Offline Consolidated
2003. EDGAR Online, Inc.

The followingtables illustrate thefinancial performance of our old reporting segments for purposes of comparison during thistransition period
(in thousands):

Consolidated

431,424
47,455
46,337
(3374 )

(12,461 )
77,957

Consolidated

748,821
182,539
41,613
(2,851 )
(16,245 )
(42,113 )
162,943

Consolidated
1,214,100
379,907
49,209
(1,492 )
(3,781)
(25,710 )
398,133



Total assets $ 4,079,992 $ 44452 $ 4124444

119

meres o SO irssss 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

eBay Inc.

NOTESTO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
United States net revenues $ 402,446 $ 634,659 $ 897,701
International net revenues 28,978 114,162 316,399
Net revenues $ 431,424 $ 748,821 $ 1,214,100
December 31,
2001 2002

United States long-lived assets $ 149,131 $ 1,648,753
International long-lived assets 191,857 304,765
Total long-lived assets $ 340988 $ 1953518

Note 5— Investments.

At December31, 2001 and 2002, short and long-term investments were classified as available-for-sale securities, except for restricted cash and
investments, and are reported at fair value as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2001

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
Short-term investments:
Municipal bonds and notes $ 149,446 $ 724 $ (2) $ 150,168
Government securities 10,700 — (2) 10,698
Time deposits and other 38,584 — — 38,584
Total $ 198,730 $ 724 $ @) $ 199,450
Long-term investments:
Restricted cash and investments  $ 129,181 $ 433 $ — $ 129,614
Municipal bonds and notes 8,148 25 (2) 8,171
Government securities 251,132 1,258 (268 ) 252,122
Equity instruments 26,557 148 — 26,705
Tota $ 415,018 $ 1,864 $ (270) $ 416,612
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December 31, 2002

Gross Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains L osses Value
Short-term investments:
Municipal bonds and notes $ 46,158 $ 157 $ — $ 46,315
Government securities — — — —
Time deposits and other 43,299 152 (76 ) 43,375
Tota $ 89457 $ 309 $ (76) $ 89,690
Long-term investments:
Redtricted cash and investments $ 133,541 $ 1,103 $ — $ 134,644
Municipal bonds and notes 388,535 2,320 — 390,855
Government securities 35,232 281 (291) 35,222
Equity instruments 44,150 — — 44,150
Tota $ 601,458 $ 3,704 $ (291) $ 604,871

The estimated fair value of short and long-terminvestments classified by date of contractual maturity at December31, 2002 are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31,
2002

Due within one year or less $ 89,690
Due after one year through two years 221,683
Due after two years through three years 179,272
Due after three years through four years 25,412
Restricted cash and investments expiring in less than five years 134,644
Equity investments 43,860
$ 694,561

During the year ended December31, 2001, we recorded impairment charges totaling $16.2million relating primarily to the impairment in the
fair value of certain private equity investments. We recorded impairment charges for these investments based upon the deterioration of the

financial condition of certain investees and based upon financing obtained by certain other investees at a valuation below whichwe made our
investment.

During the year ended December31, 2002, we recorded impairment charges totaling $3.8million relating to theimpairment in thefair value of
certain equity investments. We recorded an approximately $640,000 impairment charge for an equity investment in a public company based
upon a significant declinein the market value of our investment during 2002, which we determined to be other than temporary. We recorded
$3.2million in impairment charges for certain private equity investmentsbased upon the deterioration of the financial condition of certain
investees and as aresult of financing obtained by certain other investeesat a valuation below which we made our investment.
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Note 6—Derivative | nstruments:

We entered into two interest rate swaps on Junel9, 2000 and July20, 2000, with notional amounts of $45million and $50million respectively,
that allow eBay to receive floating rate receipts based on London Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, in exchange for making fixed rate
payments of approximately 7% of the notional amount. These interest rate swapseffectively change theinterest rate exposure on a portion of
the operating lease payments relatingto eBay’ s corporate office facilitiesfrom afloating rate to afixed rate. The fair value of the interest rate
swaps asof December31, 2002 was an unrealized loss of $10.9million and isrecorded in accumulated other comprehensiveloss on the balance
sheet.

On Januaryl, 2001, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.133, as amended, and the cumulative effect of thischange in
accounting method relating to the interest rate swaps was animmaterial gain on netincome and an unrealized loss, net of tax, of approximately
$2.6million on other comprehensive income. During the year ended December31, 2002, the derivative losses reclassified into rent expense were
offset by decreases in rent expense relating to the operating lease. At December31, 2002, we expect to reclassify $3.5million of losses, net of
tax, on theinterest rate swaps from accumulated other comprehensive income to rent expense during the next twelve months.

Asof December3l, 2002, we had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts with notional values equivalent to approximately $69million
with maturity dates within 92days. The forward contracts are used asto offset changesin the value of assetsand liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies asaresult of currency fluctuations. Transaction gains and losses on the contracts and the assets and liabilities are recognized
each period in our statement of income and generally are offsetting. Asof December31, 2002, the fair values of theforward contracts were
immaterial.

Note 7—Balance Sheet Components:

December 31,
2001 2002
(inthousands)
Accounts receivable, net:
Accounts receivable $ 130,727 $ 162,155
Allowancefor doubtful accounts (26,451 ) (27,731 )
Allowancefor authorized credits (2,573) (2,971)

$ 101,703 $ 131453

Write-offsagainst the allowancefor doubtful accounts and authorized credits were $12.5million, $10.3million, and $23.8million in the years
ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

December 31,
2001 2002
(in thousands)
Other current assets:

Prepaid expenses $ 27,735 $ 32,315
Restricted cash and investments, current 5,739 21,448
Deferred tax asset, current 13,615 16,030
Other 11,594 27,195

$ 58,683 $ 96,988
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December 31,
2001 2002
(in thousands)
Property and equipment, net:
Computer equipment and software $ 163,137 $ 266,589
Land and buildings, including building 60,725 31,926
improvements
Aviation equipment — 30,473
Leasehold improvements 12,348 18,916
Furniture and fixtures 15,891 19,345
Vehicles and other 11,930 12,540
264,031 379,789
Accumulated depreciation (121,682 ) (161,761 )

$ 142,349 $ 218,028

During the years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, we capitalized $9.4million, $6.7million and $15.5million, respectively, for

site-related software and development costs. Total depreciation expensewas $36.7million in 2000, $41.8million in 2001, and $60.7million in
2002.

December 31,
2001 2002
(in thousands)
Accrued expenses:

Acquisition related accrued expenses $ — $ 40475
Compensation and related benefits 17,867 27,687
Advertising 14,028 32,420
Contractors and consultants 9,570 12,617
Professional fees 7,732 10,242
Other current liabilities 45,396 75,882

$ 94,593 $ 199,323
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Note 8—Debt:

Notes and capital leases payable

Notesand capital leases payable are as follows:

December 31,
2001 2002

(in thousands)
Mortgage notes, prime plus 1%, due September30, 2002 $ 1,581 $ —
Mortgage notes, LIBOR plus 1.75%, due January15, 2002 3,271 —
Mortgage notes, 8.175%, due February15, 2002 11,731 —
Mortgage notes, 8.175% variable, due Augustl, 2023 9,300 9,300
Loan on foreclosed property, primeplus 2%, due August9, 2015 489 —
Capital leases 1,747 8,644
Subtotal 28,119 17,944

Less: Current portion (16,111 ) (4,145)

Long-term portion $ 12,008 $ 13,799

Notes payable consists of a $9.3million mortgage note payableto afinancial institution collateralized by commercial real estate property. The
mortgage note payable carries a variable interest rate, which was 8.175% at December31, 2002 and is due in 2023. Capital leases consist of

various leases that totaled $8.6million at December31, 2002. During 2002, we reduced our notes payable obligations in connection with the sale
of several properties underlying the notes payable.

Minimumannual repayments on thenote and capital leases at December31, 2002, are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending

December 31, Total
2003 $ 4,145
2004 2,513
2005 1,478
2006 616
2007 —
Thereafter 9,192

$ 17,944

We also maintain a credit facility with $14.4million available for equipment purchases and $23.2million available for standby letters of credit
with afinancial institution. The credit facility is due August6, 2005. No amounts were outstanding at December31, 2002.

Note 9— Operating L ease Arrangements:

OnMarchl, 2000, we entered into a five-year lease for genera officefacilities located in San Jose, California. Thisfive-year leaseis
commonly referred to as a synthetic lease because it representsa form of off-balance sheet financing under which an unrelated third-party funds
100% of the costs of theacquisition of the property and leases the asset to us as lessee. Under our lease structure, upon termination or
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expiration, at our option, we must either purchase the property from thelessor for a predetermined amount or sell thereal property to a
third-party. Our San Jose lease consists of approximately 460,000 square feet of office space. Asof December31, 2002, we occupied
approximately 314,000 square feet of thistotal office spacefor our online businesses and subleased additional spacein thefacility to third
parties.

Paymentsunder our lease are based on the $126.4million cost of the property funded by thethird-party and are adjusted asthe London
Interbank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, fluctuates. Under the terms of the lease agreement, the lease terminates on Marchl, 2005, unless extended
to Septemberl, 2006. At any time prior to thefina 12monthsof the lease term, we may, at our option, purchase the property for approximately
$126.4million. If we elect not to purchase the property, we will undertake to sell the facility to one or morethird parties and have guaranteed to
the lessor aresidual value equal to approximately 88% of the $126.4million cost of this property. Our maximum exposureto lossistheentire
amount of $126.4million if we default on any of certain lease obligations and financial covenants. If thispayment is made, wewould then
receivetitle to the property. At December31, 2002, we had not made a decision with respect to the option we will pursue at the end of thelease
term. Management believes that the contingent liability relating to the residual value guarantee will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations.

Inaddition, we are required to place $126.4million of cash and investment securities as collateral for theterm of thelease andto maintain
certain financial covenants. The cash and investment securities are restricted as to their withdrawal fromathird-party trustee and are classified
as long-term restricted cash and investments on our balance sheet. In the event of a default under thelease, the collateral could be used to pay
the purchase price of the property and thelease would be terminated. At December31, 2002, we were in compliance with our financial
covenants under the lease.

If our lease were terminated, and we became obligated to pay the purchase price of the land and buildings, we would show the cost as an asset
on our balance sheet and our restricted cash and investments position would be reduced by the amount of the purchase price. Currently, we
reflect rent payments as operating expenses on our statement of income. In the event we were required to purchase the land and buildings, our
rent expense would cease and we would subsequently record depreciation expense for the buildings over their estimated useful lives as
operating expenses.

We entered into two interest rate swaps on Junel9, 2000 and July20, 2000 to reduce the impact of changesin interest rates on a portion of the
floating rate operating lease for our facilities. See“Note 6 — Derivative Instruments.”

InJanuary 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46, “ Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Thisinterpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” addresses consolidation by business enterprisesof certain variableinterest entitieswhere thereis
acontrolling financia interest in a variable interest entity or where thevariable interest entity does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance
its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. This interpretation applies immediately to variable interest
entities created after January31, 2003 and applies in thefirst year or interim period beginning after Junel5, 2003 to variableinterest entitiesin
which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before Februaryl, 2003. We expect that the adoption of FIN 46 will require usto
include our San Jose facilitieslease arrangement and potentially certain investments in our Consolidated Financial Statements effective Julyl,
2003. In connection with our San Jose facilities lease arrangement, our balance sheet following the July1, 2003 adoption of FIN 46 will reflect
changesto record assets of $126.4million, liabilities of $122.5million and non-controlling interests of $3.9million. In addition, our
post-adoption income statement will reflect the reclassification of rent expense payments from operating expensesto interest expense as well as
the recognition of depreciation expense, within operating expenses, for our useof the buildings. We estimate that the income statement impact
of consolidating our San Jose facilities lease will consist of a charge against earnings, net
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of taxes, of $5.6million upon the adoption of FIN 46 on July1, 2003. This charge will reflect the accumul ated depreciation charges that would
have been recorded in previous periods had consolidation of the San Jose facilities been required. We also expect the accounting changeto
result in a one-cent decrease in net income per basic share in 2001 and 2002 and have no impact on diluted earnings per share.

Our U.S. segment occupies approximately 434,000 squarefeet of commercial office space in the United States. We occupy 314,000 square
feet of commercia office space in San Jose, California under theterms of our synthetic lease for our corporate headquarters. We own and
occupy approximately 72,000 square feet of commercial office space in Salt Lake City, Utah for our domestic customer support center. We
lease and occupy anadditional 48,000 square feet of commercial office space in various domestic locationsfor the operations of certain
U.S.subsidiaries.

Our International segment |eases approximately 210,000 square feet of commercial office space in 12 countries for our international
operations, including the operations of our South Korean majority-owned subsidiary.

Our Payments segment |eases approximately 126,000 square feet of commercia office space in the United States and the United Kingdom. In
addition, our Paymentssegment owns approximately 22 acres of land near Omaha, Nebraska, on which a 115,000 square foot facility isunder
construction. Upon completion, thisfacility will housethe primary customer service operations center for our Payments segment.

We also have lease obligations under certain other non-cancelable operating leases. Future minimumrental payments under all non-cancelable
operating leases, exclusive of theresidual value guarantee on our general office facilities located in San Jose, California, at December31, 2002,
are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending Operating
December 31, L eases
2003 $ 16,410
2004 17,056
2005 9,630
2006 7,568
2007 6,108
Thereafter 19,909
Total minimum lease payments $ 76,681

Leaseobligations related to our general officefacilities in San Jose, California are estimated based on market interest rates (LIBOR)at
December31, 2002, adjusted to reflect the two interest rate swapsand certain collateral assumptions. Rent expensein the years ended
December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, totaled $4.8million, $5.7million, and $3.6million, respectively.

Note 10— Purchase and Sale of Properties or Property Interests:

Fromtimeto time and in theordinary course of business, weelect to sell properties previously held for lease, or purchase properties or
property interests for future rental. In March 2001, our Butterfields subsidiary sold its Chicago property for approximately $4.5million in cash
and recognized a gain of $189,000. During 2002, we sold nine properties related to our Butterfields subsidiary for approximately $21.8million
in cash and recognized gains of $10.6million.
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Note 11— Commitmentsand Contingencies:

Litigation

On April25, 2001, our European subsidiaries, eBay GmbH and eBay International AG, were sued by MontresRolex S.A. and certain Rolex
affiliates, or Rolex, in theregional court of Cologne, Germany. The suit subsequently was transferred to the regional court in Dusseldorf,
Germany. Rolex alleged that our subsidiaries were infringing Rolex’ strademarks asa result of users selling counterfeit Rolex watchesthrough
our German website. The suit also alleges unfair competition. Rolex sought an order forbidding the sale of Rolex watches on the website aswell
as damages. In December 2002, atrial was held in the matter and the court ruled in favor of eBay on al causes of action. Rolex has appealed
the ruling, but the appeal hasnot yet been briefed or heard.

On September26, 2001, a complaint was filed by MercExchange LLC against us, our Half.com subsidiary and ReturnBuy, Inc. in the Eastern
District of Virginia (No.2:01-CV-736) aleging infringement of three patents (relating to online auction technology, multiple database searching
and electronic consignment systems) and seeking a permanent injunction and damages (including treble damages for willful infringement). We
answered the complaint, denying theallegations. In April 2002, we filed four motions for summary judgment relating to thethree patents in suit.
The court denied three of those motions and deferred ruling on thefourth motion. A “Markman” hearing washeld in July 2002 to define certain
disputed terms in the patents, and in October 2002 the court issued its claim construction findings. In October 2002, the court gave usleave to
amend our answer to include a claim that MercExchange committed fraud on the patent office during the prosecution of one of the patents. On
the samedate, the court granted in part our pending summary judgment motion, effectively invalidating the patent related to online auction
technology and rendering it unenforceable. In November 2002, we filed two additional summary judgment motions regarding the patents. One
motion wasdenied as moot; the other wasdenied because the court found there were triable issues of fact. In February 2003, wefiled an
additional summary judgment motion, which is still pending. Only two patentsremain in the case at thistime. Trial is scheduled for April22,
2003. We believe we have meritorious defenses and will defend ourselves vigorously. However, even if successful, our defense against this
action will be costly and could divert our management’ stime. If the plaintiff were to prevail onany of itsclaims, we might be forced to pay
significant damages and licensing fees, modify our business practices or even be enjoined from conducting a significant part of our
U.S.business. Any suchresults could materially harm our business. We are unable to determine what potential losseswe may incur if this
lawsuit were to have an unfavorable outcome.

On September6, 2002, a complaint was filed by First USA Bank, N.A. against PayPal in theDistrict of Delaware (N0.02-CV-1462) alleging
infringement of two patents relating to assigning an alias to a credit card so as to eliminate the need for the physical presence of the card ina
transaction and seeking a permanent injunction and damages. PayPal believes it has meritorious defenses and intends to defend itself
vigorously. However, even if successful, our defense against this action will be costly and could divert management’ stime. If the plaintiff were
to prevail onits claims, PayPal might be forced to pay significant damages and licensing fees or modify its business practices. Any such result
could materially harm our business. We are unable to determine what potential losses we may incur if this suit were to have anunfavorable
outcome.

On August16, 2002, Charles E. Hill Associates, Inc., or Hill, filed alawsuit inthe U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas (No.
2:02-CV-186) aleging that we and 17 other companies, primarily large retailers, infringed three patents owned by Hill generaly relating to
electronic catalog systems and methods for transmitting and updating data at a remote computer. The suit seeks aninjunction against continuing
infringement, unspecified damages, including treble damages for willful infringement, and interest, costs, expenses and fees. In January 2003,
the court granted the collective
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defendants' motionto transfer the case from the court where it was filed in Marshall, Texasto the Federal District Court for the Southern
Digtrict of Indiana. We believe that we have meritorious defensesand intend to defend ourselves vigorously.

On February20, 2002, PayPal wassued in California state court in a purported class action alleging that its restriction of customer accounts and
failureto promptly unrestrict legitimate accounts violates state consumer protection law and is an unfair business practice and a breach of
PayPal’s User Agreement. This action wasrefiled with a different named plaintiff on June6, 2002, and arelated action wasfiled in the
U.S.District Court for the Northern District of Californiaon the same day. On March12, 2002, PayPal wassued in the U.S.District Court for the
Northern District of Californiain a purported class action alleging that its restrictions of customer accounts and failureto promptly unrestrict
legitimate accounts violates federal and state consumer protection and unfair business practice law. The court has denied PayPal’ s motion to
compel individual arbitration asrequired by the PayPal User Agreement and has invalidated that provision of the User Agreement. The two
federal court actions have been consolidated into asingle case. PayPal is defending itself vigorously, but if it isunable to prevail in these
lawsuits, it may have to change itsanti-fraud operations in a manner that will harm its business and pay substantial damages. Evenif its defense
is successful, thelitigation could damage PayPal’ s reputation, could require significant management time, will be costly and could require
changesto its customer service and operations that could increase its costs and decrease the effectiveness of its anti-fraud program.

Threepurported class action complaints werefiled following announcement of the PayPal merger in July 2002 in the court of Chancery in the
State of Delaware in and for New Castle County by alleged stockholdersof PayPal. Two additional purported class action complaints were filed
inthe Superior Court of the State of California, County of Santa Clara, by aleged PayPal stockholders. These complaints name as defendants
PayPal and each member of itsboard of directors as well as eBay. The complaints are purported class actions that allege, among other things,
that eBay controlled PayPal prior to the execution of their merger agreement, the defendants breached fiduciary dutiesthey assertedly owed to
PayPal’ s stockholders in connection withPayPal entering into the merger agreement and the exchange ratio in themerger isunfair and
inadequate. The plaintiffs seek, among other things, anaward of unspecified compensatory damages. We believe that each of the lawsuitswas
without merit and intend to defend ourselves vigoroudly.

Other third parties have from time to time claimed, and others may claimin the future that we have infringed their past, current or future
intellectual property rights. We have in the past been forced to litigate such claims. We may become more vulnerableto such claimsas laws
such asthe Digital Millennium Copyright Act and Communications Decency Act areinterpreted by the courts and as weexpand into
jurisdictions wherethe underlying laws with respect to the potential liability of online intermediaries like ourselves is lessfavorable. We expect
that we will increasingly be subject to copyright and trademark infringement claims as the geographical reach of our services expands. We aso
expect that we will increasingly be subject to patent infringement claims as our services expand. In particular, we expect that patent
infringement claims involving various aspects of our Payments business will continue to be made. We have been notified of several potential
disputes and are subject to a suit by Tumbleweed Communications Corporation that is currently ongoing. These claims, whether meritorious or
not, could be time-consuming, result in costly litigation, cause service upgrade delays, require expensive changes in our methods of doing
business or could require usto enter into costly royalty or licensing agreements, if available. Asaresult, these claims could harm our business.

Capital Expenditures
InJune 2002, we entered into an agreement to purchase computer equipment, softwareand related servicesto expand our data warehousing

capabilities. Under the agreement we are obligated to pay a
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minimumof $16.0million to a third-party vendor during a 30-month period ending in December 2004. Minimum purchases under the
commitment total $7.2million during 2002, $4.5millionin 2003, and $4.3million in 2004. During the year ended December31, 2002, we
purchased $8.6million under this contract.

In December 2002, we entered into an agreement to purchase computer equipment, software and related servicesto further expand our data
warehousing capabilities. Under the agreement, we are obligated to pay a minimum of $20.0 million to a third-party vendor during 2003. The
commitment may be comprised of a maximum of $5.4million in services purchasesand the remainder must consist of equipment and software
purchases. The agreement automatically renews for additional one-year periods through 2005, if we do not cancel the agreement at the
conclusion of each year. In addition, thisvendor amended an existing promotions agreement and has agreed to pay us $5.0million in quarterly
paymentsfor promotion of their auctions on eBay.comin 2003 and to spend an additional $666,000 in joint promotions during the year. The
promotions agreement, as amended, can be renewed with the mutual agreement of both parties for additional one-year terms through 2005.
Equipment, software and services purchaseswill be expensed or capitalized in accordance with our capitalization policy. Promotions will be
recognized as transaction revenue over the period of delivery.

Advertising

AOL interactive marketing agreement

InApril 2002, we amended our Interactive Marketing Agreement with AOL Time Warner, Inc., or AOL. AOL attained certain performance
goals inthecontract year ending March23, 2003, and extended the amended agreement for anadditional year, through March23, 2004. Under
the termsof theamended agreement, we will pay AOL for its advertising serviceson a new user performance basis, up to a maximum of
$15million. We are recognizing these fees assales and marketing expense as such servicesare provided. From time to time, we have also
entered into incremental, discretionary purchases of advertising from AOL. Discretionary purchases totaled $1.4million during 2000,
$8.5million during 2001, and $7.6million during 2002.

Inthe event that AOL’s advertising services during theyear achieve certain specified performance goals, AOL has the right to extend the term
of theamended agreement through March23, 2005. Our financia obligation for this renewal year, if any, will a'so be determined on a new user
performance basis and will amount to a maximum of $10.0 million.

Disney marketing agreement

InFebruary 2000, we entered a four-year marketing agreement with The Walt Disney Company, or Disney, to provide uswith online and
offline advertising and promotions and develop a co-branded version of our online service. Subject to certain Disney performance obligations,
we were obligated to pay a minimum of $30million to Disney over thefour-year term of the agreement. In August 2001, we amended the terms
of theinitial agreement and agreed to purchase a minimum of $23.0million in online and offline promotions through September 2004. We also
committed to provide Disney with online advertising on the eBay.com website valued at $3.5million. Through December31, 2002, wehave
recognized $16.9million in sales and marketing expense associated withthe amended agreement.

Microsoft marketing and services agreements

During 2001, we entered into a series of marketing and services agreementswith Microsoft that obligate usto purchase online advertising
promotions, software and related servicesthrough September 2003, totaling $8 million. Inaddition, Microsoft has agreed to purchase online
advertising and other
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services fromus totaling $7million over athree-year period ending June 2004. Through December31, 2002, we have recognized $4.3million in
sales and marketing expenses for advertising services received, incurred $3.0 million for Microsoft software products used to support our
operations and recognized $5.4million in revenues for advertising servicesdelivered to Microsoft.

Note 12— Related Party Transactions:

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors, executive officersand certain other officers. These agreements
require usto indemnify such individuals, to the fullest extent permitted by Delawarelaw, for certain liabilities to which they may become
subject as aresult of their affiliation with us.

Commercial agreements

A member of our Board of Directorsand the Audit and Compensation Committees of our Board of Directors, is a general partner of certain
venture capital funds that beneficially hold in the aggregate a greater than 10% equity interest in severa public and private companies. We
engaged in thefollowing transactions with such companies:

In December 1999, we entered into an Internet marketing agreement with a privately held company that facilitates buying decisions for
consumers. Under this agreement, we paid fees approximating $4,000 in 2000, $503,000 in 2001, and nonein 2002 for the promotion of eBay.

InApril 2000, we entered into an advertising and promotions agreement with aprivately held company that provides a marketplace for live
advice. Under thisagreement, werecognized revenuesof approximately $4.1million in 2000, $1.0million in 2001, and $200,000 in 2002. In
1999, weinvested $2.0millionin capital stock of such company and received awarrantto purchaseadditional shares, whichif exercised would
bring our total ownershipto lessthan 5% of its capital stock.

InJuly 2000, we entered into an advertising and promotions agreement, which we subsequently amended in December 1999 and April 2000,
with a privately held company that provides areal estate solutionto home buyers and sellers. Under theterms of thisagreement, we recognized
revenues of approximately $1.3million in 2000, $441,000 in 2001, and none in 2002. The member of our Board of Directors mentioned above
isaso amember of such company’s Board of Directors. In 2000, we invested $3.0million in capital stock of such company and received a
warrant to purchase additional shares, which if exercised would bring our total ownership to less than 5% of its capital stock.

In February 2001, our wholly owned subsidiary Half.com, entered into a content licensing and inventory sales agreement with a company that
provides order management and fulfillment solutions. Under this agreement, such company agreed to list its inventory on Half.com’'s website
and to alow Half.comto usesuch company’s catalog datato supplement Half.com’s existing catalog data. Half.com paid such company
approximately $100,000 in 2001 and $25,000 in 2002 under this agreement.

Separately, amember of our Board of Directors isadirector and Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors of a
company with whom PayPal, in September 2000, prior to eBay’s acquisition of PayPal, entered into a strategic marketing agreement. PayPal
paid the company approximately $670,000 in 2002 under this agreement. The agreement was terminated in December 2002, and PayPd paid
the company an early termination fee of $1,348,000 in January 2003 in accordance with theterms of the agreement.

All contracts with related parties are at rates and termsthat we believe are comparable with those entered into withindependent third parties.
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Notes receivable from eBay executive officers

At December3l, 2001 and 2002, we held notes receivable from certain executive officers totaling $4.3million and $3.5million, respectively.
One note is a non-interest bearing note issued in connection with the relocation of one executive officer to San Jose, California, whilethe
remaining notes bear interest at rates of 4.94%, 6.37%, and 6.40% per year. Each note is collateralized by Deeds of Trust, which we hold. The
outstanding principal and interest are due and payable by 2005.

Note 13—Preferred Stock:

We are authorized, subject to limitations prescribed by Delaware law, to issue Preferred Stock in one or more series; to establish the number of
sharesincluded within each series; to fix the rights, preferences and privileges of the shares of each wholly unissued series and any related
qualifications, limitations or restrictions; and to increase or decrease the number of shares of any series (but not below the number of shares of a
series then outstanding) without any further vote or action by the stockholders. At December31, 2001 and 2002, there were 10million shares of
Preferred Stock authorized for issuance, and no sharesissued or outstanding.

Note 14—Common Stock:

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, authorizes us to issue 900 million shares of common stock. A portion of the shares outstanding
are subject to repurchase over afour-year period from the earlier of theissuance date or employee hire date, as applicable. At December31,
2001, there were 772,000 shares subject to repurchase rights at anaverage price of $0.36. At December31, 2002, there were 184,000 shares
subject to repurchase at anaverage price of $0.89.

At December31, 2002, we had reserved 22.2million shares of common stock available for future issuance under our stock option plansand
approximately 1.6million shares of common stock available for future issuance under the employee stock purchase plan.

In connection with certain stock option grants, we recorded unearned stock-based compensation totaling $187,000 during the year ended
December31, 2000, $4.1million in 2001, and $9.9million in 2002. The unearned compensation for 2000 isrelated to the acquisition of
Half.com and wasamortized fully over the vesting period in 2000. The unearned compensation for 2001 is related to the acquisition of Internet
Auction and is being amortized over the 3-year vesting period of the options, which ends in 2002. The unearned compensation for 2002 is
related to the acquisition of PayPal and isbeing amortized over the 3-year vesting period of the options, which ends in 2005. Amortization
expense totaled approximately $7.1million during the year ended December31, 2000, $3.1million in 2001, $6.0million in and 2002. The
unearned stock compensation balance at December31, 2002 was$5.3million and will be amortized over the remaining vesting period through
2005.

Note 15—Employee Benefit Plans:

Employee Sock Purchase Plan

We have an employee stock purchase plan for al eligible employees. Under the plan, shares of our common stock may be purchased over an
offering period witha maximum duration of two years at 85% of the lower of thefair market value on thefirst day of the applicable offering
period or on thelast day of the six-month purchase period. Employeesmay purchase shares having a value not exceeding 10% of their gross
compensation during an offering period. During the years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, employees purchased 438,000, 124,000
and 176,000shares at average prices of $8.43, $43.72 and $45.25 per share, respectively. At December3l, 2002, approximately 1.6million
shares were reserved for future issuance. On each Januaryl, the aggregate number of sharesreserved for issuance under the employee
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stock purchase plan will be increased automatically by the number of shares purchased under this plan in the preceding calendar year.

401(k) Savings Plan

We have a savings plan, which qualifies under Section401(k) of thelnternal Revenue Code. Participating employees may contribute up to 25%
of their annual salary, but not more than statutory limits. We contribute one dollar for each dollar a participant contributes, with a maximum
contribution of $1,500 per employee. Our matching contributions were $1.8million in 2000, $1.7million in 2001, and $2.3millionin 2002.

Sock option plans

We have stock option plansfor directors, officers and employees, under which we have made to date only nonqualified and incentive stock
option grants. These stock options generally vest 25% one year from the date of grant and the remainder vestsat arate of 2.08% per monthand
expire 10years from the date of grant. Stock options issued prior to June 1998, were exercisable immediately, subject to repurchase rights held
by us, which lapse over the vesting period. At December31, 2002, stock options for 22.2million shares were available for future grant.

The following table summarizes activity under our stock option plansfor the years ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 (shares in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of period 26,236 $ 29.73 26249 $ 3899 35,102 $ 46.24
Granted 9,037 62.69 19,621 46.87 16,866 53.42
Exercised (4,499 ) 6.23 (6,813) 17.26 (9,769) 26.16
Cancelled (4,525) 65.41 (3,955) 51.20 (5,023) 53.98
Outstanding at end of period 26,249 38.99 35,102 46.24 37,176 53.73
Options exercisable at end of period 7,006 27.73 10,465 41.67 13,124 52.58
Weighted average grant date fair value of options $ 4244 $ 2367 $ 2242
granted during period
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The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December31, 2002 (sharesin thousands):

Options Outstandingat
December 31, 2002

Weighted
Number of Average
Range of Shares Remaining
Exercise Prices Outstanding Contractual Life
$0.02-$40.06 9,606 7.7 years
$41.63-$55.23 6,458 8.7
$55.56-$58.05 6,992 9.3
$58.06-$65.24 6,587 85
$65.80-$84.81 6,306 7.6
$85.50-$116.31 1,227 6.8
37,176 8.3
Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
In-the-Money 8,755 $ 3948
Out-of-the-Money 4,318 79.05
Total optionsoutstanding 13,073 $ 5256

Options Exercisable at

December 31, 2002

Weighted
Average Number of
Exercise Shares
Price Exercisable
$ 29.48 4,119 $
51.67 1,300
57.52 890
61.57 2,017
72.25 3,761
95.52 986
$ 53.73 13,073 $
Unexer cisable
Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares
21,871 $ 5234 30,626
2,232 74.22 6,550
24,103 $ 54.36 37,176

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

19.03
47.96
57.93
61.77
73.49
95.06
52.56

Total
Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

$ 48.67
77.40
$ 53.73

In-the-money options are options with an exercise price lower than the $67.92 closing price of our common stock on December31, 2002.
Out-of -the-money options are options with an exercise price greater than the $67.92 closing price of our common stock on December31, 2002.

*

Grants during period as percent of outstanding shares

Total outstanding grants “in-the-money” as a percent of outstanding shares

Total outstanding grants asa percent of outstanding shares

Grants to named officersduring the period asa percent of total grants during the period*

Grants to named officersduring the period asa percent of total outstanding shares*

Total outstanding grants to named officers asa percent of total outstanding grants*

Total outstanding grants to named officers asa percent of total outstanding shares*

2000 2001
3% 7%

4% 1%
0
10% 1%
3
1% 1%
0
0% 1%

10% 1%
0
1% 1%

2002
5%
1%
0
1%
2
5%
0 %
9%

1%

Named officersare the chief executive officer and the other four most highly-compensated executive officers during the applicable year.
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Fair value disclosures

We calculated the fair value of each option grant on thedate of grant using the Black-Scholesoption pricing model. The following are the
assumptions used for each respective period:

Year Ended December 31

2000 2001 2002
Risk-free interest rates 6.3 % 4.4 % 3.0%
Expected lives (in years) 30 3.0 3.0
Dividend yield 0 % 0 % 0 %
Expected volatility 115 % 81 % 68 %

For options granted prior to ourinitial public offering, the fair value of option grants wasdetermined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with a zero volatility assumption. For options granted subsequent to our initial public offering, thefair valueof option grants was
determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with volatility assumptionsbased on actual or expected fluctuationsin the price of
our common stock.

Non-stockholder approved stock option grants

Prior to our initial public offering in 1998, our Board of Directors approved three stock option grants outside of formally approved stockholder
plans to two independent directors upon their joining our Board of Directors and to an executive officer upon his hiring. All of such option
grants vested over 25% one year from the date of grant, with theremainder vesting at arate of 2.08% per month thereafter and expire 10years
from thedate of grant. The options granted to the independent directors wereimmediately exercisable, subject to repurchase rights held by us,
which lapse over thevesting period. The terms and conditions of such grants are otherwise identical to nonqualified option grants made under
the stock option plan in effect at that time. At the time of such grants, members of our Board of Directors (and their affiliates) beneficially
owned in excess of 90% of our then outstanding voting interests. We have previously disclosed such option grants in our Prospectus filed with
the Securitiesand Exchange Commission on September25, 1998 in connection with our initial public offering under the headings
“Management— Director Compensation” and “Management— Compensation Arrangements.” Prior to 2002, one director had exercised all
options under such grant. During 2002, the executive officer exercised all optionsavailable to him in connection with his departure from the
Company. At December31, 2002, one grant remained outstanding to one independent director, with 780,000 sharesto be issued upon exercise
of theoutstanding options at an average exercise price of $1.56. There were no shares remaining available under these non-stockholder
approved plansfor future issuance as of December31, 2002.

Note 16—IncomeTaxes:

The components of income including minority interest in consolidated companies and equity interest in partnership income before income
taxes, for theyears ended December31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
United States $ 80872 $ 177,084 $ 266,152
International 147 (6,627 ) 129,685

$ 81,019 $ 170457 $ 395837
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The provision for income taxesis composed of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Current:
Federd $ 31,420 $ 70,552 $ 103,606
State and local 8,498 17,357 18,992
Foreign 280 3,540 10,062
40,198 91,449 132,660
Deferred:
Federal (5,887 ) (10,187 ) 8,091
State and local (1,586 ) (14,253) 5,195
(7,473 ) (11,440 ) 13,286

$ 32,725 $ 80,009 $ 145946

The followingis areconciliation of the difference between the actual provision for incometaxes and the provision computed by applying the
federal statutory rate of 35% for 2000, 2001, and 2002 to income before incometaxes (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Provision at statutory rate $ 28357 $ 59,660 $ 138,543
Permanent differences:
Foreign income taxed at different 2,876 (4,212) (5,406 )
rates
Acquisition related expenses 175 11,834 —
Stock-based compensation 125 — —
Subsidiary loss not benefited 665 5,807 1,052
Tax-exempt interest income (4,241) (3,737) (2,378 )
State taxes, net of federal benefit 4,493 10,468 15,722
Tax credits — — (2,021)
Other 275 189 434

$ 32,725 $ 80,009 $ 145,946

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for thefuture tax consequences of differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities andtheir respective tax bases using enacted tax rates
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in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Significant deferred tax assetsand liabilities consist of thefollowing (in
thousands):

December 31,
2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss and credits $ 129211 $ 207,276
Accruals and allowances 21,405 40,941
Depreciation and amortization 11,381 (5,708 )
Net unrealized losses 2,372 2,921
Net deferred tax assets 164,369 245,430
Valuation allowance (129,212 ) (145,182)

35,157 100,248

Deferred tax liabilities:
Acquisition-related intangibles (3,629 ) (111,843)
$ 31,528 $ (11,595)

Asof December31, 2002, our federal and state net operating loss carryforwards for incometax purposes were approximately $559.4million
and $133.1million, respectively. If not utilized, the federal net operating loss carryforwards will beginto expirein 2019, and the state net
operating loss carryforwards will begin to expirein 2006. The Company’sfederal and state research tax credit carryforwards for incometax
purposes are approximately $2.1million and $2.3million, respectively. If not utilized, thefederal tax credit carryforwards will begin to expirein
2021. Deferred tax assets of approximately $202.9million at December31, 2002 pertain primarily to certain net operating loss carryforwards
resulting from the exercise of employee stock options of $145.2million and the remainder relatesto losses at certain subsidiaries. We have a full
valuation allowance against the amounts relating to the exercise of employee stock options due to theimpact that uncertainties associated with
our future stock price and timing of employee stock option exercises have on the likelihood that we will realize future benefits from these
amounts. To the extent that we generate taxable income in future years, we will have the ability, subject to carryforward limitations, to benefit
from these amounts. When recognized, the tax benefit related to stock options will be accounted for asa credit to additional paid-in-capital
rather than a reduction of the incometax provision.

Note 17—Subsequent Events:

Vancouver Lease

InFebruary 2003, we entered into an operating sublease for approximately 110,000 square feet of commercial office space in Vancouver,
British Columbiafor a customer support center. The sublease commences on July1, 2003 and ends on October30, 2011. Rental commitments
under the sublease total $11.8million, including operating costs and taxes. |n addition, we are subleasing approximately 37,000 sguare feet of
the leased space back to the prime lessee for substantially the same lease term. The primelessee’s rental commitmentsto eBay under the
sublease total $5.2million, including operating costs and taxes. The primelessee has provided an irrevocable letter of credit for $7.8million as
security for their obligationsunder thissublease arrangement. The commitment under our sublease, as well as the primelessee’s sublease and
letter of credit, aredenominated in Canadian dollars. The dollar figures above are in U.S.dollars converted from Canadian dollars at the
exchange rate as of December31, 2002.
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Integration of Half.com Platform

InMarch 2003, we announced our intention to fully integrate the platform of Half.com, awholly owned subsidiary acquired in July2000, with
the eBay.com platform by the end of 2004. Half.com'’ soffice in Pennsylvania, where 65 of its employees work, will be shut down once this
process is complete. Management isin the process of formalizing an exit and integration plan and expects to finalize the plan by the end of
2003. Based on our preliminary estimates, we anticipate costs related to employee retention and severance will total approximately $3million. If
we decide to exit Half’s leased office facility, theamount of lease termination costs, excluding any possible sublease income, and fixed asset
write-offswill total approximately $2million. Costsrelated to our exit planwill be recorded ascharges on our income statement over the exit
and integration period in accordance with SFAS No.146, “ Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.”

PayPal’s Prior Services to Online Gambling Merchants

PayPal completed its exit from the business of processing payments for online gambling merchantsin November 2002. Approximately 6% of
PayPal’ s revenues in 2002 were derived from this business. Beginning in July 2002, PayPal provided documentsand information related to its
services to online gambling merchants in response to a federal grand jury subpoenaissued at the request of theU.S. Attorney for the Eastern
District of Missouri. On March28, 2003, PayPal received aletter from theU.S. Attorney for the Eastern District of Missouri indicating its
contention that PayPal’ s provision of services to online gambling merchants violated 18 U.S.C.1960 of the USA PATRIOT Act, which
prohibits the transmission of fundsthat areknown to have been derived from a criminal offense or areintended to be usedto promote or
support unlawful activity, thereby subjecting PayPal to potentia civil forfeiture of the amountsit received in connection with such activities as
well as potential criminal liability. The letter offered a complete settlement of all possible claimsand charges from the U.S.Attorney for the
Eastern District of Missouri if Paypal paid the purported amount of its earnings derived from online gambling merchants during the nine-month
period from October26, 2001 to July31, 2002, plusinterest. PayPal acted in the good faith belief that its conduct did not violate 18 U.S.C.1960
and PayPal calculates that the amount of its earnings from online gaming activities was lessthan asserted in the letter. Althoughthe outcome of
this matter is not yet determinable, the monetary amounts associated with this matter are not expected to have a material impact on our financia
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Supplementary Data— Quarterly Financial Data-Unaudited:

The followingtables present certain unaudited consolidated quarterly financia information for each of the 12quarters ended December31,
2002. This quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as the Consolidated Financial Statements and includes all adjustments
necessary to present fairly theinformation for the periods presented. The results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of
resultsfor thefull year or for any future period. The quarterly financial datafor the quarters presented below have been restated to reflect our
acquisition Half.com in July 2000, which wasaccounted for as a pooling of interests.

Quarterly Financial Data
(unaudited, inthousands, except per share amounts)

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2000
Net revenues $ 85887 $ 98152 $ 113377 $ 134,008
Gross profit $ 62504 $ 73948 $ 89,465 $ 110,054
Net income $ 1,758 $ 7,459 $ 15211 $ 23865
Net income per share-basic $ 0.01 $ 0.03 $ 0.06 $ 0.09
Net income per share-diluted $ 0.01 $ 0.03 $ 0.05 $ 0.09
Weighted-average shares:
Basic 242,658 249,828 255,741 259,789
Diluted 281,344 280,483 280,297 279,822
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2001
Net revenues $ 154,090 $ 180,905 $ 194,425 $ 219,401
Gross profit $ 127,088 $ 148,033 $ 159,472 $ 179,412
Net income $ 21,067 $ 24,608 $ 18,3838 $ 25935
Net income per share-basic $ 0.08 $ 0.09 $ 0.07 $ 0.09
Net income per share-diluted $ 0.08 $ 0.09 $ 0.07 $ 0.09
Weighted-average shares:
Basic 264,279 267,075 271,236 274,599
Diluted 278,732 283,582 282,317 283,564
Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
2002
Net revenues $ 245,106 $ 266,287 $ 288,779 $ 413928
Gross profit $ 203,829 $ 221,726 $ 243,405 $ 331,264
Net income $ 47584 $ 54,308 $ 61,003 $ 86,99
Net income per share-basic $ 0.17 $ 0.19 $ 0.22 $ 0.28
Net income per share-diluted $ 0.17 $ 0.19 $ 0.21 $ 0.28
Weighted-average shares:
Basic 278,332 280,707 282,267 308,644
Diluted 284,891 285,416 286,591 314,395
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2001 Pro Forma fair value stock option expense disclosure

Net income, as reported
Add: Amortization of stock-based compensation expense
determined under the intrinsic value method
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of tax
Pro forma net income (loss)
Earnings (loss)per share:
Basic— as reported
pro forma
Diluted— as reported
pro forma

2002 Pro Forma fair value stock option expense disclosure

Net income, as reported
Add: Amortization of stock-based compensation expense
determined under the intrinsic value method
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of tax
Pro forma net income (l0ss)
Earnings (loss)per share:
Basic— as reported
pro forma
Diluted— as reported
pro forma

March 31

$ 21,067
761

(59,996 )
(38,168 )
0.08

(0.14)

0.08
(0.14)

R ] &

March 31

$ 47584
913

(47,314 )
1,183
0.17
0.00

0.17
0.00

& P BB &

R ] &

A P BB &

Quarter Ended
June 30 September 30
24,608 $ 18,838
747 676
(49,589 ) (54,467 )
(24234) $ (34953)
0.09 $ 0.07
(009) % (0.13)
0.09 $ 0.07
(009) % (0.13)
Quarter Ended
June 30 September 30
54,308 $ 61,003
(776 ) 590
(43,813 ) (24,821)
9,719 $ 36,772
0.19 $ 0.22
0.03 $ 0.13
0.19 $ 0.21
0.03 $ 0.13

$

December 31

25,935
907

(47,474)

(20,632 )
0.09
(0.08 )

0.09
(0.08 )

December 31

86,996
5,226

(76,954 )

15,268
0.28
0.05

0.28
0.05

The 2001 and 2002 quarterly pro formaamounts have been adjusted to reflect the correction of previoudly calculated pro formaoption pricing
and amortization amounts. These adjustmentsare limited to the footnote disclosure of non-cash SFAS No.123, “ Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” pro formaexpense and do not resultin any changes or impact to our historically reported statements of income or cash flows.
The previously reported diluted pro formanetincome (loss)per sharewas $0.00 in the three-monthsended March31, 2001, $0.01 in the
three-months June30, 2001, $(0.03) in the three-months September30, 2001, and $(0.03) in the three-months December31, 2001. The
previously reported diluted pro formanetincome per share was $0.04 in the three-months ended March31, 2002, $0.05 in the three-months

June30, 2002 and $0.06 in the three-months September30, 2002.

EGAF

— Faalfdalia
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eBay Inc.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

The financia statement Schedulell— VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS isfiled aspart of this Form10-K.

Balanceat Charged Charged to Charges
Beginning to Other Utilized/
of Period Expense Account Write-offs
(inthousands)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Authorized
Credits
Y ear ended December31, $ 8,402 $ 18,237 $ — $ (12,509 )
2000
Y ear ended December31, 14,130 25,243 — (10,349 )
2001
Y ear ended December31, 29,024 25,455 — (23,777 )
2002
Allowance for Transaction L osses
Y ear ended December31, — — — —
2000
Y ear ended December31, — — — —
2001
Y ear ended December31, — 7,832 8,848 * (6,573)
2002
Tax Valuation Allowance
Y ear ended December31, 83,894 17,692 — —
2000
Y ear ended December31, 101,586 27,626 — —
2001
Y ear ended December31, 129,212 15,970 — —
2002

*  Assumed liability in connection with PayPal acquisition on October3, 2002.
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Balance at
End of
Period

14,130
29,024

30,702

10,107

101,586
129,212

145,182



Table of Contents

Pursuant to the requirements of Section13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of San Jose, State of California, onthe 31st day of

March, 2003.

eBay Inc.

/9 MARGARET C. WHITMAN
Margaret C. Whitman

President, Chief Executive Officer
and Director

KNOW ALL PERSONSBY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Margaret C.
Whitman, Rajiv Duttaand Michagl R. Jacobson, and each or any one of them, each with the power of substitution, his or her attorney-in-fact, to
sign any amendmentsto this report, with exhibits thereto and other documentsin connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming al that each of said attorneys-in-fact, or his substitute or substitutes, may do or cause to be done

by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons

SIGNATURES

POWER OF ATTORNEY

on behalf of theregistrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: March 31, 2003

Principal Executive Officer:

By :/sy MARGARET C. WHITMAN

Margaret C. Whitman

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

By :/ PIERRE M. OMIDYAR

Pierre M. Omidyar

Founder, Chairman of the Board and Director
By :/s/ SCOTT D. COOK

Scott D. Cook

Director

By :/9 DAWN G. LEPORE
Dawn G. Lepore
Director

EGAF

— Faalfdalia

Principal Financial Officer:

By :/9 RAJV DUTTA

Rajiv Dutta

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Principal Accounting Officer:

By :/9 MARK J. RUBASH

Mark J. Rubash

Vice President, Finance and Chief Accounting Officer

Additional Directors

By :/s/ PHILIPPE BOURGUIGNON
Philippe Bourguignon

Director

By :/s ROBERT C.KAGLE

Raobert C. Kagle

Director

By :/ HOWARD D. SCHULTZ
Howard D. Schultz
Director
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Margaret C. Whitman, certify that:

1.1 havereviewed this annual report on Form10-K of eBay Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state amaterial fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to theperiod covered by this annual report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financia information included in this annual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flowsof the registrant asof, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. Theregistrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-14 and 15d-14) for theregistrant and have:

a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, includingits
consolidated subsidiaries, is made knownto us by otherswithin those entities, particularly during theperiod in whichthis annual report is
being prepared;

b)evaluated the effectiveness of theregistrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90days prior to thefiling date of
this annual report (the “ Evaluation Date”); and

c)presented in thisannual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5.Theregistrant’s other certifyingofficers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)al significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect theregistrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for theregistrant’s auditors any material weaknessesin internal controls;
and

b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in theregistrant’ sinternal
controls; and

6.Theregistrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in thisannual report whether there were significant changes ininternal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/Y4 MARGARET C. WHITMAN
Margaret C. Whitman

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 31, 2003
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Rajiv Dutta, certify that:

1.1 havereviewed this annual report on Form10-K of eBay Inc.;

2.Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omitto state amaterial fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to theperiod covered by this annual report;

3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financia information included in this annual report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant asof, and for, the periods presented in this
annual report;

4. Theregistrant’s other certifying officers and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-14 and 15d-14) for theregistrant and have:

a)designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, includingits
consolidated subsidiaries, is made knownto us by otherswithin those entities, particularly during theperiod in whichthis annual report is
being prepared;

b)evaluated the effectiveness of theregistrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90days prior to thefiling date of
this annual report (the “ Evaluation Date”); and

c)presented in thisannual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5.Theregistrant’s other certifyingofficers and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’ s auditors and the
audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect theregistrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for theregistrant’s auditors any material weaknessesin internal controls;
and

b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in theregistrant’ sinternal
controls; and

6.Theregistrant’s other certifying officers and | have indicated in thisannual report whether there were significant changes ininternal
controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsegquent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

/s RAJV DUTTA

Rajiv Dutta

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: March 31, 2003

143

meres o SO irssss 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




Table of Contents

Ex. No.
201

3.01
3.02

3.03

4.01
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10.02+
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10.05+
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10.09+
10.10+

10.11+

10.12+
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July7, 2002, among
PayPal, Inc., the Registrant and Vaquita Acquisition Corp.
Registrant’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.
Registrant’ s Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of
Incorporation.

Registrant’s Corrected Certificate of Certificate of Amendment of
Certificate of Incorporation.

Form of Specimen Certificate for Registrant’s Common Stock.
Investor Rights Agreement, dated June20, 1997, between the
Registrant and certain stockholders named therein.

Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into by Registrant witheach
of its directors and executive officers.

Registrant’s 1996 Stock Option Plan.

Registrant’s 1997 Stock Option Plan.

Registrant’s 1998 Equity Incentive Plan.

Registrant’s 2001 Equity Incentive Plan.

Registrant’s 1998 Directors Stock Option Plan.

Amendment No.1 to Registrant’s 1998 Directors Stock Option
Plan.

Registrant’s Amended and Restated 1998 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.

Registrant’s 1999 Global Equity Incentive Plan.

Employment Letter Agreement dated January16, 1998, between
Margaret C. Whitman and Registrant.

Employment L etter Agreement dated August20, 1998, between
Michael R. Jacobson and Registrant.

Offer Letter to Maynard G. Webb, Jr. dated July17, 1999.
Retention Bonus Plan dated January10, 2001, between Registrant
and Maynard G. Webb, Jr. (Corrected).

EGAF

Filed

with

this

10-K Form
8-K

10-Q
10-K

10-K

S1
S1

S1

S1
S1
S1
S8
S1
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S8
S1

S1

S3
10-Q
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333-97729
333-59097

333-59097

333-88205

Date
Filed
07/08/02

11/13/98
03/28/01

03/28/01

08/19/98
07/15/98

07/15/98

07/15/98
07/15/98
07/15/98
08/06/02
07/15/98
03/29/99

03/25/02

08/06/02
08/19/98

09/01/98

09/30/99
08/14/01
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10.15+
10.16+
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10.18+
10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22

10.23

21.01

23.01
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Filed
with
this

Exhibit Description 10-K

Stock Option Agreement dated June9, 1998 between Registrant and X

Scott D. Cook.

Offer Letter to Jeffrey D. Jordan dated July30, 1999.

Retention Bonus Plan dated May16, 2000, between Registrant and

Jeffrey D. Jordan.

Retention Bonus Plan dated April3, 2001, between Registrant and

Jeffrey D. Jordan.

Offer Letter to William C. Cobb dated November22, 2000.

Supplemental Retention Bonus Plan dated April14, 2002, between

Registrant and William C. Cobb.

Employment Letter Agreement between Registrant and Christopher

T. Hjelm, dated as of March11, 2002.

Specia Bonus Plan between Registrant and Matthew J. Bannick,

dated as of September6, 2002.

Lease dated Marchl, 2000, between eBay Realty Trust and

Registrant.

Cash Collateral Agreement between Registrant and Chase

Manhattan Bank as Agent, dated Marchl, 2000.

List of Subsidiaries. X
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consent. X
Power of Attorney (see signature page) X

+Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement
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Exhibit 10.14
eBAY INC.
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
This Stock Option Agreement (this"AGREEMENT") is made and entered into outside of theeBay Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (the "PLAN")
as of the Date of Grant set forth below (the "DATE OF GRANT") by and between eBay Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "COMPANY"), and
the Participant named below ("PARTICIPANT"). Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Plan.

Participant: Scott D. Cook
Social Security Number:

Address.

Total Option Shares: Fifty Thousand Shares

Exercise Price Per Share: sop 0o T

Date of Grant: ey hees T

First Vesting Date: e 6. 1g0e T

Expiration Date: June 8 2008 T
[unless earlier terminated under Section 3

bel ow

Type of Stock Option
(Check one): [ 1 Incentive Stock Option

[ X] Nonqualified Stock Option

1. GRANT OF OPTION. The Company hereby grants to Participant an option (this"OPTION") to purchase thetotal number of shares of
Common Stock of the Company set forth above as Total Option Shares (the "SHARES") at the Exercise Price Per Share set forth above (the
"EXERCISE PRICE"), subject to al of theterms and conditions of this Agreement and, except to the extent inconsistent with this paragraph
and with paragraph 2.2 hereof, the Plan. If designated as an Incentive Stock Option above, thisOption isintendedto qualify as an "incentive
stock option™ ("1SO™") within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the"CODE"). The Participant
may transfer the economic or beneficial interest in this Option to an Approved Transferee that agrees to be bound by theterms of the Exercise
Agreement. "APPROVED TRANSFEREE" means bona fide trusts or partnerships for the exclusive

1
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benefit of any oneor more of the Participant's child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse, sibling, mother-in-law,
father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoptive relationships, so long as the Participant has sole
investment control over suchtrust or partnership, or any entity in which Participant is, directly or indirectly, a member, partner or five percent
or more stockholder.

2. EXERCISE PERIOD.

2.1 Exercise Period of Option. This Option isimmediately exercisable with respect to all of the Shares, although the Shares issued upon
exercise of this Option will be subject to therestrictions on transfer and Repurchase Options set forth in Sections 7, 8 and 9 below. Provided
Participant continuesto provide servicesto the Company or to any Parent or Subsidiary of the Company, the Shares issuable upon exercise of
this Option will become vested with respect to twenty-five percent (25%) of the Shares on June 9, 1999 (the "FIRST VESTING DATE") and
thereafter at the end of each full succeeding month after the First Vesting Date an additional 2.08333% of the Shares will become vested until
the Shares are vested with respect to 100% of the Shares, provided that if application of the vesting percentage causes a fractional share, such
share shall be rounded downto the nearest whole share. Notwithstanding any provision in the Plan or thisAgreement to the contrary; Options
for Unvested Shares (as defined in Section 2.2 of this Agreement) will not be exercisable on or after Participant's Termination Date.

2.2 Vesting of Shares. Sharesthat are vested pursuant to the schedule set forth in Section 2.1 are"VESTED SHARES." Shares that are not
vested pursuant to the schedule set forth in Section 2.1 are "UNVESTED SHARES." Unvested Shares may not be sold or otherwise transferred
by Participant without the Company's prior written consent; provided that Participant may transfer such Unvested Shares to an Approved
Transferee that agrees to be bound by theterms of the Exercise Agreement. "APPROVED TRANSFEREE" means bona fide trusts, or
partnerships for the exclusive benefit of any one or more of the Participant's child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent,
spouse, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoptive relationships, so
long as the Participant has sole investment control over such trust or partnership, or any entity in which Participant is, directly or indirectly, a
member, partner or five percent or more stockholder.

2.3 Expiration. This Option shall expire on the Expiration Date set forth above and must be exercised, if at al, on or before the Expiration Date,
unless earlier terminated under Section 3 below.

3. TERMINATION.

3.1 Termination for Any Reason Except Death Disability or Cause. If Participant is Terminated for any reason, except death, Disability or
Cause, this Option, to the extent (and only to the extent) that it is exercisable by Participant onthe Termination Date, may be exercised by
Participant, if at all, asto al or some of the Vested Shares calculated as of the Termination Date, no later than three (3) months after the
Termination Date, but in any event no later than the Expiration Date.
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3.2 Termination Because of Death or Disability. If Participant is Terminated because of death or Disability of Participant (or the Participant
dies withinthree (3) monthsafter Termination other than for Cause) this Option, to the extent that it is exercisable by Participant on the
Termination Date, may be exercised by Participant (or Participant's legal representative), if at al, asto al or some of theVested Shares
calculated as of the Termination Date, no later than twelve (12) monthsafter the Termination Date, but in any event no later than the Expiration
Date. Any exercise beyond three

(3) months after the Termination Date when the Termination isfor any reason other than the Participant's death or disability, withinthe meaning
of Section

22(e)(3) of the Code, is deemed to be an NQSO.

3.3 Termination for Cause. If Participant is Terminated for Cause, then thisOption will expire on Participant's Termination Date, or a such
later time and on such conditions as are determined by the Committee.

3.4 No Obligation to Employ. Nothingin the Plan or this Agreement shall confer on Participant any right to continue in theemploy of, or other
relationship with, the Company or any Parent or Subsidiary of the Company, or limit in any way the right of the Company or any Parent or
Subsidiary of the Company to terminate Participant's employment or other relationship at any time, with or without Cause.

4. MANNER OF EXERCISE.

4.1 Stock Option Exercise Agreement. To exercise this Option, Participant (or in the case of exercise after Participant's death or incapacity,
Participant's executor, administrator, heir or legatee, as the case may be) must deliver to the Company an executed stock option exercise
agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, or in such other form as may be approved by the Company from time to time (the
"EXERCISE AGREEMENT"), which shall set forth, inter alia, Participant's election to exercise this Option, the number of Shares being
purchased, any restrictions imposed on the Shares and any representations, warranties and agreementsregarding Participant's investment intent
and access to information as may be required by the Company to comply with applicable securities laws. If someone other than Participant
exercises this Option, then such person must submit documentation reasonably acceptable to the Company that such person has the right to
exercise this Option.

4.2 Limitations on Exercise. This Option may not be exercised unless such exerciseisin compliance withall applicable federal and state
securities laws, as they are in effect on thedate of exercise. This Option may not be exercised as to fewer than one hundred (100) Shares, unless
it isexercised asto al Shares as to whichthis Option isthen exercisable.

4.3 Payment. The Exercise Agreement shall be accompanied by full payment of the Exercise Price for the Shares being purchased in cash (by
check), or where permitted by law:

(a) by surrender of shares of the Company's Common Stock that:

(2) either (A) have been owned by Participant for more than six (6) months and have been paid for within the meaning of SEC Rule 144 (and, if
such shares were purchased from the Company
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by use of a promissory note, such note has been fully paid with respect to such shares) or (B) were obtained by Participant in the open public
market and (2) are clear of al liens, claims, encumbrances or security interests;

(b) by tender of afull recourse promissory note having such termsas may be approved by the Committee, which note shall be secured by a
pledge of al of the Shares so purchased; provided, however, that if Participant isnot anemployee or director of the Company, Participant will
not be entitled to purchase Shares with a promissory note unless the note is adequately secured by collateral other than the Shares;

(c) provided that a public market for the Company's stock exists, (1) through a"same day sale" commitment from Participant and a
broker-dealer that isa member of the National Association of Securities Dealers (an "NASD Dealer") whereby Participant irrevocably electsto
exercise this Option and to sell a portion of the Shares so purchased to pay for the Exercise Price and whereby the NASD Deadler irrevocably
commitsupon receipt of such Shares to forward the Exercise Price directly to the Company, or (2) through a"margin" commitment from
Participant and an NASD Dedler whereby Participant irrevocably elects to exercise this Option and to pledge the Shares so purchased to the
NASD Dealer in a margin account assecurity for aloan from the NASD Dealer in the amount of the Exercise Price, and whereby the NASD
Dealer irrevocably commitsupon receipt of such Shares to forward the Exercise Price directly to the Company; or

(d) by any combination of the foregoing.

4.4 Tax Withholding. Prior to the issuance of the Shares upon exercise of this Option, Participant must pay or provide for any applicable
federal, state andloca withholding obligations of the Company. If the Committee permits, Participant may provide for payment of withholding
taxes upon exercise of this Option by requesting that the Company retain Shares with a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum amount of
taxes required to be withheld. Insuch case, the Company shall issue the net number of Shares to the Participant by deducting the Shares
retained fromthe Shares issuable upon exercise.

4.5 Issuance of Shares. Provided that the Exercise Agreement and payment are in form and substance satisfactory to counsel for the Company,
the Company shall issue the Shares registered in the name of Participant, Participant's authorized assignee, or Participant's legal representative,
and shall deliver certificates representing the Shares with the appropriate legends affixed thereto.

5. NOTICE OF DISQUALIFYING DISPOSITION OF ISO SHARES. If this Option isan 1SO, and if Participant sells or otherwise disposes of
any of the Shares acquired pursuant to the 1ISO
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on or before the later of (a) thedate two (2) years after the Date of Grant, and (b) thedate one (1) year after transfer of such Sharesto
Participant upon exercise of this Option, Participant shall immediately notify the Company in writing of such disposition. Participant agrees that
Participant may be subject to income tax withholding by the Company on the compensation income recognized by Participant from the early
disposition by payment in cash or out of the current wages or other compensation payable to Participant.

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. The Plan and thisAgreement are intended to comply with Section 25102(f) of the
Cdlifornia Corporations Code. Any provision of this Agreement which isinconsistent with Section 25102(f) shall, without further act or
amendment by the Company or the Board, be reformed to comply with the requirements of Section 25102(f). The exercise of this Option and
the issuance and transfer of Shares shall be subject to compliance by the Company and Participant withall applicable requirements of federal
and state securities lawsand with all applicable requirements of any stock exchange on which the Company's Common Stock may be listed at
the time of such issuance or transfer.

7. NONTRANSFERABILITY OF OPTION. Except as provided in Section 1 of this Agreement, thisOption may not be transferred in any
manner other than by will or by the lawsof descent and distribution and may be exercised during the lifetime of Participant only by Participant
or inthe event of Participant's incapacity, by Participant's legal representative. The terms of this Option shall be binding upon the executors,
administrators, successors and assigns of Participant.

8. COMPANY'S REPURCHASE OPTION FOR UNVESTED SHARES. The Company, or itsassignee, shall have the option to repurchase
Participant's Unvested Shares (as defined in Section 2.2 of this Agreement) on the termsand conditions set forth in the Exercise Agreement (the
"Repurchase Option for Unvested Shares") if Participant is Terminated (as defined in the Plan) for any reason, or no reason, including without
limitation Participant's death, Disability (as defined in the Plan), voluntary resignation or termination by the Company with or without Cause.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall retain the Repurchase Option for Unvested Shares only as to that number of Unvested Shares
(whether or not exercised) that exceeds the number of shareswhich remain exercisable.

9. TAX CONSEQUENCES. The Participant representsthat he has consulted histax advisor regarding the tax consequences associated with the
exercise of this Option and thedisposition of the Shares, includingthe filing of the

Section 83(b) €election with respect to the Unvested Shares. AsParticipant isnot a current or former employee of the Company, Participant shall
assume liability for any and all federal and state income and self-employment taxes associated with the exercise of the Option and, the
disposition of the Shares.

10. PRIVILEGES OF STOCK OWNERSHIP. Participant shall not have any of the rights of a shareholder with respect to any Shares until the
Shares are issued to Participant.

11. INTERPRETATION. Any dispute regarding theinterpretation of this Agreement shall be submitted by Participant or the Company to the
Committeefor review. The resolution of sucha dispute by the Committee shall be final and binding on the Company and Participant.

5
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12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. The Plan, except to the extent inconsistent withthis Agreement, isincorporated herein by reference. This
Agreement and, except to theextent inconsistent with this Agreement, the Plan constitute the complete and exclusive statement of the parties
regarding itssubject matter and supersedes all prior proposals, representations, communications, and agreements of the parties, whether oral or
written regarding the grant of stock options or issuances of shares to Participant.

13. NOTICES. Any noticerequired to be given or delivered to the Company under theterms of this Agreement shall be in writing and
addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at itsprincipal corporate offices. Any notice required to be given or deliveredto
Participant shall be inwriting and addressed to Participant at the address indicated above or to such other address as such party may designate
inwriting from time to time to the Company. All notices shall be deemed to have been given or delivered upon: personal delivery; three (3)
days after deposit in the United States mail by certified or registered mail (return receipt requested); one(1) business day after, deposit with any
return receipt express courier (prepaid); or one (1) business day after transmission by facsimile, rapifax or telecopier.

14. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The Company may assign any of its rights under this Agreement, including its rights to repurchase Shares
under the Exercise Agreement (and any Repurchase Option or Right of First Refusal). This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the successors and assigns of the Company. Subject to therestrictions on transfer set forth herein, this Agreement shall be binding
upon Participant and Participant's heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

15. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the lawsof the State of Californiaas such
laws areapplied to agreements between California residentsentered into and to be performed entirely within California. If any provision of this
Agreement is determined by a court of law to beillegal or unenforceable, then such provision will be enforced to the maximum extent possible
and the other provisions will remain fully effective and enforceable.

16. ACCEPTANCE. Participant hereby acknowledgesreceipt of acopy of the Plan and this Agreement. Participant hasread and understands
the termsand provisions thereof, and accepts this Option subject to all theterms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement. Participant
acknowledges that there may be adverse tax consegquences upon exercise of this Option or disposition of the Shares and that Participant should
consult atax adviser prior to such exercise or disposition.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate by its duly authorized representative and
Participant has executed this Agreement in duplicate as of the Date of Grant.

eBAY | NC. PARTI CI PANT

By: /s/ Margaret C. Witnan /sl Scott D. Cook

(Signature)
Margaret C. Wit nan Scott D. Cook

(Pl ease print nane) (Pl ease print nane)

Presi dent and Chi ef Executive Oficer

(Please print title)
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EXHIBIT NO. 21.01

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
ASOF DECEMBER 31, 2002

1. Billpoint, Inc., a Delaware corporation

2. Blackthorne Software, Inc., a Delaware corporation
3. CARad Inc., a Delaware corporation

. Confinity, Inc., a California corporation

5. eBay International Inc., a Delaware corporation

6. eBay Real Estate Inc., a Delaware corporation

7. eBay Real Estate No. 1, Inc., a Delaware corporation
8

9

N

. eBay Real Estate No. 2, Inc., a Delaware corporation
. Half.com, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation
10. HBJ Partners, LLC, a California limited liability company
11. HomesDirect.com, Inc., a Delaware corporation
12. Jump Incorporated, an Ohio corporation*
13. PayPdl, Inc., a Delaware corporation
14. PayPal Asset Management, Inc., a Delaware corporation

DOMESTIC

15. 111 Potrero Partners, LLC, a Cdifornia limited liability company
16. 6700 Cherry Ave Partners, a California general partnership *d/b/a Up4Sale

INTERNATIONAL

1. eBay Audtralia and New Zealand Pty. Ltd.(Australia)
2. eBay Australia Pty. Ltd. (Australia)

3. eBay Belgium Holdings SA (Belgium)

4. eBay Canada Limited (New Brunswick)(Canada)
5. eBay France SA (France)**

6. eBay Global Holdings B.V. (The Netherlands)
7. eBay GmbH (Germany)

8. eBay International AG (Switzerland)

9. eBay Itdia Sir.l. (Italy)

10. eBay Japan Inc. (Japan)

11. eBay KTA (UK) Limited. (United Kingdom)
12. eBay Netherlands B.V. (The Netherlands)

13. eBay Promotions (UK) Ltd. (United Kingdom)
14. eBay Spain International, S.L. (Spain)

15. eBay Sverige AB (Sweden)

16. eBay Taiwan Company Ltd. (Taiwan)

17. eBay UK Limited (United Kingdom)

18. HortensiaB.V. (The Netherlands)

19. iBazar Belgium SA (Belgium)

20. iBazar Pro NL BV (The Netherlands)

21. iBazar Pro SARL (France)

22. iBazar Sverige AB (Sweden)

23. Inter Bazar (Portugal)

24. Internet Auction Co., Ltd.(Korea)***

25. MercadoL.ibre, Inc. (United States)

26. NeoCom Technology Co., Ltd. (Taiwan)

27. Opendea (Belgium)

28. PayPal (Europe) Ltd. (United Kingdom)

EGAF

— Faalfdalia
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29. PayPal Panama, Inc. (Panama)

30. Prime Energy Company Ltd. (Hong Kong)
31. Total Sites (Portugal)

32. VAC SARL (France)

** 09,98% held by eBay Inc. subsidiary
*** 50.054% held by eBay Inc. subsidiary
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Exhibit 23.01
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-62054 and 333-69054), Form S-4
(Nos. 333-62050 and 333-97727) and Form S-8 (Nos. 333-64179, 333-87593, 333-41944, 333-58046, 333-97729 and 333-100426) of eBay
Inc. of our report dated January 17, 2003, except for Note 17, which is as of March 28, 2003 relating to the consolidated financia statements,

which appears in this Form 10-K.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, CA
March 28, 2003

swneest ox B asim 2003, EDGAR Online, I nc.




End of Filing
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